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SECTION I - GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Red Herring Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise
indicates or implies, shall have the meaning as provided below. References to any legidation, act, regulation,
rule, guideline, policy, circular, naotification or clarification shall be to such legidation, act, regulation, rule,
guideline, policy, circular, notification or clarification as amended and any reference to a statutory provision
shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision. Further, the Issue related
terms used but not defined in this Red Herring Prospectus shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms under
the General Information Document. In case of any inconsistency between the definitions given below and the
definitions contained in the General Information Document (as defined below), the definitions given below shall
prevail.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, all references to “the Company “or “our Company “or “lssuer”, are
referencesto Eleganz Interiors Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, and having its
registered Office at Gala Nos. 1-7, Gr. Floor, Sarita ‘B’, Prabhat Industrial Estate, W.E. Highway, Dahisar(E),
Mumbai 400 068, Maharashtra, India. Furthermore, unless the context otherwise indicates, all references to the
terms, “we”, “us” and “our” are to our Company and our Subsidiaries (as defined below) on a consolidated
basis, as applicable.

The words and expressions used in this Red Herring Prospectus but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent
applicable, the meaningsascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA,
the Depositories Act or the respective rules and regulations made thereunder.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms in “Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits”, “Industry Overview”,
“Key Regulations and Policies”, “Restated Consolidated Financial Information”, “Other Financial
Information”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” and “Main Provisions of Articles of
Association”, on 119, 122, 169, 210, 256, 276 and 356 respectively, will have the meaning ascribed to such
terms in those respective sections.

General Terms

Term Description

“Eleganz InteriorsLimited” Unlessthe context otherwise indicates or implies, Eleganz Interiors Limited, refers

or “EIL” or “The to, aPublic Limited Company incorporated as a Private Limited company under

Company” or “Our the Companies Act, 1956, having its registered office at GalaNos. 1-7, Gr. Floor,

Company” or “The Issuer”  Sarita ‘B’, Prabhat Industrial Estate, W.E. Highway, Dahisar(E), Mumbai 400 068,
Maharashtra, India.

“we”, “us” and “our” Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company and our
Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

“you”, “your”, or “yours” Prospective investorsin this Issue

Company and Promoter related terms

Term Description

“AoA” or “Articles of The articles of association of our Company, as amended

Association or Articles”

“Associate Company(ies)” Eleganz Interiors PTE Limited, Singapore, Redwoods Barsana Heritage Private
Limited, and Redwoods Shukla Talab Heritage Private Limited being our Associate
Companies

“Audit Committee” The audit committee of our Board, constituted in accordance with the Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations, and as described in
“Our Management — Committees of our Board” on page 192

“Auditors” or “Statutory The statutory auditors of our Company, currently being M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka &

Auditors” or “Peer Review Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants having firm registration number



Term

Auditor”

“Board/ Board of
Directors”

“Central Registration
Centre (CRC)”

“Companies Act”
“Chairman”

“Chief Financial Officer”
or “CFO”

“Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer”

“CSR
Corporate
Responsibility
Committee”
“Director(s)”
“Equity Shares”
“Executive Director(s)”

Committee/
Social

“Independent Directors”

“IPO Committee”

“ISIN”

“KMP” or “Key
Managerial Personnel”

“Legal Advisors to the
Issue”
“Materiality Policy”

“Manufacturing Facility”
“MoA” or “Memorandum
of Association”

“NCLT, Mumbai”
“Nomination and
Remuneration Committee”

“Promoter Group”

“Promoter”

“Registered Office”

Description

104184W/W100075.

Board of directors of our Company, as described in “Our Management”, on page
186.

It’s an initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in Government Process
Re-engineering (GPR) with the specific objective of providing speedy incorporation
related services in line with global best practices. For more details, please refer
http://www.mca.gov.in/MinistryV2/central+registration+centre+content+page.html
The Companies Act 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.

The chairman of the Company, being Sameer Akshay Pakvasa

Chief Financial Officer of our Company, being Archana Prasad Desai. For further
details see, “Our Management — Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management” on page 199.

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company being Rahul
Suryanarayan Sharma. For further details see, “Our Management — Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management” on page 199.

Corporate social responsibility committee of our Board, constituted in accordance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and as described in “Our
Management — Committees of our Board” on page 192.

Directors on our Board as described in “Our Management”, on page 186 .

The equity shares of our Company of face value of 310 each.

Executive Directors shall include Whole-time Directors(s) and Executive Director
on our Board, as described in “Our Management”, on page 186.

Independent directors on our Board, and who are eligible to be appointed as
independent directors under the provisions of the Companies Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations. For details of the Independent Directors, please see “Our
Management” on page 186.

The IPO committee of our Board

International Securities Identification Number is INEOR9101015.

Key managerial personnel of our Company in accordance with Regulation 2(1) (bb)
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 as
applicable and as further disclosed in “Our Management” on page 186.

The Legal Advisors being, Rajani Associates, Advocates & Solicitors

The policy adopted by our Board in its meeting held on October 08, 2024 for
identification of material: (a) outstanding litigation proceedings; (b) creditors; and
(c) group companies, pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations
and for the purposes of disclosure in this Red Herring Prospectus, the Red Herring
Prospectus and the Prospectus

Our manufacturing facility located at Vasai, Maharashtra

The memorandum of association of our Company, as amended

National Company Law Tribunal

Nomination and remuneration committee of our Board, constituted in accordance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, and as described in “Our Management — Committees of our Board” on
page 192 .

Such individuals and entities which constituting the promoter group of our
Company, pursuant to Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and as
disclosed in “Our Promoter and Promoter Group” on page 202.

The Promoter of our Company, being Sameer Akshay Pakvasa. For further details,
please see “Our Promoter and Promoter Group” on page 202.

The registered office of our Company, located at Gala Nos. 1-7, Gr. Floor, Sarita
‘B’, Prabhat Industrial Estate, W.E. Highway, Dahisar(E), Mumbai 400 068,
Maharashtra, India
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Term

“Restated Financial
Statements/ Restated
Financial Information /
Restated Consolidated
Financial Statements /
Restated Consolidated

Financial Information”

“RoC” or “Registrar of
Companies”
“Shareholder(s)”
“Stakeholders
Relationship Committee”

“Subsidiary(ies)”

“Whole-time Director(s)”

Description

The restated consolidated financial statement of our Company, which comprise of
the restated consolidated summary statement of assets and liabilities ended
September 30, 2024, March 31, 2024, 2023 & 2022, the restated consolidated
statements of profit and loss, the restated consolidated statement of cash flows for
the six month period ended September 30, 2024and financial years ended March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, read together with summary statement
of significant accounting policies, annexures and notes thereto prepared in
accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (IGAAP) and
restated by Company in accordance with the requirements of Section 26 of Part I of
Chapter III of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance
Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, each as amended

The Registrar of Companies, Mumbai

Shareholders of our Company, from time to time

Stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Board, constituted in accordance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, and as described in “Our Management — Committees of our Board” on
page 192.

Doshi Infrastructure Private Limited and Eleganz Infra & Projects Limited being our
Subsidiaries

The whole-time director(s) of our Company, being Mayank Kumar Sharma.

Conventional and General Termsor Abbreviations

Term
«“/
“INR”
“AGM”
“AlF(s)”

“Rs.”/ “Rupees’/

“AlIF Regulations”

“Air Act”
“AS’?

“Banking Regulation Act”
“BTI Regulations”

$‘CAGR’9

“Calendar Year”
“Category [ AIF”
“Category II AIF”
“Category 1 FPIs”
“Category 1I FPIs”
“Category III AIF”
“CDSL”

“Civil Procedure Code”

G‘CI N”
“CLRA”

Description
Indian Rupees.

Annual general meeting of Shareholders under the Companies Act

Alternative Investment Funds as defined in and registered with SEBI under the
SEBI AlF Regulations.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

Accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
as notified from time to time

Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations,
1994

Compounded Annual Growth Rate.

The 12-month period ending December 31.

AlFsregistered as “Category | aternative investment funds” under the SEBI AlF
Regulations.

AlFsregistered as““Category |l alternative investment funds” under the SEBI AlF
Regulations.

FPIs registered as “Category | foreign portfolio investors” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations.

FPIs who are registered as “Category Il Foreign Portfolio Investors” under the
SEBI FPI Regulations

AlFs registered as “Category |1l aternative investment funds” under the SEBI
AlF Regulations.

Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908

Corporate |dentification Number.

Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970.



Term
“Companies Act, 1956”

“Companies Act” or
“Companies Act, 2013”
“Competition Act”
“Competition Amendment
Act”
“Consolidated
Policy”

FDI

“Consumer Protection
Act”

“CrPC”

“CSR”

“CST”

“Depositories Act”
“Depository”

“DGFT”
“DIN”
“DP”/ or
Participant”
“DP ID”
“DPIT”

“Depository

“EPS”
“EGM”
“EU”
“FCNR”
“FDI”

“FDI Policy”

“FDI Circular”
13 ‘FEMA’ b

“FEMA Rules”

“Financid Year”/
“Fiscal”/ “Fiscal Year”
“FPIs”

G‘FTA”
“FVCI”

“GOI”/
Government”
$‘GST’9
“Hazardous
Wastes Rules”
“HUF(S)”

“Central

&  Other

Description

The erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 read with the rules, regulations, clarifications
and modifications thereunder.
Companies Act, 2013 read with
modifications thereunder.

The Competition Act, 2002.

The Competition (Amendment) Act, 2023

rules, regulations, clarifications and

The Consolidated FDI Policy, effective from October 15, 2020, issued by the
DPIIT, and any modifications thereto or substitutions thereof, issued from time to
time.

The Consumer Protection Act, 2019.

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973

Corporate social responsibility.

Central salestax.

Depositories Act, 1996, read with the rules, regulations, clarifications and
modifications thereunder.

A depository registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996.

Director Genera of Foreign Trade, Ministry of Commerce.

Director |dentification Number.

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act.

Depository Participant’s Identity Number.

Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce
and Industry (formerly Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion),
Government of India

Earnings per share.

Extraordinary general meeting of Shareholders under the Companies Act
European Union.

Foreign Currency Non-Resident.

Foreign direct investment.

Consolidated Foreign Direct Investment Policy notified by the Department for
Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT) by way of circular bearing
number DPIIT file number 5(2)/2020-FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020
effective from October 15, 2020

The Consolidated FDI Policy Circular dated October 15, 2020 issued by the
DPIIT (formerly Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion).

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations
thereunder.

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019.

The period of 12 months commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding
calendar year and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year.

Foreign portfolio investor registered with SEBI pursuant to the SEBI FPI
Regulations.

Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 and the rules framed
thereunder FVCI.

Foreign venture capital investorsregistered with SEBI pursuant to the SEBI FVCI
Regulations.

The Government of India

The Goods and Services Tax.

Hazardous & Other Wastes (Management & Transboundary Movement) Rules,
2016

Hindu undivided family(ies).



Term
“ICAI”

“ICAI Guidance Note”

“IFRS”

“Income Tax Act”
“Income Tax Rules”
“Ind AS”

“Ind AS Rules”
“Indian GAAP”

“IPO”

“IST”

“IT Act”

“KPI”

“KYC”

“Listing Agreement”

“Listing Regulations”

“MCA”/
Corporate”
“MEIS”
“Mn” or “mn”
“MSME”

“N.A”. or “NA”
“NACH °
“NBFC-SI””/
“Systemically
Important NBFCs”
“NCLT”

“NEFT”

“NRE’

“NRI”

“Ministry

“NRO”
“NSDL”
“NSE”
“OCB”/
Corporate Body”

“P/E Ratio”
“PAN”

“PAT”
“Patents Act”
“PLI”

“RBI”
“Regulation S”

of

“Overseas

Description

Ingtitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by
the Ingtitute of Chartered Accountants of India as updated from time to time.
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board.

Income-tax Act, 1961.

The Income-tax Rules, 1962

The Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act.

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principlesin India notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act and read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016.

Initial public offering

Indian Standard Time.

Information Technology Act, 2000.

Key Performance Indicator.

Know Y our Customer.

The equity listing agreement to be entered into by our Company with the Stock
Exchange

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

Merchant Export from India Scheme.

Million

Micro, Small or aMedium Enterprise.

Not applicable

National Automated Clearing House.

A systemically important non-banking financial company as defined under
Regulation 2(1)(iii) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

National Company Law Tribunal.

National Electronic Fund Transfer

Non-Resident External.

A person resident outside India, who is acitizen of Indiaor an oversess citizen of
India cardholder within the meaning of section 7(A) of the Citizenship Act, 1955.
Non-Resident Ordinary.

National Securities Depository Limited.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or
indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIsincluding overseastrusts, in which
not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or
indirectly and which wasin existence on October 3, 2003, and immediately before
such date had taken benefits under the general permission granted to OCBs under
FEMA. OCBs are not allowed to invest in the Issue.

Price/Earnings Ratio.

Permanent account number.

Profit after tax.

Patents Act, 1970.

Production Linked Incentive.

Reserve Bank of India

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act.



Term
“RoDTEP”
“RTGS”
“Rule 144A”
“RWE”
“SCRA”
“SCRR”
“SCORES”
“SEBI”

“SEBI Act”
“SEBI AIF Regulations”

“SEBI FPI Regulations”
“SEBI FVCI Regulations™
“SEBI ICDR Regulations”
“SEBI Listing
Regulations” or SEBI
LODR Regulations”
“SEBI Merchant Bankers
Regulations”

“SEBI RTA  Master
Circular”

“SEBI Takeover
Regulations” or “Takeover
Regulations”

“SEBI Insider Trading
Regulations”

“SEBI LODR
Regulations”

“SEBI VCF Regulations”
“SGD”

“STT”

“TAN”

“Trademarks Act”

“U.S. GAAP”

“U.S. QIBs”

“U.S. Securities Act”
“US$” or “USD” or “US
Dollar”

“USA/U.S./US”
“VAT”
“VCF”

“Water Act”

Description

Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products.

Real Time Gross Settlement.

Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act.

Rwandan Franc

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956.

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

SEBI complaints redress system.

Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under section 3 of the SEBI
Act.

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012.

Securities and Exchange Board of
Regulations, 2019

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor)
Regulations, 2000.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capita and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

India (Foreign Portfolio Investors)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992

SEBI master circular bearing number SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37
dated May 7, 2024.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by
SEBI from timeto time.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India(Venture Capital Funds) Regulations,
1996.

Singaporean Dollar

Securities Transaction Tax.

Tax deduction account number.

Trademarks Act, 1999.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principlesin the United States of America
Persons that are “qualified institutional buyers”, as defined in Rule 144A.

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

United States Dollar.

United States of America.

Value added tax.

Venture capital funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations,
1996 (now repealed) or the SEBI AlF Regulations, as the case may be.

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.



Issue Related Definitions

Term
“Abridged Prospectus”

“Acknowledgement
Slip”
“Addendum”

“Allot”/ “Allotment” /
“Allotted”
“Allotment Advice”

“Allottee(s)”
“Anchor Investor(s)”

“Anchor Investor
Allocation Price”
“Anchor Investor
Application Form”
“Anchor Investor
Bidding Date”

“Anchor Investor Issue
Price”

“Anchor Investor Pay-in
Date”

“Anchor Investor
Portion”
“ASBA”/  “Application

Supported by Blocked
Amount”

“ASBA Account”

“ASBA Bid”

“ASBA Bidders”
“ASBA Form”

Description

Abridged prospectus means a memorandum containing such salient features of a
prospectus as may be specified by the SEBI in this behalf.

The slip or document issued by the relevant Designated Intermediary(ies) to the
Bidder as proof of registration of the Bid cum Application Form

The addendum dated January 24, 2025 to the draft red herring prospectus dated
October 17, 2024 filed by our Company with Stock Exchange

Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant
to the Fresh Issue.

The note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to each successful Bidder who
has been or is to be Allotted the Equity Shares after approval of the Basis of
Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange.

A successful Bidder to whom the Equity Shares are Allotted.

A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under the Anchor Investor Portion in
accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Red Herring Prospectus, and
who has Bid for an amount of at least ¥ 200 lakhs.

The price at which Equity Shares will be allocated to Anchor Investors according
to the terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which will be
decided by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM.

The form used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor Investor Portion,
and which will be considered as an application for Allotment in terms of the Red
Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus.

The date, one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Opening Date, on which Bids by
Anchor Investors shall be submitted, prior to and after which BRLM will not accept
any Bids from Anchor Investors, and allocation to Anchor Investors shall be
completed.

The final price at which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to Anchor Investors in
terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which price will be equal
to or higher than the Issue Price but not higher than the Cap Price. The Anchor
Investor Issue Price will be decided by our Company, in consultation with the
BRLM.

With respect to Anchor Investor(s), it shall be the Anchor Investor Bidding Date,
and in the event the Anchor Investor Allocation Price is lower than the Issue Price,
not later than two Working Days after the Bid/Issue Closing Date.

Up to 60% of the QIB Portion which may be allocated by our Company, in
consultation with the BRLM, to Anchor Investors and the basis of such allocation
will be on a discretionary basis by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM,
in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. One-third of the Anchor Investor
Portion shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being
received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation
Price.

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders, to make a
Bid and authorize an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the relevant ASBA
Account and will include applications made by UPI Bidders using the UPI
Mechanism where the Bid Amount will be blocked upon acceptance of UPI
Mandate Request by the UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism.

A bank account maintained with an SCSB by an ASBA Bidder, as specified in the
ASBA Form submitted by ASBA Bidders for blocking the Bid Amount mentioned
in the relevant ASBA Form and includes the account of a UPI Bidder which is
blocked upon acceptance of a UPI Mandate Request made by the UPI Bidder using
the UPI Mechanism.

A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder.

All Bidders except Anchor Investors.

An application form, whether physical or electronic, is used by ASBA Bidders to



Term

“Banker(s) to the Issue”
“Basis of Allotment”

“Bid(S)”

“Bid Amount”

“Bid cum Application
Form”
“Bid Lot”

‘GBid?’/
Date”

“Issue Closing

“Bid”/ “Issue Opening
Date”

“Bid”/ “Issue Period’

Description

submit Bids, which will be considered as the application for Allotment in terms of
the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus.

Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank(s), the Refund Bank(s), the Public Issue
Account Bank(s) and the Sponsor Bank(s), as the case may be.

Basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders under the
Issue, is described in “Issue Procedure” on page 313.

An indication by an ASBA Bidder to make an Issue during the Bid/Issue Period
pursuant to submission of the ASBA Form, or on the Anchor Investor Bidding Date
by an Anchor Investor, pursuant to the submission of the Anchor Investor
Application Form, to subscribe to or purchase Equity Shares at a price within the
Price Band, including all revisions and modifications thereto, to the extent
permissible under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, in terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form. The term ‘Bidding’ shall be
construed accordingly.

The highest value of optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form, and
payable by the Bidder or blocked in the ASBA Account of the ASBA Bidder, as
the case may be, upon submission of the Bid in the Issue, as applicable. In the case
of Retail Individual Investors Bidding at the Cut off Price, the Cap Price is
multiplied by the number of Equity Shares Bid for by such Retail Individual
Investors and mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form.

The Anchor Investor Application Form or the ASBA Form, as the context requires.

[e] Equity Shares of face value of 310/- each and in multiples of [®] Equity Shares
of face value of R 10/- each thereafter.

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date after
which the Designated Intermediaries will not accept any Bids, which shall be
notified in all editions of Financial Express (a widely circulated English national
daily newspaper), all editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national daily
newspaper) and Marathi edition of Mumbai Lakshdweep (a widely circulated
Marathi daily newspaper, Marathi being the regional language of Maharashtra,
where our Registered Office is located), and in case of any revision, the extended
Bid/Issue Closing Date shall also be widely disseminated by notification to the
Stock Exchange by issuing a public notice and also by indicating the change on the
respective websites of the BRLM and at the terminals of the Members of the
Syndicate and by intimation to the Designated Intermediaries and the Sponsor
Bank(s), as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, may consider closing the Bid/Issue
Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date on
which the Designated Intermediaries shall start accepting Bids, which shall be
notified in all editions of Financial Express (a widely circulated English national
daily newspaper) and all editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national
daily newspaper) and Marathi edition of Mumbai Lakshdweep (a widely circulated
Marathi daily newspaper, Marathi being the regional language of Maharashtra,
where our Registered Office is located), and in case of any revision, the extended
Bid/Issue Opening Date also be widely disseminated by notification to the Stock
Exchange by issuing a public notice and also by indicating the change on the
respective websites of the BRLM and at the terminals of the Members of the
Syndicate and by intimation to the Designated Intermediaries and the Sponsor
Bank(s), as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Except in relation to Anchor Investors, the period between the Bid/Issue Opening
Date and the Bid/Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both days, during which Bidders
(excluding Anchor Investors) can submit their Bids, including any revisions
thereof in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the terms of the Red



Term

“Bidder”/ “Applicant”

“Bidding Centers”

“Book Building Process”

“Book Running Lead
Manager”/ “BRLM”
“Broker Centers”

“CAN”/ “Confirmation
of Allocation Note”

“Cap Price”

“Cash
Sponsor
Agreement”

and
Bank

Escrow

‘CDP(s)”/
Depository
Participant(s)”

“Collecting

“Client ID”

“Collecting Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents”

“Cut-Off Price”

“Cut-Off Time”

“Demographic Details”

Description

Herring Prospectus. Provided that the Bidding shall be kept open for a minimum
of three Working Days for all categories of Bidders, other than Anchor Investors.
Our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, may consider closing the Bid/Issue
Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Any prospective investor who makes a Bid pursuant to the terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form and unless otherwise stated or
implied, includes an ASBA Bidder and an Anchor Investor.

Centers at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the Bid cum
Application Forms, i.e., Designated SCSB Branches for SCSBs, Specified
Locations for Members of the Syndicate, Broker Centers for Registered Brokers,
Designated RTA Locations for RTAs and Designated CDP Locations for CDPs.
Book building process, as provided in Part A of Schedule XIII of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, in terms of which the Issue is being made.

The book running lead manager to the Issue, being Vivro Financial Services
Private Limited

Broker centers are notified by the Stock Exchange where ASBA Bidders can
submit the ASBA Forms to a Registered Broker. The details of such Broker
Centers, along with the names and contact details of the Registered Brokers are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.bseindiacom and
www.nseindia.com.

Notice or intimation of allocation of the Equity Shares sent to Anchor Investors,
who have been allocated the Equity Shares, on or after the Anchor Investor Bidding
Date.

The higher end of the Price Band, above which the Issue Price and Anchor Investor
Issue Price will not be finalized and above which no Bids will be accepted. The
Cap Price shall be at least [®] % of the Floor Price and shall be less than or equal
to [@] % of the Floor Price.

The agreement to be entered into amongst our Company, the Syndicate Members,
the Registrar to the Issue, the BRLM, and the Banker(s) to the Issue for, among
other things, collection of the Bid Amounts from the Anchor Investors, transfer of
funds to the Public Issue Account(s), and where applicable, remitting refunds, if
any, to such Bidders, on the terms and conditions thereof.

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered
with SEBI and who is eligible to procure Bids at the Designated CDP Locations in
terms of circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015,
and other applicable circulars issued by SEBI as per the lists available on the
website of the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com, as
updated from time to time.

Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to
the demat account.

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure
Bids at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of SEBI circular no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015, issued by SEBI as
per the lists available on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com, as updated from time to time.

Issue Price, which shall be any price within the Price Band, finalized by our
Company, in consultation with the BRLM.

Only Retail Individual Investors are entitled to Bid at the Cut-off Price. QIBs
(including Anchor Investors) and Non-Institutional Investors are not entitled to Bid
at the Cut-off Price.

For all pending UPI Mandate Requests, the Sponsor Bank(s) shall initiate requests
for blocking of funds in the ASBA Accounts of relevant Bidders with a
confirmation cut-off time of 5:00 pm on after the Bid/Issue Closing Date.

The details of the Bidders including the Bidder’s address, name of the Bidder’s
father/husband, investor status, occupation, bank account details and UPI ID, as



http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/

Term
“Designated CDP
Locations”

“Designated Date”

“Designated
Intermediary(ies)”
“Designated
Locations”

RTA

“Designated RTA

Locations”

“Designated SCSB

Branches”

“Designated Stock

Exchange”
“Draft Red Herring
Prospectus” or “DRHP’

“Eligible NRI”

“Escrow Account(s)”

“Escrow Collection

Bank”

“E-Tendering”

“First or sole Bidder”

Description

applicable.

Such locations of the CDPs where Bidders can submit the ASBA Forms. The
details of such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact details
of the Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept ASBA Forms are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com and
www.nseindia.com, as updated from time to time.

The date on which the Escrow Collection Bank(s) transfer funds from the Escrow
Account to the Public Issue Account or the Refund Account, as the case may be,
and/or the instructions are issued to the SCSBs (in case of UPI Bidders, instruction
issued through the Sponsor Bank(s)) for the transfer of the relevant amounts
blocked by the SCSBs in the ASBA Accounts to the Public Issue Account and or
the Refund Account and / or are unblocked, as the case may be, in terms of the Red
Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, after finalization of the Basis of Allotment
in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, following which Equity
Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders in the Issue

SCSBs, Syndicate, sub-Syndicate, Registered Brokers, CDPs and RTAs who are
authorized to collect ASBA Forms from the ASBA Bidders, in relation to the Issue.
Such locations of the RTAs where ASBA Bidders can submit the ASBA Forms to
RTAs. The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and
contact details of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange (www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com) as
updated from time to time.

Such locations of the RTAs where ASBA Bidders can submit the ASBA Forms to
RTAs. The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and
contact details of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange (www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com) as
updated from time to time.

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms used by the
Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at www.sebi.gov.in,
updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI
from time to time.

Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, the Emerge Platform of NSE.

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated October 17, 2024 issued in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which does not contain complete particulars of
the price at which the Equity Shares will be Allotted and the size of the Issue,
including any addenda or corrigenda thereto.

NRI(s) from jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an Issue
or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Bid Cum Application
Form and the Red Herring Prospectus will constitute an invitation to purchase the
Equity Shares.

Account(s) opened with the Escrow Collection Bank and in whose favor Anchor
Investors will transfer the money through direct credit/NEFT/RTGS/NACH in
respect of the Bid Amount while submitting a Bid.

Bank which is a clearing member and registered with SEBI as a banker to an issue
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue)
Regulations, 1994, and with whom the Escrow Accounts in relation to the Issue for
Bids by Anchor Investors will be opened, in this case being HDFC Bank Limited.
e-Tendering digitizes the traditional process of soliciting bids from suppliers.
Through online platforms, companies can efficiently float tenders, receive bids,
and manage procurement. Benefits include broader supplier reach, faster bid
processing, heightened efficiency, and cost reduction. Despite some digital
challenges, e-Tendering's accessibility levels the field for suppliers and streamlines
procurement, benefiting both parties.

The Bidder whose name shall be mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form or
the Revision Form and in case of joint Bids, whose name shall also appear as the

10


http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.sebi.gov.in/

Term

“Floor Price”

“Fraudulent Borrower”

“Fresh Issue”

“Fugitive Economic
Offender”
“General Information

Document” or “GID”

“Issue Agreement”

“Issue Price”

“Mutual Funds”

“Mutual Fund Portion”

“Net Proceeds”
“Net QIB Portion”

“Non-Institutional
Category” or
“Non-Institutional
Portion”
“Non-Institutional
Investors” or “NIIs” or
“Non-Institutional
Bidders” or “NIBs”
“NPCI”

“NR” or “Non-Resident”

“Price Band”

Description

first holder of the beneficiary account held in joint names

The lower end of the Price Band, subject to any revision thereto, at or above which
the Issue Price and the Anchor Investor Issue Price will be finalized and below
which no Bids will be accepted,

Fraudulent borrower as defined under Regulation 2(1) (1ll) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

The issue of 60,05,000 Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at Z[®] per
Equity Share (including a premium of X[ ®] per Equity Share) aggregating to X[e]
lakhs by our Company.

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under section 12 of the
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

The General Information Document for investing in public Issues, prepared and
issued in accordance with the circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/37)
dated March 17, 2020, issued by SEBI and the UPI Circulars, as amended from
time to time. The General Information Document shall be available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the BRLM.

The agreement dated October 17, 2024, between our Company and the BRLM,
pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in relation to the Issue.

The final price at which Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful ASBA Bidders
in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus which will be decided by our Company, in
consultation with the BRLM, on the Pricing Date, in accordance with the Book-
Building Process and in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus. Equity Shares will
be Allotted to Anchor Investors at the Anchor Investor Issue Price, which will be
decided by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, on the Pricing Date, in
accordance with the Book-Building Process and in terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus.

Mutual funds registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996.

The portion of the Issue being 5% of the Net QIB Portion consisting of [®] Equity
Shares of face value of 10/- each which shall be available for allocation to Mutual
Funds only on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids being received at or
above the Issue Price.

Proceeds of the Issue less Issue expenses.

The portion of the QIB Portion less the number of Equity Shares Allotted to the
Anchor Investors.

The portion of the Issue being not less than 15% of the Issue consisting of [e]
Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each, available for allocation to Non-
Institutional Investors on proportionate basis

Bidders that are not QIBs or Rlls and who have Bid for Equity Shares for an
amount more than X [e] (but not including NRIs other than Eligible NRIs).

National Payments Corporation of India

Person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes non-resident
Indians, FVClIs and FPIs.

The price band ranging from the Floor Price of X [e] per Equity Share of face value
0f'%10/- each to the Cap Price of X [@] per Equity Share of face value of 310/- each,
including any revisions thereto. The Price Band and minimum Bid Lot, as decided
by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, will be advertised in all editions
of Financial Express (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper) and
all editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and
Marathi editions of Mumbai Lakshdweep (a widely circulated Marathi daily
newspaper, Marathi being the regional language of Maharashtra, where our
Registered Office is located), at least two Working Days prior to the Bid/Issue
Opening Date with the relevant financial ratios calculated at the Floor Price and at
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Term

“Pricing Date”

“Prospectus”

“Public
Account(s)”

Issue

“Public Issue Account

Bank(s)”
“QIB Portion”

“QIBs” or “Qualified
Institutional Buyers”
“Red Herring
Prospectus” or “RHP”

“Refund Account(s)”
“Refund Bank(s)”

“Registered Brokers”

“Registrar Agreement”

“Registrar to the Issue”
or “Registrar”

“Resident Indian”
“Retail Individual
Investor(s)” or “RII(s)”
or “Retail Individual
Bidder(s)” or “RIB(s)”
“Retail ~ Portion”  or
“Retail Category”

“Revision Form”

Description

the Cap Price, and shall be made available to the Stock Exchange for the purpose
of uploading on their respective websites.

The date on which our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, will finalize the
Issue Price.

The prospectus to be filed with the RoC on or after the Pricing Date in accordance
with Section 26 of the Companies Act, and the SEBI ICDR Regulations containing,
inter alia, the Issue Price, the size of the Issue and certain other information,
including any addenda or corrigenda thereto.

The bank account(s) opened with the Public Issue Account Bank(s) under Section
40(3) of the Companies Act, to receive monies from the Escrow Account and from
the ASBA Accounts on the Designated Date.

Bank(s) which is a clearing member and registered with SEBI as a banker to an
issue, and with whom the Public Issue Account(s) will be opened.

The portion of the Issue being not more than 50% of the Issue or [®] Equity Shares
of face value of X10/- each, available for allocation to QIBs (including Anchor
Investors) on a proportionate basis (in which allocation to Anchor Investors shall
be on a discretionary basis, as determined by our Company, in consultation with
the BRLM), subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.

A qualified institutional buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1) (ss) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

The Red Herring Prospectus to be issued in accordance with Section 32 of the
Companies Act, and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which will not
have complete particulars of the Issue Price and the size of the Issue, including any
addenda or corrigenda thereto. The Red Herring Prospectus will be filed with the
ROC at least three Working Days before the Bid/Issue Opening Date and will
become the Prospectus upon filing with the ROC after the Pricing Date.

The account opened with the Refund Bank(s), from which refunds, if any, of the
whole or part of the Bid Amount to Anchor Investors shall be made.

The Banker to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in this
case being HDFC Bank Limited.

Stockbrokers registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Stockbrokers) Regulations, 1992 and the stock exchanges having
nationwide terminals, other than the Members of the Syndicate and eligible to
procure Bids in terms of Circular No. CIR/CFD/14/2012 dated October 4, 2012,
and other applicable circulars issued by SEBI.

The agreement dated October 16, 2024. entered into between our Company, and
the Registrar to the Issue, in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the
Registrar to the Issue pertaining to the Issue.

Bigshare Services Private Limited

A person resident in India, as defined under FEMA.

Individual Bidders, who have Bid for the Equity Shares for an amount which is not
more than ¥ 2,00,000 in any of the bidding options in the Issue (including HUFs
applying through their karta and Eligible NRI Bidders) and does not include NRIs
(other than Eligible NRIs).

The portion of the Issue being not less than [ @] of the Issue consisting of [®] Equity
Shares of face value of T10/- each, available for allocation to Retail Individual
Investors as per the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received
at or above the Issue Price.

Form used by the Bidders to modify the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid
Amount in any of their Bid cum Application Forms or any previous Revision
Form(s), as applicable. QIB Bidders and Non-Institutional Investors are not
allowed to withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or
the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail Individual Investors can revise their Bids
during the Bid/Issue Period and withdraw their Bids until the Bid/Issue Closing
Date.
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Term

“RTAs” or “Registrar
and  Share  Transfer
Agents”
“RFP,?

“Self-Certified Syndicate
Bank(s)” or “SCSB(s)”

“Specified Locations”

“Sponsor Bank(s)”

“Stock Exchange”
“Sub-Syndicate
Members”

“Syndicate Agreement”

“Syndicate Member(s)”
“Syndicate” or
“Members of the
Syndicate”
“Underwriter”
“Underwriting
Agreement”

“UPI”

“UPI Bidders”

Description
The registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure
Bids at the Designated RTA Locations as per the list available on the website of
NSE, and the UPI Circulars
A request for proposal.
The banks registered with SEBI, offering services in relation to ASBA (other than
through UPI Mechanism), a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=
34 or
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=
35 or such other website as updated from time to time, and (ii) The banks registered
with SEBI, enabled for UPI Mechanism, a list of which is available on the website
of SEBI at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=
40 or such other website as updated from time to time. Applications through UPI
in the Issue can be made only through the SCSBs mobile applications (apps) whose
name appears on the SEBI website. A list of SCSBs and mobile applications,
which, are live for applying in public issues using UPI Mechanism is appearing in
the “list of mobile applications for using UPI in Public Issues” displayed on SEBI
website at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=
43. The said list shall be updated on SEBI website from time to time.
Bidding centers where the Syndicate shall accept ASBA Forms from Bidders, a list
of which is available on the website of SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from
time to time.
HDFC Bank Limited, being Banker(s) to the Issue, appointed by our Company to
act as a conduit between the Stock Exchange and the NPCI in order to push the
mandate collect requests and/or payment instructions of UPI Bidders using the UPI
Mechanism and carry out other responsibilities, in terms of the UPI Circulars.
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
The sub-syndicate members, if any, appointed by the BRLM and the Syndicate
Members, to collect ASBA Forms and Revision Forms.
The agreement to be entered into between our Company, the Registrar to the Issue,
the BRLM and the Syndicate Members in relation to the procurement of Bids by
the Syndicate
Vivro Financial Services Private Limited.
Together, the BRLM and the Syndicate Members.

Underwriter to this Issue namely Vivro Financial Services Private Limited
The agreement dated January 21, 2025 between the Underwriter and our Company.

Unified Payments Interface, which is an instant payment mechanism, developed
by the NPCIL.

Collectively, individual investors applying as Retail Individual Investors in the
Retail Portion, individuals applying as Non-Institutional Investors with a Bid
Amount of up to ¥ 5,00,000 in the Non-Institutional Portion, and Bidding under
the UPI Mechanism.

Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April
5, 2022, all individual investors applying in public issues where the application
amount is up to X 5,00,000 shall use UPI and shall provide their UPI ID in the bid-
cum-application form submitted with: (i) a syndicate member, (ii) a stock broker
registered with a recognized stock exchange (whose name is mentioned on the
website of the stock exchange as eligible for such activity), (iii) a depository
participant (whose name is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as
eligible for such activity), and (iv) a registrar to an issue and share transfer agent
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Term Description
(whose name is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as eligible for such
activity).

“UPI Circulars” SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1,
2018, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3,
2019, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28,
2019, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26,
2019, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated
November 8, 2019, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020 dated
March 30, 2020, SEBI circular number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021, SEBI circular
number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, SEBI circular
number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021, SEBI circular
no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022 (to the extent these
circulars are not rescinded by the SEBI RTA Master Circular), SEBI master
circular with circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated
June 21, 2023, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/TPD1/CIR/P/2023/140 dated
August 9, 2023, SEBI RTA Master Circular (to the extent it pertains to UPI) and
any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI in this regard, along with
the circulars issued by the Stock Exchange in this regard, including the circular
issued by NSE having reference no. (23/2022) dated July 22, 2022 and (20220803-
40) and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI or Stock
Exchange in this regard.

“UPI ID” ID created on UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by the
NPCI.

“UPI Mandate Request” A request (intimating the UPI Bidder by way of a notification on the UPI
application, by way of a SMS directing the UPI Bidder to such UPI application) to
the UPI Bidder initiated by the Sponsor Bank(s) to authorize blocking of funds on
the UPI application equivalent to Bid Amount and subsequent debit of funds in
case of Allotment.

“UPI Mechanism” The bidding mechanism that shall be used by a UPI Bidder to make an ASBA Bid
in the Issue in accordance with the UPI Circulars.

“UPI PIN” Password to authenticate UPI transaction.

“Wilful Defaulter” Wilful defaulter as defined under Regulation 2(1) (lll) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

“Working Day(s)” All days on which commercial banks in Mumbai, Maharashtra, India are open for

business; provided, however, with reference to (a) announcement of Price Band,
and (b) Bid/Issue Period, the expression “Working Day” shall mean all days on
which commercial banks in Mumbai, Maharashtra, India are open for business,
excluding all Saturdays, Sundays or public holidays; and (c) with reference to the
time period between the Bid/Issue Closing Date and the listing of the Equity Shares
on the Stock Exchange, the expression ‘Working Day’ shall mean all trading days
of Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, in terms of the circulars
issued by SEBI.

Industry and Business Related Terms or Abbreviations

Term Description

“Al” "ML” Artificial Intelligence/ Machine Learning

“BFSI” Banking, Financial Services, and Insurance

“BOQ” Bill of Quantities

“BPO” Business Process Outsourcing

“CAD” Computer-Aided Design- It is a software helps designers improve accuracy, enhance
productivity, and streamline the design process

“Capex” Capital Expenditure
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Term
“CNC”
“CRM”
“CSR”
“«Cy”
“D&B”
“ESG”
“FDI”
“FMCG”
“py”
“«GC”
“GCCs”
“GDP”
“GST”
“Green Building
Concept”

“HVAC”

“IBEF”

“IGBC”

“1IP”

“IMD”

“IMF”

“TIoT”

“IPC”

“ISO 9001:2015”

“IT”
“ITES”
“LEED”
“MBA”
“MEP”
“MOSPI”
“NCR”
“NRIs”
“OEMs”
“Order Book™

“pE"
“POP”
“REITs”
“SEZ”
“SMEs”
“Sq Ft”
“WEO”
“WFH”
“Y-0-Y”

Description

Computer Numerical Control Machine

Customer Relationship Management

Corporate Social Responsibility

Calendar Year

Design & Build services

Environmental, Social, and Governance

Foreign Direct Investment

Fast-Moving Consumer Goods

Financial Year

General Contracting services

Global Capability Centers

Gross Domestic Product

Goods & services tax

The green concepts and techniques in the building sector can help address various
environmental like water efficiency, energy efficiency, reduction in fossil fuel use,
handling of consumer waste and conserving natural resources. Most importantly,
these concepts can enhance occupant health and well-being, which is assuming
greater importance.

The Indian Green Building Council (IGBC), part of the Confederation of Indian
Industry (CII) was formed in the year 2001. The vision of the council is, “To enable
a sustainable built environment for all and facilitate India to be one of the global
leaders in the sustainable built environment by 2025,

Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning

India Brand Equity Foundation

Indian Green Building Council

Index of Industrial Production

India Meteorological Department

International Monetary Fund

Internet of things

International Property Consultants

ISO 9000 family of quality management standards by international standard for
Quality Management Systems

Information Technology

Information Technology Enabled Services

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design

Master of Business Administration

Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing

Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation

National Capital Region

Non-Residential Indians

Original Equipment Manufacturers

Total contract value of the existing contracts secured by us, as reduced by the value
of work executed and billed (excluding cost escalation) until the date of such order
book

provisional estimates

Plaster of Paris

Real Estate Investment Trusts

Special Economic Zone

Small and Medium Enterprises

Square Feet

World Economic Outlook

work from home

Year on Year
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND MARKET DATA AND
CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

Certain Conventions

All references to “India” contained in this Red Herring Prospectus are to the Republic of India and its territories
and possessions and all references herein to the “Government”, “Indian Government”, “Gol”, “Central
Government” or the “State Government” are to the Government of India, Central or State, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Red Herring Prospectus is in Indian Standard Time
(“1ST”). Unlessindicated otherwise, all referencesto page numbersin this Red Herring Prospectus are to the page
numbers of this Red Herring Prospectus.

In this Red Herring Prospectus, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company”, “our Company”, “lssuer”, “Issuer
Company”, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refersto “Eleganz Interiors Limited”.

Financial Data

Unless the context otherwise requires or indicates, the financial information in this Red Herring Prospectus have
been derived from our Restated Financial Information of our Company for the financial years ended March 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022 and for the six month period ended September 30, 2024, prepared in accordance with Indian
GAAP and the Companies Act, and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, set out in the section
titled “Financial Information” on page 210 of this Red Herring Prospectus. Our Restated Financial Information
are derived from our audited financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies
Act and have been restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For further information, please see
the section titled “Financial Information” on page 210 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

In this Red Herring Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts
listed are due to rounding off. All figures in decimals have been rounded off to the second decima and all
percentage figures have been rounded off to two decimal places. In certain instances, (i) the sum or percentage
change of such numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbersin a
column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. In
addition, any figures sourced from third-party industry sources may be rounded off to other than two decimal
points to conform to their respective sources.

Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on
March 31 of that particular calendar year. accordingly, all referencesto aparticular financia year or fiscal, unless
stated otherwise, are to the 12-month period commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year
and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year. Reference in this Red Herring Prospectus to the terms
Fiscal or Fiscal Year or Financial Year isto the 12 months ended on March 31 of such year, unless otherwise
specified. Unless stated otherwise, or the context requires otherwise, al referencesto a“year” in this Red Herring
Prospectus are to a calendar year.

The Restated Financia Information of our Company, which comprises the Restated Statement of Assets and
Liabilities, the Restated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Restated Statement of Cash Flows the Financia Years
ended for the six month period ended September 30, 2024 and March 31, 2024, 2023, 2022 and aong with the
summary statement of significant accounting policies read together with the annexures and notes thereto prepared
in terms of the requirements of Section 32 of the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance
Note on Reportsin Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the ICAI, as amended from time to time.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, Ind AS, IFRS and US GAAP. The Company has not
attempted to quantify their impact on thefinancial dataincluded herein and urges you to consult your own advisors
regarding such differences and their impact on the Company’s financial data. The degree to which the financial
information included in this Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent
on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Indian GAAP, the Companies
Act and SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with the af orementioned policies and laws
on the financial disclosures presented in this Red Herring Prospectus should be limited. There are significant
differences between Indian GAAP, Ind AS, U.S.GAAP and IFRS. Our Company does not provide are conciliation
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of its financial statements with IFRS or U.S.GAAP requirements. Our Company has not attempted to explain
those differences or quantify their impact on the financia dataincluded in this Red Herring Prospectus and it is
urged that you consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financia data.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” on pages 29, 142
and 257 respectively, of this Red Herring Prospectus, and elsewhere in this Red Herring Prospectus have been
calculated on the basis of the Restated Financial Statements of our Company, prepared in accordance with Indian
GAAP, and the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP measures presented in this Red Herring Prospectus such as Net Asset Value per Equity Share,
EBITDA, EBITDA Margin, Cash Profit After Tax, Capital Employed, Return on Capital Employed, Debt to
Equity Ratio, Net Debt to Equity Ratio and Net Worth (collectively “Non-GAAP Measures”) are a supplemental
measure of our performance and liquidity that are not required by, or presented in accordance with, Ind AS, Indian
GAAP, or IFRS. Further, these Non-GAAP Measures are not a measurement of our financial performance or
liquidity under Ind AS, Indian GAAP, or IFRS and should not be considered in isolation or construed as an
aternative to cash flows, profit / (loss) for the year / period or any other measure of financia performance or as
an indicator of our operating performance, liquidity, profitability or cash flows generated by operating, investing
or financing activities derived in accordance with Ind AS, Indian GAAP, or IFRS. In addition, these Non-GAAP
Measures and other statistical and other information relating to our operations and financial performance, may not
be computed on the basis of any standard methodology that is applicable across the industry and, therefore, a
comparison of similarly titled Non-GAAP Measures or statistical or other information relating to operations and
financial performance between companies may not be possible. Other companies may calculate the Non-GAAP
Measures differently from us, limiting their usefulness as a comparative measure. Although the Non-GAAP
Measures are not a measure of performance calculated in accordance with applicable accounting standards, we
compute and disclose them as our Company’s management believes that they are useful information in relation to
our business and financia performance.

For the risks relating to Non-GAAP Measures, see “Risk Factors — We have presented certain supplemental
information of our performance and liquidity which is not prepared under or required under Indian GAAP ” on
page 57 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to:

. “T” or “Rupees” or “INR” or “Rs” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.

. “US$”, “U.S. Dollar”, “USD” or “U.S. Dollars” or “$” are to United States Dollars, the official currency
of the United States of America.

In this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has presented certain numerical information. All figures have been
expressed in lakhs, except where specifically indicated. Onelakh represents 1,00,000. However, where any figures
that may have been sourced from third party industry sources are expressed in denominations other than lakhsin
their respective sources, such figures appear in this Red Herring Prospectus expressed in such denominations as
provided in such respective sources.

In this Red Herring Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to one gender also refers to
another gender and the word “Lac / Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, the industry and market data and forecasts used throughout this Red Herring Prospectus
has been obtained from report titled “Research Report on Indian Real Estate and Office Fit-Out” dated October
15, 2024 (“CareEgde Report”), which has been prepared by CARE Analytics Advisory Private Limited
(“CARE”), and such CareEdge Report has been commissioned by and paid for by our Company, exclusively
in connection with the Issue. Further, CARE, vide their consent letter dated October 16, 2024 (“Letter”) has
accorded their no objection and consent to use the CareEdge Report and has also confirmed that they are an
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independent agency, and confirmed that it is not related to our Company, our Directors, our Promoter, our Key
Manageria Personnel, our Senior Management or the BRLMs. The Report is also available on the website of our
Company at www.eleganz.co.in. For risks in relation to commissioned reports, see “Risk Factors — Certain
sections of this Red Herring Prospectus disclose information from the industry report which has been
commissioned and paid for by us exclusively connection with the I ssue and any reliance on such information for
making an investment decision in the Issue is subject to inherent risk” on page 58 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

CARE hasrequired us to include the following disclaimer in connection with the CareEdge Report:

This report is prepared by CARE Analytics and Advisory Private Limited (CareEdge Research). CareEdge
Research has taken utmost care to ensure veracity and adequacy of the information while devel oping this report
based on information available in CareEdge Research’s proprietary database, and other sources including the
information in public domain, considered by CareEdge Research as reliable after exercise of reasonable care
and diligence. The views and opinions expressed herein do not constitute the opinion of CareEdge Research to
buy or invest in this industry, sector or companies operating in this sector or industry and is also not a
recommendation to enter into any transaction in thisindustry or sector in any manner whatsoever.

This report has to be seen in its entirety; the selective review of portions of the report may lead to inaccurate
assessments. All forecasts in this report are based on assumptions considered to be reasonable by CareEdge
Resear ch at the time of i ssuance of thisreport; however, the actual outcome may be materially affected by changes
in the industry and economic circumstances, which could be different from the projections.

Nothing contained in thisreport is capable or intended to create any legally binding obligations on the sender or
CareEdge Research. The subscriber/user assumes the entire risk of any use made of this report or data herein.
Thisreport is for the information of the authorized recipient in India only and any reproduction of the report or
part of it would require explicit written prior approval of CareEdge Research. CareEdge Research shall reveal
the report to the extent necessary and called for by appropriate regulatory agencies, viz., SEBI, RBI, Government
authorities, etc., if it isrequired to do so. By accepting a copy of this report, the recipient accepts the terms of this
Disclaimer, which forms an integral part of this report.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Red Herring Prospectus is meaningful depends on
the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no
standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is conducted, and
methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources. Such data involves risks,
uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those
disclosed in “Risk Factors — Certain sections of this Red Herring Prospectus disclose information from the
industry report which has been commissioned and paid for by us exclusively in connection with the I ssue and any
reliance on such information for making an investment decision in the Issue is subject to inherent risk” on page
58 . Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely on such information.

Exchange Rates

This Red Herring Prospectus may contain conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that
have been presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be
construed as arepresentation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees,
at any particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between
the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:
Currency? Exchangerateason Exchangerateason Exchangerateas Exchangerateason

September 30, 2024 March 31, 2024 on March 31, March 31, 2022
2023"
1USD 83.79 83.37 82.22 75.81

* If the RBI reference rate is not available on a particular date due to a public holiday, the previous working day not being a public holiday
has been considered.

Source: www.fbil.org.in and www.rbi.org.in

Note: The reference rates are rounded off to two decimal places.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Red Herring Prospectus contains certain “forward-looking statements”. These forward-looking statements
generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “are likely”, “believe”, “expect”,
“estimate”, “intend”, “likely to0”, “objective”, “plan”, “project”, “propose”, “will , “seek to”, “will continue”,
“will pursue” or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our strategies,
objectives, plansor goals are also forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements are subject to risks,
uncertainties, expectations and assumptions about us that could cause actual resultsto differ materially from those
contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. All statements in this Red Herring Prospectus that are
not statements of historical fact constitute forward-looking statements. All statements regarding our expected
financial conditions and results of operations, business plans and objectives, strategies and goals and prospects
are forward looking statements.

Actuad results may differ materially from those suggested by forward-looking statements due to risks or
uncertainties associated with expectationsrel ating to and including, regulatory changes pertaining to theindustries
in Indiain which we operate and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy,
our growth and expansion, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political
conditionsin Indiawhich have an impact on its business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies
of Indig, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or
other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in domestic laws,
regulations and taxes and changes in competition in the industries in which we operate.

Certain important factors that could cause actual resultsto differ materially from our expectationsinclude, but are
not limited to, the following:

1 The number of orders we have received in the past, our current Order Book and our growth rate may not
be indicative of the number of orders we will receive in the future. Any delays in execution of our orders
expose us to time and cost overruns and variability in revenue, materiality and adversely impacting our
revenue from operations, cash flows, financial condition and cash flows

2. We derive a significant portion of our revenues from repeat clients. Any loss of, or a significant reduction
in the number of repeat clients could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
conditions and cash flows.

3. We derive a significant portion of our revenues from a limited number of clients. The loss of any
significant clients may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
and prospects.

4. We derive a significant portion of our revenues from a limited number of clients. The loss of any
significant clients may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
and prospects.

5. We are significantly dependent on both skilled and unskilled labour for the execution of our projects and
for our Manufacturing Facility. Any disruption to the supply of such labour, or our inability to control
the composition and cost of our contract labor could adversely affect our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

6. We depend on skilled talent across various functions to successfully execute projects and meet client
standards. Any inability to retain or attract such qualified personnel could negatively affect our business
operations

7. We outsource certain operations of our business, such as transport, logistics and certain manufacturing

activities, to third parties. Any failure by such third parties to deliver their services could have an adverse
impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

8. Our business and profitability are dependent upon the availability and the cost of our fit-out materials

used in the projects and raw materials consumed in manufacturing process. Any disruption to the timely
and adequate supply of such materials, or volatility in the prices of such materials may adversely impact

19



on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
9. Some of our historical corporate records are not traceable.

10. We depend on third party suppliers for a steady supply of both, finished products for installation at project
site and raw materials for manufacturing furniture items. We do not have continuing or exclusive
arrangements with any of our suppliers. Loss of suppliers or any failure by our suppliers to make timely
delivery of raw materials may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

For details regarding factors that could cause actua resultsto differ from expectations, see “Risk Factors”, “Our
Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
beginning on page 29, 142 and 257, respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus. By their nature, certain market
risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occursin the future. Asa
result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

We cannot ensure that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct.
Given these uncertainties, Applicants are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements and not to regard such statements to be a guarantee of our future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect current views as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus and are not a
guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions, which
in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these
forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and
the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our Company, our
Promoter, our Directors, the BRLM nor any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update or otherwise
revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of
underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company, the Promoter and the BRLM will ensure that the

Biddersin Indiaareinformed of material developmentsuntil thetime of the grant of listing and trading permission
by the Stock Exchanges for the Equity shares pursuant to the Issue.
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SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE

The following is a general summary of the terms of the Issue and is not exhaustive, nor does it purport to contain
a summary of all the disclosures in this Red Herring Prospectus or all details relevant to prospective investors.
This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed information
appearing elsewhere in this Red Herring Prospectus, including “Risk Factors”, “The Issue”, “Capital Structure”,

”

“Objects of the Issue”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”, “Financial Information”, “Outstanding Litigation
and Material Developments”, “Issue Procedure”, and “Description of Equity Shares and Terms of the Articles of
Association” on pages 29, 67, 87, 102, 122, 142, 210, 276, 313 and 356, respectively of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

a)

b)

¢)

d)

Summary of Business

We are engaged in the business of providing interior fit-out solutions, dedicated towards crafting
corporate & commercial spaces which includes corporate offices, research & development facilities,
laboratories, amongst others. Our services are focussed towards creating captivating and functional
spaces on a pan India level. We elevate the aesthetic and functional aspects of workspaces by delivering
interior fit-out solutions. Our solutions range from bare shell to fully furnished commercial spaces. Our
range of services include Design & Build services (“D&B”) and General Contracting (“GC”) services.

For further details, please refer chapter titled “Our Business” on page 142 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

Summary of Industry

The interior fit-out services segment within the construction space refers to the final stage of
development, where the internal spaces of buildings are customized and equipped according to the
client’s requirements. This segment covers a wide range of activities, including space planning, electrical
and mechanical installations, furnishing, and design elements, such as flooring, ceilings, and partitioning.
The objective is to convert bare spaces, typically known as “shell and core,” into functional areas. In
commercial real estate, interior fit-out services are vital for transforming offices, retail stores, and
hospitality spaces into operational environments that meet the specific needs of businesses.

For further details, please refer chapter titled “Industry Overview” on page 122 of this Red Herring
Prospectus

Name of Promoter
Promoter of our Company is Sameer Akshay Pakvasa, for detailed information on our Promoter and
Promoter’s Group, please refer to Chapter titled “Our Promoter and Promoter s Group” on page 202 of

this Red Herring Prospectus.

Issue Size

Issue® Issue of 60,05,000 Equity Shares of 210 each for cash at a price of ¥[®] per Equity
Share (including premium of X[ e] per Equity Share) aggregating to X [e] lakhs)

Out of which

Market Maker 3,01,000 Equity Shares of X[®] each fully paid-up of our Company for cash at a
Reservation price of X[e] per Equity Share (including premium of X[e] per Equity Share)
Portion aggregating to X[ e] lakhs.

Net Issue to the 57,00,000 Equity Shares of X[®] each fully paid-up of our Company for cash at a
Public price of X[e] per Equity Share (including premium of Z[e] per Equity Share)

aggregating to X [e] lakhs.
(1)  The Issue has been authorized by our Board pursuant to resolution passed at its meeting held on October 08, 2024, and the
Issue has been authorized by our Shareholders pursuant to a special resolution passed on October 11, 2024
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e)

The price band will be decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM and will be advertised
in all editions of the Financial Express (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper), all
editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and Marathi edition of Mumbai
Lakshdweep (a widely circulated Marathi daily newspaper, Marathi being the regional language of
Mabharashtra, where our registered office is located, each with wide circulation, at least 2 (two) Working
Days prior to the bid/ issue opening date with the relevant financial ratios calculated at the floor price
and the cap price and shall be made available to the EMERGE Platform of NSE (“NSE EMERGE,
referred to as the “““Stock Exchange™) for the purpose of uploading on their website for further details
kindly refer to chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 299 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

For further details, see “The Issue”, “Issue Structure”, and “Issue Procedure” on page 67, 308 and 313
of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Objects of the Issue
The fund requirements for each of the Object of the Issue are stated as below:

The details of the proceeds of the Issue are summarised in the table below:

Objects Amount (X in lakhs)
Gross proceeds of the Issue [e]
Less: Estimated Issue related expenses [e]
Net Proceeds of the Issue (Net Proceeds)* [e]

*To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC.

Utilisation of the Net Proceeds

Our Company proposes to utilise the Net Proceeds towards funding the following objects:

Sr. Objects of the Issue Amount

No. (X in lakhs)

I. Repayment of a portion of certain outstanding borrowings availed by our 2,500.00
Company

2. Utilization towards working capital requirements of our Company 3,000.00

3. General Corporate Purposes* [eo]

Total [e]

# To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC. The amount
utilised for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue

For further details, see “Objects of the Issue” on page 102 of this Red Herring Prospectus
Aggregate Pre-Issue shareholding of our Promoter and Promoter Group
As on date of this Red Herring Prospectus, the aggregate Pre-Issue shareholding of our Promoter and

Promoter Group, as a percentage of the Pre-Issue paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company is set out
below:

Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares Held Percentage of the
No. (Face value X10) Pre-Issue Equity
Share Capital (%)
Promoter
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1,55,88,379 93.94
Sub Total (A) 1,55,88,379 93.94
Promoter Group
1. Sonal Pakvasa 1 Negligible
Sub-Total (B) 1 Negligible
Total (A+B) 1,55,88,380 93.94
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g)

h)

Summary of Financial Statements

A summary of the financial information of our Company as per the Restated Financial Information is as

follows:

Particulars

Equity share capital
Net worth
Total revenue
Income)

Profit / (loss) after tax

Earning per Equity Shares (Basic &
Diluted)”

Net Asset value per Equity Shares
(in%)"

Total borrowings (including current
maturities of long-term borrowings)

(including other

Six month
period ended
September 30,
2024
1,659.46
7090.44
19,209.63

953.47
5.89

42.73

3,169.76

(% in lakhs, except per share data)

March 31,
2024

1,536.00
5,136.93
22,308.65

1,220.58
7.95

33.44

4,279.54

March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
96.00 96.00
3,916.35 2,885.21
19,117.14 15,534.26
1,031.13 509.38
6.71 3.32
25.50 18.78
2,822.77 2,262.05

*After considering sub-division of 1 Equity Shares of face value of T 100 each into 10 Equity Shares of 10 each and Bonus shares

issued in ratio of 15:1

The Company financials statements are available on website of Company at www.eleganz.co.in.

Qualifications of the Auditors which have not been given effect to in the Restated Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our Statutory Auditor has not made any qualifications in the examination report that have not been given

effect to in the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements.

Summary of Outstanding Litigation

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, our Directors, our Promoter
and our Subsidiaries as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus is provided below:

Name of Criminal Tax Statutory or  Material Civil Aggregate
Entity Proceeding Proceeding  Regulatory Litigation amount involved
Proceeding (X in Lakhs)

Company
By our Nil - - 2 441.33
Company
Against  our 1 11 Nil 2 824.70
Company
Directors
(Other than
Promoter)
By our Nil - - Nil Nil
Director
Against our 1 1 Nil Nil 0.75
Director
Promoter
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Promoter
Against  our 1 1 Nil Nil 0.22
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k)

Name of Criminal Tax

Entity Proceeding Proceeding
Promoter
Subsidiaries
By our Nil Nil
Subsidiaries
Against  our Nil Nil
Subsidiaries

Statutory or

Regulatory

Proceeding
Nil

Nil

Material Civil Aggregate
Litigation amount involved
(X in Lakhs)
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

For further details on the outstanding litigation proceedings, see “Outstanding Litigation and Material
Developments” on page 276 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Risk Factors

For further details, see “Risk Factors” on page 29 of this Red Herring Prospectus

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

The details of our contingent liabilities as at September 30, 2024 are set forth in the table below:

Particulars

a) Claims against the company not
acknowledged as debt;
Service Tax Appeal"

Service Tax Appeal (Penalty) (D

TDS dues as per TRACES Portal®
Maharashtra VAT Appeal FY 2015-16®
Mabharashtra VAT Appeal FY 2016-17%)
Maharashtra GST Assessment FY 2017-18@
Mabharashtra GST Assessment FY 2018-19 ¥
Maharashtra GST Assessment FY 2019-20
Income Tax Assessment AY 2020-21
Karnataka GST Assessment FY 2018-19¢)

b) Guarantees

Bank Guarantee

Letter of Credit

Guarantees given on Behalf of the Holding
Company©®

c¢) Other money for which the company is
contingently liable

Liquidated Damages by Premium Port
Lounge (PPL) "

Liquidated Damages by POSCO Maharashtra
Steel Pvt Ltd®

Total

For the period
ended September
30,2024

175.56
175.56
22.20

26.81
141.92
75.14
31.54

3,221.43
231.93

115.37

4,217.46

As at
31-03-2024

175.56
175.56
19.08

26.81

31.54

2,956.00
745.13

115.37

4,245.05

31-03-2023

175.56
175.56
21.88

26.81

31.54
0.81

1,368.95
389.78

155.35

2,346.24

(T in lakhs)

31-03-2022

175.56
175.56
30.67
47.01
14.97

574.5

155.35

1,173.62

(1)  As per order of Commissioner of Service Tax demand for service tax is Rs. 175.56 Lakhs u/s 73(1) v/w Sec 73(2) and Penalty
imposed is Rs. 175.56 Lakhs u/s 78. Company has deposited sum of Rs 13.17 Lakhs which is equal to 7.5% of tax amount as

per Sec. 83 of the Finance Act, 1994.

(2)  We are currently in the process of reconciling, rectifying, and revising the TDS returns. The liability shown on the TRACES
portal is under review and is primarily due to discrepancies that we have identified and are in the process of addressing.

(3) Maharashtra VAT appeal part payment done for FY 2015-16 Rs.2.22 lakh and FY 2016-17 Rs.0.81 lakh in FY 2020-21 as
per requirement for appeal proceeding. Maharashtra VAT Appeal for FY 2015-16 & 16-17 was paid in FY 2022-23 as per
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“4)
&
(©)
7)
e

)
(10)

Amnesty Scheme.

Maharashtra GST Assessment Order for FY 2017-18 of Rs. 26.81 Lakhs against which 1.26 Lakhs was paid and Stay order
received.

Maharashtra GST Assessment Order for FY 2018-19 of Rs. 141.92 Lakhs against which 6.41 Lakhs was paid deposit U/s
107(6)(b) of CGST Act, 2017

Maharashtra GST Assessment Order for FY 2019-20 of Rs. 75.14 Lakhs against which 3.17 Lakhs was paid deposit U/s
107(6)(b) of CGST Act,2017

Penalty amounting to Rs 0.81 Lakhs was levied by the authorities in GST Assessment Order for FY 2018-19 having
Assignment No. 120038269 not paid by Management.

Doshi Infrastructure Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) has given Corporate Guarantee on behalf of Eleganz Interiors
Limited (Holding Company) to HDFC Bank and Bank of Baroda for Cash & Non Cash Credit Facilities.

PPL Case has been disposed on July 14, 2024 and awarded in favour of company so there is no contingent liability.
POSCO Maharashtra Steel Pvt Ltd filed commercial dispute in Pune District Legal Service Authority against company for
Pre-institution mediation in terms of Section 124 of chapter IlIA of Commercial Court Act, 2015.

Summary of Related Party Transactions

A summary of the related party transactions for the six month period ended September 30, 2024 and
fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022 as per AS 18 - Related Party Disclosures read with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and derived from our Restated Financial Information is set out below:

Transaction during the period

Sr.
No.

(% in lakhs)
Name of Nature of Transaction For period FY 2023-24 FY 2022- FY 2021-
Related Party Ended 23 22
September 30,
2024
Remuneration 150.00 235.00 180.00 169.50
Loan Taken 11.40 341.00 215.00 135.00
Loan Repaid 280.05 352.36 205.00 82.00
i Shrs o was
Sameer Pakvasa -
Expenditure Incurred 2229 42.82 8.35 3.26
(Net)
gig:é‘;ii‘:em against 2229 44.17 492 533
Advances 13.23
Remuneration 30.30 64.38 65.10 31.20
Mayank Kumar Expenditure Incurred 210
Sharma (N?t) -
Reimbursement against
Expenditure 0.62
Professional Fee - 4.50 12.50 9.00
Rent - - - 0.55
Remuneration 21.00 16.00 - -
Sonal Pakvasa Expenditure Incurred 2.65 - 3.94 -
(Net)
Reimbursement against 2.65 - 3.94 -
Expenditure
Advances 0.21
Salary 36.00 21.00 - -
Archana Desai Equity Shares Issued 20.00 - - -
(Private Placement)
Rahul Sharma Salary 3.72 0.83 - -
SAR Universal ~ Rental charges - 33.23 2.60 -
Infra Private
Limited
Eleganz Investment - - 0.00* -
Interiors PTE Payable . - N -
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Sr. Name of Nature of Transaction For period FY 2023-24  FY 2022- FY 2021-

No. Related Party Ended 23 22
September 30,
2024
Limited Advance - - 2.42 -
Scavengers gi;ggndlture Incurred 0.23
8  Welfare
Foundation Reimbu_rsement against 0.23
Expenditure
Professional Fees 63.00 82.50 47.00 12.00
Remuneration - - - 20.00
Rent - - - 0.55
Advance Given 2.81 - 4.00 -
Akshay Advances Repaid 2.81
? Pakvasa Expenditure Incurred
3.86 14.88 6.30 0.60
(Net)
Reimbursement against 3.86 14.71 6.30 0.60
Expenditure
Gratuity - - 10.00 50.00
Aneesha Salas
10 g Y 15.00 22.50 - -
1 Narendra Professional Fees 12.80 6.00 ) )
Kumar Sharma
12 Tanmay Prasad  Salary 588 307 - -
Desai
13 Aishwarya _ Professional Fees 234
Tanay Desai
14  Shruti More Salary 4.59 3.06 - -
*(Amounts mentioned are below 1000)
II. Balance at end of the period
(R in lakhs)
Sr. Name of Nature of Transaction Amount (Receivable)/Payable
No.  Related Party as at as at as at as at
September March March 31, March
30, 2024 31,2024 2023 31,2022
1 Remuneration 20.00 1.50 - 10.50
Loan Taken - 268.64 280.00 270.00
Loan Repaid
Equity Shares Issued - - - -
Sameer Pakvasa  (Private placement)
Advances (13.23)
Expenditure Incurred (Net) - - 1.35 (2.08)
Reimbursement against
Expenditure
2 Remuneration 3.70 3.91 3.49 4.80
Mayank Kumar  Expenditure Incurred (Net) 1.48 - - -
Sharma Reimbursement against
Expenditure
3 Professional Fee - - 0.90 0.90
Rent - - - -
Remuneration 2.79 2.93 - -
Sonal Pakvasa Expenditure Incurred (Net) - - - -
Reimbursement against
Expenditure
Advances 0.21)
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n)

0)

Sr. Name of Nature of Transaction Amount (Receivable)/Payable

No.  Related Party as at as at as at as at
September March March 31, March
30, 2024 31,2024 2023 31,2022
4 Salary 4.63 2.48 - -
Archana Desai Equity Shares Issued - - - -
(Private Placement)
5 Rahul Sharma Salary 0.56 0.56 - -
6 SAR Universal Rental charges - 19.62 3.02 -
Infra Private
Limited
7 Eleganz Investment - - 0.00* -
Interiors PTE Payable 0.00* 0.00* - -
Limited Advance (2.78) (2.63) (2.42) -
8 Scavengers Expenditure Incurred (Net) - - - -
Welfare Reimbursement against - - - -
Foundation Expenditure
9 Professional Fees 10.26 7.62 - 2.24
Remuneration - - - -
Rent - - - -
Akshay Pakvasa Advanc.e Given - - (4.00) -
Expenditure Incurred (Net) 0.17 0.17 - -
Reimbursement against
Expenditure
Gratuity - - - -
10 Aneesha Salary - 3.01 - -
Shodhan
11. Narendra Kumar  Professional Fees 2.21 1.35
Sharma
12. Tanmay Prasad Salary 0.84 0.98
Desai
13 Aishwarya Professional Fees 0.41
Tanay Desai
14 Shruti More Salary 0.69 0.69

*(Amounts mentioned are below 1000)

For further details of the related party transactions, see “Restated Financial Information - Note 26
Restated Related Party Disclosure “on page 219 .

Financing arrangements

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoter, members of the Promoter Group or
our Directors and their relatives (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013) have financed the purchase by
any other person of securities of our Company (other than in the normal course of business of the
financing entity) during the period of six months immediately preceding the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

Weighted average price at which the Equity Shares were acquired by our Promoter in the one year
preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus

Sr. Name of Promoter No. of Equity Shares Acquired Weighted Average Price*
No. during the last one year (X per equity share)
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 2,28,704 81.00

* As certified by M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated January 29, 2025

Average Cost of Acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoter
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p)

qQ

r)

s)

Sr. Name of Promoter No. of Equity Shares held Average cost of acquisition per

No. Equity Share *
(X per equity share)
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1,55,88,379 1.77

* As certified by M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated January 29, 2025
Pre — IPO Placement

Our Company does not contemplate any issuance or placement of Equity Shares from the date of this
Red Herring Prospectus until the listing of the Equity Shares.

Issuances of equity shares made in the last one year for consideration other than cash

Our company has issued not issued any Equity Shares in the past one year for consideration other than
cash.

Our Company has not undertaken any split/consolidation of Equity Shares in the one year preceding the
date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

As on date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has not availed any exemption from complying
with any provisions of securities laws granted by SEBI
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SECTION II- RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of financial risk. Investors should carefully consider
all the information in this Red Herring Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before
making an investment in our Equity Shares. If any of the following risks, as well as other risks and uncertainty
discussed in this Red Herring Prospectus, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed
immaterial, actually occur, our business, results of operations, cash flow and financial condition could suffer, the
price of the Equity Shares could decline, any your may lose all or part of your investment. In making an investment
decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us and the terms of the Issue including the
merits and risks involved. Investors should consult their tax, financial and legal advisors about particular
consequences to them of an investment in the Issue. The risk factors set forth below do not purport to be complete
or comprehensive in terms of all the risk factors that may arise in connection with our business or any decision
to purchase, own or dispose of the Equity Shares. This section addresses general risks associated with the industry
in which we operate, and specific risk associated with our Company. However, there are certain risk factors where
the financial impact is not quantifiable and therefore, such financial impact cannot be disclosed in such risk
factors. Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the
financial or other implications of any of the risks described in this section.

To obtain a better understanding of our business, you should read this chapter in conjunction with other sections
of this Red Herring Prospectus, including the chapters titled “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Conditions and Result of Operations”, “Industry Overview” and “Financial Information”
on pages 142, 257, 122 and 210, respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus. Our actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the

considerations described below and elsewhere in this Red Herring Prospectus.

This Red Herring Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements, that involves risks, uncertainties and
other factors. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements, which may cause the actual results to be materially different from those expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements. For further details, see “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 19 of this RHP.

Unless otherwise stated, the financial information in this chapter is derived from our Restated Consolidated
Financial Statements for the period ended September 30, 2024 and financial years ended March 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022 as included in “Restated Financial Information” beginning on page 210 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

MATERIALITY

The Risk factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been
considered for determining the materiality:

. Some events may have material impact quantitatively;

. Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively;

. Some events may not be materiality individually but may be found material collectively;

. Some events may not be material at present but may not be having material impact in future.
BUSINESS RELATED RISKS

L INTERNAL RISKS

1. The number of orders we have received in the past, our current Order Book and our growth rate may

not be indicative of the number of orders we will receive in the future. Any delays in execution of our
orders expose us to time and cost overruns and variability in revenue, materiality and adversely
impacting our revenue from operations, cash flows, financial condition and cash flows

Our Order Book represents the aggregate value of contractual commitments that have been secured but
remain to be fulfilled by us. Further, our Order Book as of a particular date is calculated on the basis of
the aggregate contract value of our ongoing projects as of such date reduced by the value of work already
executed by us until such date. The manner in which revenues are derived to calculate and present our
Order Book is not similar to the manner in which our revenue from operations is accounted. For instance,
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we do not take into account any escalation for calculating the Order Book whereas escalations are
accounted for under our revenue from operations. The manner in which we calculate and present our
Order Book information may vary from the manner in which such information is calculated and presented
by other companies, including our competitors. The Order Book information included in this Red Herring
Prospectus is not audited and does not necessarily indicate our future earnings. Our Order Book should
not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for GAAP performance measures.

Our Order Book may be materially impacted if the time taken or amount payable for completion of any
ongoing orders of our Company exceeds the contractual estimate. The Order Book details as at March
31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and September 30, 2024 respectively, is set forth below:

(< in lakhs)
Particu As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 As at September 30,

lars 2022 2024
No of Order No of Order No of Order No of Order
Projects Book Projects Book Projects Book Projects Book
Total 35.00 16,677.39 33.00 10,202.56 47.00 14,287.57 51 22,202.14
Order
Book”

*All value mentioned above are Gross Values (inclusive of GST)

We cannot guarantee that the income anticipated in our Order Book will be realized or if realized, will
be realized on time or result in profits. The number of orders we have received in the past, our existing
Order Book and our historic growth rate may not be indicative of the number of orders we will receive
in the future. Although none of our contracts have been canceled by clients over the past three years and
six months period ended September 30, 2024, we cannot guarantee that this will not occur in the future.
However, in the event any order or contract is terminated prematurely by our clients, we cannot guarantee
that our Company will always receive applicable termination payments in time, or at all, or that the
amount paid will be adequate to enable our Company to recover its costs in respect of the prematurely
cancelled order. In such events, we may have to bear the actual costs for such production incurred by us,
which may exceed the agreed work as a result of which, our future earnings may be lower from the
amount of the Order Book and if any of the forgoing risks materialize, our cash flow position, revenues
and earnings may be adversely affected.

The completion of our orders involves various execution risks including delay or disruption in supply of
raw materials and finished products, unanticipated cost increases, force majeure events, time and cost
overruns, geo-political issues and operational hazards and therefore, we may not always be able to
execute our projects within the scheduled time. In the event of any disruptions while executing our
projects, due to natural or man-made disasters, workforce disruptions, fire, explosion, failure of
machinery, or any significant social, political or economic disturbances or civil disruptions in or around
the jurisdictions where such projects are located, our ability to execute our projects may be adversely
affected. While there have been no instances in the past where our operations were affected due to any
material disruptions, we cannot assure you that our operations will not be affected if any such disruptions
occur in future. Project delays, modifications in the scope or cancellations may occur from time to time,
due to delay in payments by our clients or due to our own defaults on account of delay in delivering the
order, incidents of force majeure, cash flows problems, regulatory delays, need for change in
measurements and estimates used by us and any other factors beyond our control. In view of the above,
projects can remain outstanding in the order book for extended periods of time due to the nature of the
project and the timing of the services required for completion of such projects. Delays in the completion
of a project for any reason whatsoever can lead to a delay in receiving our payments and thereby leading
to variability in revenue.

Delays in the execution of projects results in cost overruns and affects our payment milestones,
subsequently impacting our revenue recognition and exposing our business to variability in revenue
thereby creating an adverse impact on our revenue, financial condition and cash flows. We may not be
able to maintain and enhance our production capabilities within scheduled time or implement our
production plans effectively at all.
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We derive a significant portion of our revenues from repeat clients. Any loss of, or a significant
reduction in the number of repeat clients could adversely affect our business, results of operations,
financial conditions and cash flows.

We believe that our focus on completing projects in a timely manner along with meeting expected quality
requirements of our clients have helped us build strong relationships with our clients and bolster our
reputation in the industry in which we operate. We derive a significant portion of our revenue from repeat
clients for refurbishment of their office spaces as well as for new offices they may acquire. Set forth
below is our revenue from such repeat clients for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2022, March 31,
2023, March 31, 2024 and for the six month period ended September 30, 2024:

(< in lakhs)
Particular Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year Six month period
S ended March 31, ended March 31, ended March 31, ended September 30,
2022 2023 2024 2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue revenue revenu
e

Revenue 12,334.21 80.18%  13,463.25 70.76% 19,831.58  89.62% 11,776.83 61.31%
from

repeat

customer

Revenue 3,048.82 19.82% 5,562.60 29.24%  2,297.61 10.38% 7,432.80 38.69%
from first

time

customer

Total 15,383.03 100.00% 19,025.86 100.00% 22,129.19 100.00% 19,206.63 100.00%
Revenue

from

Operations

Though we do not have any long-term arrangement or agreement entered with our clients, we have
received additional projects from several of our existing clients despite increased competition in the
industry within which we operate. We have historically been dependent, and expect to depend, on such
repeat clients for a substantial portion of our revenue and the loss of any them for any reason (including
due to loss of, or termination of existing arrangement, limitations to meet any change in quality
specification, customization requirements, disputes with a client, adverse changes in financial condition
of our clients, such as possible bankruptcy or liquidation or other financial hardship, change in business
practices of our clients or a change in the corporate structure of such repeat client) could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. For further
details please refer to the “Our Business” on page 142 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from a limited number of clients. The loss of any
significant clients may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, and prospects.

We do not enter into long-term agreements with our clients. We rely on work orders to govern the terms
related to our projects. While we believe that our relationship with our clients has been built over time
and few of our clients have conferred the status of a preferred project partner on us, resulting in repeat
orders from such clients, our relationship with our clients is on a non-exclusive basis and accordingly,
our clients may choose to cease awarding new projects to us which exposes us to a significant increased
risk of client attrition. Absence of any long-term contracts or contractual exclusivity with respect to our
business arrangements with such clients poses a challenge on our ability to continue to serve these clients
in future. Further, the number of work orders that our clients place with us differ from period to period,
which has caused our revenues, results of operations and cash flows to fluctuate in the past and we expect
this trend to occasionally continue in the future.

For the Financial year ended March 31,2022, March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2024, and six month period
ended September 30, 2024, our revenue from top five (5) and top ten (10) clients are as follows:
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Particu Financial Year ended Financial Year ended  Financial Year ended Six month period

lars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 ended September 30,
2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue revenue revenue
Revenu 10,397.35  67.02% 9,731.61 51.15% 14,020.03 63.36% 10,001.36 52.06%
e from
top five
(5)
clients
Revenu 12,768.77 82.31% 13,439.2  70.64% 17,269.86 78.04% 14,744.16 76.75%
e from 2
top ten
(10)
clients

Note : We are unable to disclose the names of individual clients since this information is commercially sensitive to our business

Additionally, our clients have high and stringent standards for design and construction quality as well as
project completion schedules and any failure to meet our clients’ expectations and specifications could
result in cancellation of orders or the risk of the client not awarding any subsequent orders. For further
details please refer to the “Our Business” on page 142 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

We are significantly dependent on both skilled and unskilled labour for the execution of our projects
and for our Manufacturing Facility. Any disruption to the supply of such labour, or our inability to
control the composition and cost of our contract labor could adversely affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our operations are reliant on both workers directly employed by us and contract labours, particularly at
our project sites and labour-intensive process in our Manufacturing Facilities. We rely on independent
contractors for the supply of contract labour, as well as directly engaging workers depending on various
factors like location, size of the project, duration, availability, cost, etc. The number of labourers varies
from time to time based on the nature and extent of work involved in our on-going projects. The expenses
incurred by our Company towards our employees (comprising salaries and wages, staff welfare expenses
and contribution to the employees’ provident fund and other funds) for the six month period ended
September 30, 2024 and Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022 was X 538.54 lakhs, X 937.53 lakhs, X 713.24 lakhs
and X 678.17 lakhs, respectively.

Any disruption in this labour supply, particularly during peak periods such as festive seasons, or
challenges in managing the composition, availability, or cost of labour, could negatively affect our
business, financial condition, and cash flows. Further, though most of our labour is engaged through
manpower supply agencies, we may be held responsible for wage payments in the event of default by
such agencies. Recovering such payments from agencies can be delayed, thereby straining our cash
flows.

We depend on skilled talent across various functions to successfully execute projects and meet client
standards. Any inability to retain or attract such qualified personnel could negatively affect our
business operations.

Our success depends on attracting and retaining skilled employees across various functions. For instance,
we require skilled and trained architects and designers to prepare designs and walkthroughs for our D&B
projects. The competitive nature of our industry makes it challenging to secure and retain top talent, and
any inability to do so may adversely affect our business operations. Losing key employees, or failing to
recruit qualified personnel, could result in operational inefficiencies, project delays, and reduced quality
of services.

Moreover, our inability to retain experienced staff or implement effective succession plans could further

undermine our business continuity, resulting in potential disruptions and negatively impacting our
financial condition and overall performance
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We outsource certain operations of our business, such as transport, logistics and certain
manufacturing activities, to third parties. Any failure by such third parties to deliver their services
could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash

flows.

We engage third party logistics providers for our transportation needs and typically engage them on a
work order basis. These third-party service providers are responsible for ensuring that our transportation
carriers are performing as required. The freight and forwarding charges as a percentage of total expenses
for the financial years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and the six month period
ended September 30, 2024 respectively, are set below:

(< in lakhs)
Particul Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Six month period
ars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 ended September 30,
2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
total total total total
expenses expenses expenses expenses
Freight 67.45 0.45% 107.45 0.59% 91.95 0.44% 65.25 0.36%
and
transport
charges

We do not have formal contractual relationships with such transportation or logistic companies and
freight forwarders. We could be subject to, amongst others, transportation strikes that could hamper
supplies and deliveries to and from our clients and suppliers. Additionally, certain project materials are
also imported as per client specifications and any delays in the transportation of these materials whether
due to transport routes closure from conflicts, adverse weather or any other factors could lead to a delay
in supply of such materials. A failure to maintain a continuous supply of raw materials or to successfully
execute contracts or supply of finished products and raw materials as part of our contracts to our clients
or to the project site in an efficient and reliable manner could adversely impact our clients relationships.
We have not taken any insurance coverages for third-party logistic providers, and therefore, we may not
be able to cover the cost of any delays caused by such third-party logistic providers.

We may also be affected by an increase in fuel costs, as it will have a corresponding impact on freight
charges levied by our third-party logistic providers. We may not be able to transfer such increased costs
to our clients. While we have not experienced any such instances for the last three financial years ended
March 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 or for the six month period ended September 30, 2024 for which we
failed to meet our clients’ delivery schedules due to any fault of our third party logistics providers, there
is no assurance on the reliability of delivery by third party logistics providers, and any failure in meeting
our clients’ delivery schedules can impact our relationship with our clients. Any failure by such third-
party logistics providers to provide their services could have an adverse impact on our business, results
of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We outsource certain manufacturing activities in relation to our projects to third party manufacturers on
a job work basis. While we have quality assurance systems and infrastructure in place to allow us to meet
the different standards required by our clients, we have no direct control over our third-party
manufacturers. In the event of any failure to meet quality standards by our third-party manufacturers, we
have no legal recourse since we do not have indemnity from these third party manufacturers who supply
job workers to us. While there have not been any warranty claims made against our products and/or
execution works at project site for the last three financial years ended March 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 or
for the six month period ended September 30, 2024, outsourcing manufacturing processes may enhance
the risks of us failing to comply with quality standards which may lead to adverse effects on our
relationships with clients and lead to cancellation of existing or future orders.

Our business and profitability are dependent upon the availability and the cost of our fit-out materials
used in the projects and raw materials consumed in manufacturing process. Any disruption to the
timely and adequate supply of such materials, or volatility in the prices of such materials may adversely
impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
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Our cost of fit-out materials and raw materials, which consist of wood, glass, fabrics, mechanical,
electrical and plumbing (MEP) materials etc. in various descriptions constitutes a significant portion of
our total expenses. These materials are commodities and therefore subject to fluctuation in commodity
prices.

The table below sets forth details of our cost of material consumed, including a percentage of our total
expenses for the financial years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and the six
month period ended September 30, 2024respectively:

(< in lakhs)

Particula Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Six month period
rs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 ended September 30,
2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
total total total total
expenses expenses expenses expenses

Cost of 11,263.93 74.98% 15,020.06 83.14% 18,371.72 88.75% 14,750.06  82.15%
goods
consume
d

The table below sets forth details of raw material procured as compared to raw material consumed,
including percentage to total purchase for the financial years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2024 and the six month period ended September 30, 2024 respectively.

(% in lakhs)
Particular Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Six month period
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 ended September 30,
2024

Amount  Percentage = Amount Percentage = Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
Raw 152.20 2.96% 162.88 2.33% 355.65 3.81% 120.28 2.34%
material
return
Raw 4,995.15 97.04% 6,836.99 97.67% 8,983.11 96.19% 5,019.97  97.66%
material
consumed
Total 5,147.35 100.00% 6,999.87 100.00% 9,338.76  100.00% 5,140.25 100.00%
purchase

We procure such materials from third parties based on work orders and do not have continuing
arrangements with our suppliers. The absence of any long-term or continuing arrangements for firm
commitments of quantities at fixed prices and the need to maintain a continued supply of such materials
may make it difficult to resist price increases imposed by our suppliers. Also see, “Risk Factors - We
depend on third party suppliers for a steady supply of both, finished products and raw materials for
manufacturing furniture items. We do not have continuing or exclusive arrangements with any of our
suppliers. Loss of suppliers or any failure by our suppliers to make timely delivery of raw materials
may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.”
on page 35 of this Red Herring Prospectus. We are therefore exposed to volatility in the prices of our key
materials. Majority of our clients’ orders are based on fixed or pre-determined prices which makes it
difficult for us to pass on the increased price to our clients. While we seek to pass on the increase in cost
of raw materials to our clients, our cash flows may be adversely affected.

Some of our historical corporate records are not traceable.

Our Company was incorporated on April 18, 1996 and certain documents filed by us with the Registrar
of Companies (“RoC”) and certain corporate records and documents, are not traceable. The secretarial
records such as forms related to allotment of 1,980 Equity Shares of ¥ 100 each made by our Company
in the financial year 1996-97 and certain share transfer forms could not be traced as the relevant
information was not available in the records maintained by our Company, at the portal maintained by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the RoC.

These corporate records and form filings includes (i) Form SH-4 in relation to the share transfers
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undertaken by the certain shareholders of the Company on May 15, 2001 and January 3, 2004; (ii) Form
SH-4, board resolution, or any other supporting documents that pertains to the transfer of 5,760 shares
to Sameer Akshay Pakvasa; (iii) Form 7-B for the transfer undertaken by certain shareholders on May 2,
2005 and September 15, 2008; and (iv) Form 2 with respect of allotment of 1,980 Equity Shares during
the financial year 1996-1997. While we have conducted searches of our records at our Company’s offices,
on the portal maintained by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and office of RoC, Mumbai, we have not
been able to trace the aforementioned corporate records. In this regard, we have also relied on the
search report dated October 17, 2024 prepared by M. K Saraswat & Associates, a peer reviewed
practicing Company Secretaries, prepared on the basis their physical search of the documents available
with the Registrar of Companies and search of the information and records available on the portal of the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Further, we may not be able to furnish any further document evidencing
the aforesaid details. We have, however, submitted an intimation to RoC on October 14, 2024 in respect
of the missing and untraceable ROC filings. Accordingly, we have included the details of the build-up of
the share capital of the Company and the build-up of the Promoter’ shareholding in our Company in this
Red Herring Prospectus, by placing reliance on other corporate records such the resolutions passed by
the Board of Directors and Shareholders, wherever applicable and available. We cannot assure you that
we will not be subject to any legal proceedings or regulatory actions, including monetary penalties by
statutory authorities on account of any future inadvertent discrepancies in our secretarial filings and/or
corporate records in the future, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition and
reputation.

We depend on third party suppliers for a steady supply of both, finished products for installation at
project site and raw materials for manufacturing furniture items. We do not have continuing or
exclusive arrangements with any of our suppliers. Loss of suppliers or any failure by our suppliers to
make timely delivery of raw materials may have an adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We depend on third-party suppliers for supply of both, finished products for installation at the project
site and raw materials for manufacturing furniture items. We do not have continuing arrangements for
the supply of such finished products and raw materials and rely on work orders which set out the terms
and conditions in relation to quantity, pricing, scheduling and delivery details. Our key materials include
wood, fabrics, glass, furniture fittings, mechanical, electrical and plumbing (MEP) materials. Finding
readymade substitute suppliers for supplying such materials of exact specifications and on terms and
conditions acceptable to us may be challenging. Additionally, for project-specific installations, we
require suppliers for finished products like HVAC systems, electrical fittings, and various furniture
components, and finding suitable substitutes under similar conditions may also be difficult. Our purchase
orders for some of the items include indemnity clauses, though enforcing these claims can be challenging.
If any of these suppliers cease operations or decide to discontinue our supply relationship, or fails to
supply within the stipulated framework, we would need to find alternative suppliers, within a requisite
span of time. We may be unable to source our raw materials and finished products from alternative
suppliers on similar commercial terms and within a reasonable timeframe. Loss of any one or more of
our suppliers may adversely impact our production and eventually our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows. Interruption of, or shortage in the supply of raw materials required to
manufacture furniture items as required for the specific project, may also result in our inability to operate
our Manufacturing Facility at optimal capacities, leading to delays. While there have been no instances
where our suppliers have terminated their arrangements with us or discontinued to supply raw materials
for the last three Financial Years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and for the
six month period ended September 30, 2024, we may be unable to find suitable alternative suppliers in
the event our suppliers terminate their engagements with us or discontinue supply of raw materials or
finished products in the future. However, as we source materials from multiple suppliers for each item,
the associated risk is partially mitigated, reducing the potential impact.

Furthermore, as we do not have exclusive arrangements with our suppliers, our suppliers could be
engaged with or may in the future engage with our competitors and prioritize supplies of their other
clients, which could adversely impact our ability to procure a sufficient quantity of raw materials at
competitive rates.

The table below sets forth the contribution of our top 10 suppliers for the Financial Years ended March
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10.

31 2022, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 and for the six month period ended September 30, 2024
respectively:-

(< in lakhs)
Partic Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Six month period
ulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 ended September 30,
2024
Amount Asa% of Amount Asa% of Amount Asa% of Amount As a % of
purchases purchases purchases purchases

Top 5 1,796.84  13.63% 2,927.54  15.80% 3,560.37  15.92% 3051.56 18.34%

suppli
ers
Top 10  2,804.02  21.26% 4,745.68  25.61% 5,207.46 23.29% 4578.85 27.51%

suppli
ers

Further, the timely execution of our projects is also dependent on timely supply and delivery of raw
materials and finished products. We may face the risk of our suppliers not being able to deliver on time
and/or deliver requisite quantity or quality. In the event we are unable to find an alternative supplier at
short notice, this may affect our obligations towards our clients. While there have been no instances
during the last three Financial Years ended March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 and for the six month period
ended September 30, 2024 where there was a delay in the supply resulting in a material delay in the
execution of our projects, we cannot assure you that there would not be any such delays in the future.

While we have a diversified geographical presence, our projects have historically been concentrated
in the state of Maharashtra and any changes affecting the policies, laws and regulations or the
political and economic environment in the region may adversely impact our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We started our business operations primarily in the state of Maharashtra and expanded our operations in
the states of Karnataka, Gujarat, Haryana, Telangana, Tamil Nadu, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, and
Andhra Pradesh. As on September 30, 2024, our ongoing projects amounts to 43,486.33 lakhs out of which
41,728.89 lakhs representing 37 of our ongoing projects are concentrated in the state of Karnataka,

Mabharashtra and Tamil Nadu.

Following is the state wise revenue break-up & contribution of the Company for six month period ended

September 30, 2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022:
(< in lakhs)

Name of For the period Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
State ended September
30, 2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of

revenue revenue revenue revenue
Mabharashtra 8,978.66 46.74%  12,602.34  56.95% 9,909.81 52.09% 4,614.50 30.00%
Karnataka 5,616.85 29.24% 3,379.23 15.27% 3,891.83 20.46% 5,540.86 36.02%
Gujarat 323.40 1.68% 2,500.35 11.30% 2,579.21 13.56% 401.93 2.61%
Haryana 1,105.17 5.75% 689.20 3.11% 294.61 1.55% 19.04 0.12%
Telangana 687.67 3.58% 675.75 3.05% 708.85 3.73% 993.60 6.46%
Tamil Nadu 315.89 1.64% 172.54 0.78% 941.26 4.95% 840.17 5.46%
grt;?iresh 1.01 0.01% 20.38 0.09% 436.71 2.30% 2,829.93 18.40%
21232;’1? 1,011.60  527%  1,00843  4.56% 140.23 0.74% - 0.00%
?r‘;‘ézgi 1,102.89  5.74% 108097  4.88% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Rajasthan - 0.00% - 0.00% 123.34 0.65% 143.00 0.93%
Goa 66.50 0.35%
Total 19,209.63 100.00% 22,129.19 100.00% 19,025.86 100.00% 15,383.03 100.00%

Our Order Book as on December 31, 2024 categorised on the basis of geographical location is as follows:
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12.

(< in lakhs)

Name of State Number of Contract Value* Order Book* Percentage of
Projects Order Book
Karnataka 9 21,044.02 6,898.12 15.86%
Maharashtra 23 36,981.68 28,575.82 65.71%
Tamil Nadu 5 6,509.52 6,254.95 14.38%
Telangana 4 1,819.86 874.41 2.01%
Madhya Pradesh 1 1,487.88 284.17 0.65%
Gujarat 2 367.58 198.39 0.46%
Haryana 1 791.74 117.50 0.27%
Andhra Pradesh 1 1,569.38 267.97 0.62%
Uttar Pradesh 1 18.01 14.99 0.03%
Total 47 70,589.66 43,486.33 100%

*All value mentioned above are Gross Values (inclusive of GST)

Whilewe continuously endeavour to expand our geographical presence, the concentration of our business
in above-mentioned states may subject us to various risks, including but not limited to; (i) vulnerability
to change of palicies, lawsand regulations or the political and economic environment of respective states,
(i) interruptions on account of regional instability, adverse climatic condition or force majeure, etc.; (iii)
perception by our potential clients that we are a regional interior fit-out solutions provider company,
may hamper us from competing or securing orders for large and complex projects at the nationa level;
(iv) regional dowdown in corporate business activities in those states. While we have and we further
strive to diversify across states and reduce our concentration risk, there can be no assurance that the
above associated factors will not have an adverse impact on our business. If we are unable to mitigate
such concentration risk, we may not be able to develop our business effectively and our business
operations, financial condition and results of operation could be adversely affected

Any downgrade in our credit ratings could increase our borrowings costs, affect our ability to obtain
financing, and adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our bank facilities are domestically rated by Acuite Ratings (“Acuite”). Furthermore, Acuite has on
December 02, 2024 assigned its long term rating of ACUITE BBB- (read as ACUITE Triple B minus)
and short-term rating of ACUITE A3 (read as ACUITE A three). Any downgrade in our credit ratings
could increase borrowing costs and adversely affect our access to capital and debt markets, which could
in turn adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In addition,
any downgrade in our credit ratings could increase the probability that our lenders impose additional
terms and conditions to any financing arrangements we enter into in the future, impair our future
issuances of debt and equity, and our ability to raise new capital on a competitive basis, which may
adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. While our ratings
have not been downgraded during the last three financial years ended March 31, 2022, 2023 and 2023
and for the six month period ended September 30, 2024 any downgrade in our credit ratings could
increase our borrowing costs, affect our ability to obtain financing, and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We have certain contingent liabilities which, if materialized, may adversely affect our financial
condition.

Our contingent liabilities as derived from our Restated Financial Information that have not been provided
for in our results of operations were as follows:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the period As at
ended September  31-03-2024 31-03-2023  31-03-2022
30,2024

a) Claims against the company not
acknowledged as debt;
Service Tax Appeal” 175.56 175.56 175.56 175.56
Service Tax Appeal (Penalty) () 175.56 175.56 175.56 175.56
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Particulars For the period As at
ended September  31-03-2024 31-03-2023  31-03-2022
30,2024

TDS dues as per TRACES Portal® 22.20 19.08 21.88 30.67
Mabharashtra VAT Appeal FY 2015-16¢ - - - 47.01
Mabharashtra VAT Appeal FY 2016-17%) - - - 14.97
Maharashtra GST Assessment FY 2017-18® 26.81 26.81 26.81 -
Mabharashtra GST Assessment FY 2018-19 ¥ 141.92
Maharashtra GST Assessment FY 2019-20 75.14
Income Tax Assessment AY 2020-21 31.54 31.54 - -
Karnataka GST Assessment FY 2018-190) - - 0.81 -
b) Guarantees
Bank Guarantee 3,221.43 2,956.00 1,368.95 574.5
Letter of Credit 231.93 745.13 389.78 -
Guarantees given on Behalf of the Holding
Company©®
¢) Other money for which the company is
contingently liable
Liquidated Damages by Premium Port - - 155.35 155.35
Lounge (PPL) 7
Liquidated Damages by POSCO Maharashtra 115.37 115.37 - -
Steel Pvt Ltd®
Total 4,217.46 4,245.05 2,314.70 1,173.62

(1) As per order of Commissioner of Service Tax demand for service tax is Rs. 175.56 Lakhs u/s 73(1) r/w Sec 73(2) and
Penalty imposed is Rs. 175.56 Lakhs u/s 78. Company has deposited sum of Rs 13.17 Lakhs which is equal to 7.5% of tax
amount as per Sec. 83 of the Finance Act, 1994.

2) We are currently in the process of reconciling, rectifying, and revising the TDS returns. The liability shown on the TRACES
portal is under review and is primarily due to discrepancies that we have identified and are in the process of addressing.

3) Maharashtra VAT appeal part payment done for FY 2015-16 Rs.2.22 lakh and FY 2016-17 Rs.0.81 lakh in FY 2020-21 as
per requirement for appeal proceeding. Maharashtra VAT Appeal for FY 2015-16 & 16-17 was paid in FY 2022-23 as per
Amnesty Scheme.

4) Maharashtra GST Assessment Order for FY 2017-18 of Rs. 26.81 Lakhs against which 1.26 Lakhs was paid and Stay order
received.

) Maharashtra GST Assessment Order for FY 2018-19 of Rs. 141.92 Lakhs against which 6.41 Lakhs was paid deposit U/s
107(6)(b) of CGST Act, 2017

(6) Maharashtra GST Assessment Order for FY 2019-20 of Rs. 75.14 Lakhs against which 3.17 Lakhs was paid deposit U/s
107(6)(b) of CGST Act,2017

(7) Penalty amounting to Rs 0.81 Lakhs was levied by the authorities in GST Assessment Order for FY 2018-19 having
Assignment No. 120038269 not paid by Management.

4) Doshi Infrastructure Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) has given Corporate Guarantee on behalf of Eleganz Interiors
Limited (Holding Company) to HDFC Bank and Bank of Baroda for Cash & Non Cash Credit Facilities.

) PPL Case has been disposed on July 14, 2024 and awarded in favour of company so there is no contingent liability.

(10)  POSCO Maharashtra Steel Pvt Ltd filed commercial dispute in Pune District Legal Service Authority against company
for Pre-institution mediation in terms of Section 124 of chapter I1IA of Commercial Court Act, 2015.

If a significant portion of these liabilities materialize, we may have to fulfil our payment obligations,
which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Furthermore, there can be no assurance that we will not incur similar or increased levels of contingent
liabilities in the current Financial Year or in the future. For further details of contingent liabilities, see
“Restated Financial Information —Restated Consolidated Summary Statement Of Contingent Liabilities ”
on page 210 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our clients do not commit to long-term or continuing contracts and may cancel or modify their orders
or postpone or default on their payments. Any cancellation, modification, payment postponement or
payment default in regard to our order book could materially harm our cash flow position, revenues
and earnings.

We do not have any long-term or continuing agreements with our clients and rely on work orders and or
contracts entered into from time to time, that set out the terms of our projects. Further, certain work orders
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and contracts also permit our clients to unilaterally terminate such orders, with or without cause and if
such cancellation takes place, it may have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows. Our pricing terms, payment cycles and permitted adjustments are
generally set out in advance in our work orders. Majority of our purchase work and contracts does not
provide price escalation provisions and are fixed rate contracts and we may not be able to
renegotiate/reset prices set out, in the event of significant unanticipated changes in, for instance,
fluctuations in the price of materials. Due to committed delivery schedules at a pre-agreed price, we may
not be able to adequately adjust our inventory and raw material costs in the event of an unanticipated
change or cancellation in orders from our clients and we may, therefore, in certain events, incur additional
costs that we are unable to pass through to our clients or be required to write off certain expenses.

We may encounter problems executing an order from a client in accordance with the requirements of the
clients on a timely basis. Due to the possibility of orders not being placed, cancellations or modifications
i.e., changes in scope and schedule of orders, which is typically at the discretion of our clients, or reasons
beyond our control or the control of our clients, we cannot predict with certainty when, if or to what
extent a project or contract will be performed. Further, any delay in the completion of an order could also
lead to clients delaying or refusing to pay the due amount, in part or full. These payments often represent
an important portion of the revenue we expect to earn on an order. In addition, even where an order
proceeds as scheduled, it is possible that our clients may default in payment or otherwise fail to pay
amounts owed. While there have been no instances in the last three financial years ended March 31,
2022, 2023 and 2024 or for the six month period ended September 30, 2024where any of our clients have
defaulted in payment or cancelled their orders which had a material adverse impact on our business and
operations, we cannot assure you that any default or cancellation in due payment by our clients in the
future. Any cancellation, modification, payment postponement or payment default in regard to our order
book could materially harm our cash flow position, revenues and earnings.

Further, these work orders and contracts provide for payment of liquidated damages for delay in delivery
and quality issues and we may also be required to indemnify clients against losses occurring as a result
of defective products or rectify such defects. Also see, “Risk Factors — If the furniture products
manufactured and delivered by us, experience quality defects or if the services we provide as part of
our contracts with our clients are found to be deficient, we may lose our clients and may be subjected
to product liability claims or claims alleging deficiency in service, which may also cause damage to
our reputation and/or adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.” on page 39. Our relationships with clients are therefore dependent to a large extent on our ability
to meet clients’ requirements, including price competitiveness, efficient and timely deliveries and
consistent quality. In the event we are unable to meet such requirements in the future, it may result in a
decrease in orders or cessation of business from such affected clients.

Furthermore, there is no assurance that clients will continue to place orders with us at volumes or rates
consistent with, and commensurate to, the amount of business received from them historically, or at all.
As a result, we may need to source business from new clients.

If the furniture products manufactured and delivered by us, experience quality defects or if the services
we provide as part of our contracts with our clients are found to be deficient, we may lose our clients
and may be subjected to product liability claims or claims alleging deficiency in service, which may
also cause damage to our reputation and/or adversely affect our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

Our business depends on manufacturing, design and on-site project management capabilities for the
installation and execution of fit-outs and interior works and on us successfully executing our contracts
and handing over the completed site to our clients. Usually, the loose furniture such as tables, doors,
storage units etc. are manufactured at our Manufacturing Facilities under stringent quality control. Since
we typically provide warranties ranging from 1 to 3 years for the products manufactured by us, and also
warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of hand-over, any defects including in
relation to design, materials and workmanship, may also cause us to incur significant repair costs under
our work orders. We may be unable to obtain warranties for a similar period from our suppliers for the
raw materials used in our products. We may have to incur significant costs to address such defects
including having to pay damages claimed by clients, if any. Further, the recurrence of such problems may
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result in the delay or loss of market acceptance of our products, which may cause damage to our
reputation and/or adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
This could in turn require considerable resources in rectifying the defects and could adversely affect the
demand for our products. Further, any defect in our products or our inability to comply with the quality
parameters may lead to the cancellation of existing orders by our clients and in certain instances may
even impose additional costs in the form of product liability thereby causing damage to our reputation
and/or adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
Additionally, there have been no warranties claims made against them during the period for six month
period ended as on September 30, 2024 and financial year ended as on March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.

There have been some instances of delay and discrepancies with respect to filing of certain forms with
the Registrar of Companies in the past, which may be subject to regulatory actions and penalties.

There has been certain instances of secretarial irregularities and discrepancies in our Company, such as
delay in filing of (i) Form MGT-14 for resolution passed by our Board of Directors on May 07, 2016 for
revision in remuneration payable to Managing Director under section 196, 197, 203 of the Companies
Act 2013; (ii) Form MGT-14 for resolution passed by our Board of Directors on March 10, 2024 for
issuance of 12,34,626 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10 each; (iii)) Form ADT-1 for approval of
appointment of our auditor, M/s Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP by the shareholders on September 29,
2017 under section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013; (iv) Form MGT-7 for filing of annual return under
section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2019.

Further, our Company had approved the subdivision of one Equity Shares of ¥ 100 each into 10 Equity
Shares of X 10 each vide shareholders’ resolution dated July 22, 2023. However, while filing Form MGT-
7 for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, our Company has inadvertently mentioned number of
Equity Shares with face value of X 10 each.

We have also obtained a search report dated October 17, 2024 from M.K. Saraswat & Associates, a peer
reviewed practising Company Secretaries in relation to the said discrepancies and errors. Although, no
regulatory action has been taken on our Company for the abovementioned purported delayed, however,
it cannot be assured that no such regulatory action, will be taken in the future. Further, we cannot assure
you that such non-compliances will not occur in the future. Therefore, if the concerned authorities impose
monetary penalties on us or take certain punitive actions against our Company or its directors/ officers
in relation to the same, our business and financial condition could be adversely affected.

In 2021, our Company incorporated a company in Singapore, Eleganz Interiors PTE Limited, in which
our Company holds 50% shareholding. The investment of SGD 1 was made by a Company Secretary
appointed in Singapore to whom remittance was made by our Company. The Company has made an
attempt to file form FC but the authorised dealer has expressed its concern to accept the form. As such,
our Company has not been able to file form FC for this overseas investment.

Our business is working capital intensive. If we experience insufficient cash flows or are unable to
access suitable financing to meet working capital requirements and loan repayment obligations, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our business requires significant working capital in order to finance the purchase of raw materials and
furnishing of bank guarantees. Working capital is also required for mobilization of other project related
resources, including fit-out materials and labour, and for other work on projects before payment is
received from our clients. Further, the actual amount for our future working capital requirements may
differ from estimates due to inter alia unanticipated expenses and cost overruns which we may face
during the ordinary course of business. The net working capital requirements of our Company i.e, total
current assets less total current liabilities on a standalone basis as per audited standalone financial
statements for financial years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 and for the
six month period ended September 30, 2024 respectively is set forth below:

(% in lakhs)
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Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at September

2022 2023 2024 30,2024
Net working 1,994.57 3,162.87 4,189.35 5,673.02
capital
requirements

Since the contracts we intend to secure typically involve a lengthy and complex cost derivation and
selection process, it is difficult to predict whether or when a particular contract will be awarded to us. As
a result, we may need to incur expenses in anticipation of contract awards, which may not eventually
materialize, and finance such expenses by incurring additional indebtedness. Our working capital
requirements may increase in the future if we undertake larger or additional projects or projects with a
long gestation period, if payment terms do not include advance payments or if contracts have payment
schedules that shift payments towards the end of a project or otherwise increase our working capital
burden.

Currently, we meet our working capital requirements through a mix of internal accruals, working capital
facilities from banks and funds raised by way of private placement of Equity Shares. We also propose to
utilize a portion of our Net Proceeds to fund our working capital requirements. For further details, please
see “Objects of the Issue” on page 102. However, delays in our billing and settlement process, delays or
defaults in our trade and other receivables, an increase in inventory and work in progress, accelerated
payments to suppliers, or an increase in bank guarantees requirements could adversely affect our working
capital, lower our cash flows and materially increase the amount of our working capital requirements.
Our future success depends on our ability to continue to secure and successfully manage sufficient
amount of working capital. If we are unable to manage our working capital requirements, our business,
results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected. We cannot assure that we will be able
to effectively manage our working capital. Should we fail to effectively implement sufficient internal
control procedures and management systems to manage our working capital and other sources of
financing, we may have insufficient capital to maintain and grow our business. While there have been no
instances for the last three financial years ended March 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 and for the six month
period ended September 30, 2024 where we had faced working capital deficit, we cannot assure that we
will be able to adequately maintain our working capital requirements. If we experience insufficient cash
flows to meet our working capital requirements, our business, results of operations and cashflows could
be adversely affected.

We have negative cash flows from operating activities in the past and may experience earnings declines
or operating losses or negative cash flows from operating activities in the future.

The following table sets forth certain information relating to our cash flows for the six month period
ended September 30, 2024, fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022:

(R in lakhs)
Particulars For the six Fiscal 2024  Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
months period
ended
September 30,
2024
Net cash generated from/ (used in) 2,224.72 (364.82) 134.68 (578.38)
operating activities
Net cash generated from/ (used in) (341.32) (190.39) (272.27) 146.72
investing activities
Net cash generated from/ (used in) (308.78) 1,108.09 336.50 301.74
financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and 1,574.62 552.87 198.91 (129.92)

cash equivalents

Cash flow from operating activities: During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Company had
negative cash flow from operating activities of X (364.82) lakh primarily due to increase in the overall
working capital requirement by X (1,977.96) lakhs and income tax payment of X (465.08) lakhs against
operating cash profit of ¥ 2078.21 lakhs.
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During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Company had negative cash flow from operating
activities of X (578.38) lakhs primarily due to increase in the overall working capital requirement by X
(1,106.80) lakhs and income tax payment of X (398.51) lakhs against operating cash profit of X 926.93
lakhs

Cash flow from investing activities: During the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023, the Company had spent an amount of X 234.76 lakhs and X 287.88 lakhs, respectively towards
fixed assets due to which the cashflow for financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
had been negative by % (190.39) lakhs and X (272.27) lakhs, respectively

We have sustained negative cash flow from operating activities in past, primarily attributable to increase
in trade receivables, payment towards trade payables, payment of mobilisation advances, etc. We have
sustained negative cash flow from investing activities in past, attributable to increase in fixed assets,
investment made in shares and securities, advance paid for investment in properties, etc.

For further details see, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result of
Operations - Cash Flows” on page 266 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

There can be no assurances that cash flows will be positive in the future thereby creating an adverse
impact on our ability to meet working capital expenditure, repay loans without raising finance from
external resources. If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flows, it may adversely affect our
business and financial operations.

Further, we had faced a negative free cash flow to equity in past one out of three years. The following
table sets forth certain information relating to our free cash flow to equity for the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and
2022.

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating (364.82) 134.68 (578.38)
activities
Less: Capital expenditure (215.32) (277.07) (24.61)
Add: Net borrowings 1456.77 560.72 497.55
Less: Interest (net of tax) (264.59) (219.99) (195.21)
Net increase / (decrease) in free cash flow to 612.04 198.35 (300.65)
equity

There can be no assurances that free cash flow to equity will be positive in the future thereby creating
an adverse impact on our ability to meet the requirement for being available free cash flow for distribution
to Equity Shareholders without raising new equity from existing / external resources. If we are not able
to generate sufficient free cash flow to equity, it may adversely affect our ability to distribute free cash
flow to Equity Shareholders.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue through tenders and e-auctions. Failure to secure
contracts through tenders and e-auctions could adversely affect our business, profitability, and
financial condition. Further, we are required to meet specific technical and financial eligibility criteria
to participate in project bidding processes. Failure to satisfy these criteria may result in
disqualification from e-auction or tendering opportunities, potentially limiting our ability to secure
new contracts and adversely affecting our business growth and revenue streams.

A significant portion of our business is dependent on contracts secured through tenders and e-auctions.
The nature of these processes is highly competitive, and the outcomes are uncertain, which presents
inherent risks to our ability to consistently secure new projects. Factors such as fluctuating market
conditions, pricing competition, stringent qualification criteria, and evolving client preferences could
reduce our chances of winning bids. If we are unable to secure a sufficient number of contracts through
these processes, our order book and revenue generation may be adversely affected, impacting our
business, financial condition, and cash flows. Disclosure of tender based and non-tender based revenue
bifurcation on gross value basis for the last three financial years and stub period.
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(X in lakhs)

Particul Period ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
ar September 30, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount* % of Amount* % of Amount* % of Amount* % of

revenue revenue revenue revenue

Non 19.33 0.09% 3.58 0.01% 104.76 0.47% 21.23 0.12%

Tender

Tender 22,332.03 9991% 25,307.76 99.99%  22,337.38 99.53%  18,135.26 99.88%

Grand 22,351.35 100% 25,311.34 100.00% 22,442.14 100.00% 18,156.49 100.00%

Total

*The Value disclosed are on gross basis (Inclusive of GST)

Moreover, participation in tenders and e-auctions often requires us to meet the lowest price benchmarks,
which can place significant pressure on our profit margins. Our average bid to success ratio primary lies
in the range of 13% to 21%. Winning contracts at highly competitive prices may require us to operate
under tighter margins, which could diminish profitability. Additionally, delays in project awards or
cancellations of tender or e-auction processes due to factors outside our control could also affect our
project pipeline and overall business performance. If we are unable to secure an adequate volume of
contracts through tenders and e-auctions in the future, it may have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations and financial health.

Our ability to successfully bid for projects is contingent upon meeting specific technical and financial
eligibility criteria established by clients and governing bodies. These criteria are designed to ensure that
only qualified entities participate in the bidding process, reflecting the required standards of capability,
experience, and financial stability.

Failure to satisfy these eligibility requirements could result in disqualification from e-auction or
tendering opportunities, significantly restricting our ability to secure new contracts. Such disqualification
not only hinders our growth potential but also adversely impacts our revenue streams, as the loss of
project opportunities could lead to decreased market share and diminished competitiveness within the
industry.

We need to furnish advance bank guarantees, retention bank guarantees and performance bank
guarantees to our clients. Any contractual default on our part may result in invocation of the Bank
Guarantees, claims and payment of liquidated damages, which could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We are required to furnish advance bank guarantees, retention bank guarantees and performance bank
guarantees (collectively, “Bank Guarantees”) to our clients on a case to case basis for: (i) taking advance
payments for our orders; (ii) performance guarantees in relation to the completion of our projects; and
(iii) retention bank guarantees for make good any defects arising during defect liability period. Following
are the amount of Bank Guarantees as per restated consolidated financial statements which were issued
by the Company as at March 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 and September 30, 2024:

Following are the amount of Bank Guarantees as per restated consolidated financial statements which
were issued by the Company as at March 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 and September 30, 2024:
(Z in lakhs)

Particulars As at March As at March 31, As at March As at September 30,
31,2022 2023 31,2024 2024
Bank Guarantees 574.5 1,368.95 2,956.00 3,221.43
Total Revenue 15,383.03 19,025.86 22,129.19 19,209.63
Total Bank Guarantee 3.73% 7.20% 13.36% 16.77%*

to percentage to sales
*Not Annualized hence not comparable
These Bank Guarantees subsist typically till the completion of the project or completion of defects
liability period, as may be agreed with the client. In the event any of the Bank Guarantees furnished by
or on behalf of our Company, are invoked or if we are unable to meet our guarantees requirements, then
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legal proceedings may be initiated against us, or we may incur additional costs. Further we are
responsible for the quality of the fit outs executed by us at the project site and we are also required to
complete the projects within a stipulated schedule. Any delay or failure to adhere to a contractually agreed
schedule of completion could result in payment of liquidated damages for the period of such delay. While
there have been no instances for the last three Financial Years ended March 2022, 2023, 2024 and for the
six month period ended September 30, 2024, where Bank Guarantees have been invoked, we cannot
guarantee that our Bank Guarantees will not be invoked or that work orders/ contracts will not be
terminated on grounds of default in the future or that we would be able to deliver our projects within the
stipulated timelines. The existence, or even a threat of a major liability claim could damage the reputation
of our Company and affect our clients’ views of our services. Any contractual default on our part may
result in the invocation of Bank Guarantees, claims and payment of liquidated damages, which could
adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

The inability of our design team to develop cost-effective solutions for our projects could negatively
impact our profit margins. Additionally, failure to create designs that align with current trends and
market relevance may adversely affect our business, operational results, financial condition, and cash

flows.

The success of our business is significantly dependent on the ability of our design team to develop
creative, functional, and cost-effective solutions tailored to each project’s unique requirements. Should
our design team be unable to consistently deliver solutions that meet the desired quality standards within
budgetary constraints, it could lead to higher production and project costs, negatively impacting our profit
margins.

In addition to cost-efficiency, keeping pace with design trends and market preferences is essential for
maintaining relevance in the highly dynamic industry in which we operate. The preferences of clients
and market trends can shift rapidly, and the failure to produce designs that align with these changes could
result in a loss of business opportunities. Clients may seek out competitors who offer more relevant or
innovative design solutions, leading to a potential decline in client satisfaction, order volumes, and
overall market share.

Moreover, our ability to adapt to the latest design trends has a direct influence on our brand reputation
and positioning in the market. If we are unable to deliver cutting-edge or trend-responsive designs, it
could result in reduced demand for our products and services, affecting both short-term and long-term
business performance. Consequently, this could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition, cash flows, and overall business sustainability.

In addition to executing projects on a contracting basis, we also undertake sub-contracting projects,
which may involve additional conditions and requirements. Failure to comply with these conditions
could result in early termination or penalties imposed by the contractor, potentially adversely affecting
our cash flows, business operations, and financial performance.

In addition to our primary contracting activities, we also engage in sub-contracting projects, which often
involve additional conditions and requirements that may differ from our standard contractual agreements.
These sub-contracting arrangements are typically governed by specific terms set forth by the primary
contractor, and adherence to these terms is essential for the successful execution of the projects.

Following is break-up of projects undertaken by the Company on contracting as well as sub-contracting
basis:

(R in lakhs)
Particulars For Six months Financial Year ended  Financial Year ended  Financial Year ended
period ended March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
September 30, 2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue revenue revenue
Revenue 15,437.59 80.36% 16,708.87 75.51% 13,869.57 7290%  5,954.08 38.71%
earned as
Contractor
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Particulars For Six months Financial Year ended Financial Year ended  Financial Year ended

period ended March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
September 30, 2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue revenue revenue

Revenue 377204 19.64%  5,420.32 24.49%  5,156.29 27.10%  9,428.94 61.29%
earned as
sub-
contractor
Total 19,209.63 100.00% 22,129.19 100.00% 19,025.86 100.00%  15,383.0: 100.00%
Revenue
from
Operations

Failure to comply with the stipulated conditions of subcontracting could result in severe repercussions,
including early termination of the sub-contract or the imposition of financial penalties by the primary
contractor. Such outcomes could adversely affect our cash flows, disrupt our operational efficiency, and
compromise our overall financial performance. While there have been no instances of failure on our part
to adhere with the contractual provisions while undertaking a subcontracting project for the financial
years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and for the six month period ended
September 30, 2024, we cannot assure you that such instances will not occur in the future.

We have, in the past, entered into related party transactions and we may continue to do so in the future.

As of September 30, 2024, we have entered into a few related party transactions, which are in compliance
with the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, such as transaction involving director’s
remuneration, reimbursement of expenses, issuance of equity shares, payment of professional fees and
rent, amongst others. In addition, we have also entered into transactions with other related parties in the
past. We confirm that the transactions with Related Parties entered into by our Company in the preceding
three years have been carried out at arms’ length price and are not prejudicial to the interest of our
Company.

We set out below the percentage of therelated party transactionsin terms of revenuefor six month period ended
September 30, 2024 and financial year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022.

(X In lakhs)
Particular For six-month ~ Financial year Financial year Financial
period ended ended 2024 ended 2023 year ended
September 30, 2022
2024
Revenue From Operation. 19,209.63 22,129.19 19,025.86 15,383.03
Related Party Transactions 921.17 1,302.86 777.37 519.59
Related ~ paty — Transactions 4.80% 5.89% 4.09% 3.38%
percentage to the revenue

While we confirm that all our related party transactions have been conducted on an arm’s length basis
and as per the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, we cannot assure you that we may not
have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions been entered into with unrelated parties.
There can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or taken together, will not have an adverse
effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition, including because of
potential conflicts of interest or otherwise. In addition, our business and growth prospects may decline if
we cannot benefit from our relationships with them in the future. For further details, see “Summary of
the Issue Document - Summary of Related Party Transactions” and “Restated Financial Information”
on page 25 and 210 of this Red Herring Prospectus

There are outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoter and Directors. Any
adverse outcome in such legal proceedings may adversely affect our business, reputation, results of

operations, financial condition and cash flows.

There are outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoter and Directors, which are
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pending at various levels of adjudication before various courts, tribunals and other authorities. The
summary of outstanding matters set forth below includes details of criminal proceedings, tax
proceedings, statutory and regulatory actions and other material pending litigation (as defined in the
section “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on page 276 involving our Company,
Promoter and Directors.

(T in lakhs)
Name of Criminal Tax Statutory or Material Civil Aggregate amount
Entity Proceeding Proceeding Regulatory Litigation involved
Proceeding

Company
By our Nil - - 2 441.33
Company
Against our 1 11 Nil 2 824.70
Company
Directors
(Other  than
Promoter)
By our Director Nil - - Nil Nil
Against our 1 1 Nil Nil 0.75
Director
Promoter
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Promoter
Against our 1 1 Nil Nil 0.22
Promoter
Subsidiaries
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Subsidiaries
Against our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Subsidiaries

Further, except as disclosed in “Qutstanding Litigation” on page 276. We do not have any other pending
litigations against our Company, Promoter, Directors and Subsidiaries.

If any of any future litigations are decided against our Company, we may need to make provisions in our
financial statements that could increase our expenses and current liabilities. In this regard, we may be
subject to penalties and regulatory actions including the suspension of our business. There can be no
assurance that these litigations will be decided in favour of our Company or in the favour of our Promoter
or Directors and such proceedings may divert management time and attention and consume financial
resources in their defence or prosecution. An adverse outcome in any of these proceedings may affect
our reputation, standing and future business, and could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The property used by the Company for the purpose of its Manufacturing Facility and warehouses are
not owned by us. Any termination of the relevant lease or leave and license agreement in connection
with such property or our failure to renew the same could adversely affect our operations.

We currently operate our Manufacturing Facility and warehouses located at Vasai, Maharashtra which
are not owned by us. We have obtained these properties on leave and license basis. Periodic renewal s of
such leases may increase our costs, since it is subject to rent escalation. Any termination of the lease in
connection with this property or our failure to renew the same, especially on favourable conditions, in a
timely manner or at al could adversely affect our operations. For details regarding our Manufacturing
Facility, please see — “Our Business— Our Properties” on page 167 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

We might have to undertake smaller, relatively low-profit projects in order to establish and maintain
business relationships with both new and existing clients. Such low-profit projects may result in
inefficient allocation of resources or cause a strain on our working capital requirements and other
resources.
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To establish and maintain business relationships with both new and existing clients, we may find it
necessary to undertake smaller, relatively low-profit projects. While these projects can help strengthen
client connections and foster goodwill, they may also impose significant strain on our working capital
and other resources.

Taking on such projects could limit our ability to allocate resources effectively to more profitable
ventures, thereby impacting our overall financial performance. Additionally, the lower margins
associated with these projects may not adequately compensate for the resources expended, resulting in
diminished profitability and potential cash flow challenges.

Furthermore, the time and effort dedicated to managing these lower-margin projects could detract from
our focus on higher-value opportunities, ultimately hindering our growth potential and operational
efficiency. As a result, while pursuing these projects may be necessary for relationship-building, it also
introduces risks that could adversely affect our financial health and strategic objectives.

Our inability to collect receivables and defaults in payment from our clients could result in the
reduction of our profits and affect our cash flows.

We receive payments in parts as per the terms of the work orders or contracts entered into with our clients.
Our business depends in part on our ability to successfully obtain payments from our clients for products
and services provided under our work orders and contracts. While we typically limit the credit we extend,
we may still experience losses in the vent our clients are unable to pay. As a result, while we maintain an
allowance for doubtful receivables for potential credit losses based upon our historical trends and other
available information, there is a risk that our estimates may not be accurate. While there have been no
material bad debts for the financial years ended March 2022, 2023, 2024 and for the six month period
ended September 30, 2024, we cannot assure you that we would not have any bad debts in the future.
The table below sets forth details of our trade receivables and provision for bad debts, as at and for the
period ended as set out below:

(T in lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30,
2024

Gross value of 2,966.06 3,614.21 4,785.46 5,715.93
Trade receivables
Less: Provision - 7.15 4.37 2.21
for Bad Debts
Net value of 2,966.06 3,607.06 4,781.10 5,713.72
Trades
Receivables

If we are unable to collect client receivables or if the provisions for doubtful receivables are inadequate,
it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of
operations.

There may be potential conflict of interest if our Promoter or Directors get involved in any business
activity that competes with or are in the same line of activity as our business operations.

There can be no assurance that our Promoters or members of the Promoter Group will not compete with
our existing business or any future business that we may undertake or that their interests will not conflict
with ours. Any such future conflicts could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business,
results of operations and financial condition, which may affect our profitability and results of operations.

Failure or any disruption of our information technology systems, may adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We have implemented information technology (“IT”) systems such as Tally ERP and ProjectBase that
cover our operations, inventory, sales and accounting. We also use certain software such as ZW CAD,
3DS Max, Corona, Sketchup and Vray for project design. We rely on our IT systems for the timely
execution of our projects. IT systems are potentially vulnerable to damage or disruptions from a variety
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of sources, including those resulting from natural disasters, power outages, cyber-attacks, failures in
third-party- provided services or a range of other hardware, software and network problems, which could
result in a material adverse effect on our operations or lead to disclosure of sensitive company
information. While there have been no instances in the past of any material disruption to our IT systems,
we cannot guarantee that we will not be impacted by a disruption to our IT systems in the future. A
significant or large-scale malfunction or interruption of one or more of our IT systems could adversely
affect our ability to keep our operations running efficiently and affect product availability, particularly in
the region or functional area in which the malfunction occurs.

Any failure or disruption in the operation of these systems or the loss of data due to such failure or
disruption (including due to human error or sabotage) may affect our ability to plan, track, record and
analyze work in progress and sales, process financial information, meet business objectives based on IT
initiatives such as product life cycle management, manage our creditors, debtors, manage payables and
inventory or otherwise conduct our normal business operations. In addition, we may be required to incur
significant costs to protect against damage caused by such attacks or disruptions in the future or failure
by us to comply with Indian or foreign laws and regulations, including laws and regulations regulating
privacy, data protection or information security, which may increase our costs and otherwise materially
adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Regulatory, legislative or self-regulatory developments regarding privacy and data security matters
could adversely affect our ability to conduct our business and impact our financial condition.

Several domestic and international laws and regulations address privacy and the collection, storing,
sharing, use, disclosure, and protection of certain types of data. These laws, rules, and regulations evolve
frequently, and their scope may continually change, through new legislation, amendments to existing
legislation, and changes in enforcement. Changes in laws or regulations relating to privacy, data
protection, and information security, particularly any new or modified laws or regulations, or changes to
the interpretation or enforcement of such laws or regulations that require enhanced protection of certain
types of data or new obligations with regard to data retention, transfer, or disclosure, could increase our
operating expenses and have an adverse impact on our financial condition

As part of our Company’s operations, it is required to comply with the Information Technology Act, 2000
and the rules thereof, which provide for civil and criminal liability including compensation, fines, and
imprisonment for various offences. These include offences relating to unauthorized access to computer
systems, damaging such systems or modifying their contents without authorization, unauthorized
disclosure of confidential information and commission of fraudulent acts through computers. In April
2011, the Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology notified the Information Technology
(Reasonable Security Practices and Procedures and Sensitive Personal Data or Information) Rules, 2011
(IT Personal Data Protection Rules) under Section 43A of the Information Technology Act, 2000 and
again in February 2021 notified the Information Technology (Intermediary Guidelines and Digital Media
Ethics Code) Rules, 2021 (Intermediary Guidelines) under Section 87 of the Information Technology Act,
2000. The IT Personal Data Protection Rules prescribe directions for the collection, disclosure, transfer,
and protection of sensitive personal data. The Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023, which was
recently promulgated on August 11, 2023, requires companies that collect and deal with high volumes of
personal data to fulfil certain additional obligations such as appointment of a data protection officer for
grievance redressal. Our Company may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance
with such new requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources,
and any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects.

While there has not been any instance of data leakage in the last three years, our failure to adhere to or
successfully protect the privacy of our customers could result in legal liability or impairment to our
reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our Company has not availed a cyber risk insurance, and the absence of such insurance may affect our

business operations, if we become subject to a cyberattack, leading to leakage of precious customer data,
future projects and the fees we charge our customers.
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Our contracts typically include provisions allowing our clients to withhold certain portions of the total
payment following project completions. Any failure to recover such retained payments could adversely
impact our cashflows and availability of working capital.

Our contracts typically include provisions allowing clients to withhold 5-10% of the total payment for a
period ranging from 12 to 36 months following project completion. This retention amount is intended to
ensure project quality and compliance with contractual obligations. However, if such withheld payments
are not realised it could impact our cash flow and working capital availability during this retention period.
Additionally, clients may arbitrarily deduct amounts from the retained payments, further exacerbating
the risk to our financial condition. Any delay or failure in receiving these retained amounts from clients
could adversely affect our liquidity and overall business operations. While there have been no such
instances of non-payment of the amount retained by our clients for the financial years ended March 2022,
2023, 2024 and for the six-month period ended September 30, 2024, we cannot assure you that such
instances would not occur in the future.

Quoting for a contract involves various management activities such as detailed project study and cost
estimations. Inability to accurately estimate the cost may lead to a reduction in the expected rate of
return and profitability estimates.

Prior to providing a quotation or bid for a particular project, we undertake various activities such as
discussion on the scope of work, geographic location of the project, the degree of complexity in executing
the project in such location, our current and projected workload, the likelihood of additional work, cost
of materials / consumables, availability of labour the contract value and profitability estimates and our
competitive advantage relative to other likely vendors. For details, see “Our Business — Business
Operations” on page 152 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Accordingly, all of the quoted amounts in our submission to client are based on estimates of the contract
value, the fluctuation of which, either marginally or substantially, may impact our margins adversely.
Further, we may incorrectly or inadequately estimate the contract value leading to lower quotation
amount affecting our profitability in case the project is awarded to us. Our actual expense in executing a
project may vary substantially from the assumptions underlying our quotation for various reasons,
including, unanticipated increases in the cost of construction materials, fuel, labour or other inputs,
unforeseen construction conditions, including the inability of the client to obtain requisite environmental
and other approvals resulting in delays and increased costs, delays caused by local weather conditions
and other suppliers’ failures to perform. Our ability to pass on increases in the purchase price of raw
materials and other inputs may be limited in the case of contracts with limited or no price escalation
provisions and we cannot assure you that these variations in cost will not lead to financial losses to us.
Excess estimation of costs may lead to higher quoted amount by us owing to which, we may not be
awarded a contract which may substantially impact our results of operations and financials.

We may not be able to optimally utilize our installed manufacturing capacity
Following is the summary of our installed capacity and capacity utilization for our manufacturing unit

for the six month period ended September 30, 2024 and financial years ended March 31, 2024, March
31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Products UOM Annual Installed Annual Capacity
Capacity Production Utilization (%)

Fiscal 2022

Flush Doors Nos. 1,800 325 18.06 %
Pressed laminated sheets on ply and Nos. 9,720 1,480 1523 %
MDF

Pelmets / Window Sill Nos. 10,800 3,200 29.63 %
Tables Nos. 200 100 50.00 %
Storages Sq. Mtrs. 4,833 2,062 53.84 %
Fiscal 2023

Flush Doors Nos. 1,800 490 27.22 %
Pressed laminated sheets on ply and Nos. 9720 5,600 57.61 %
MDF
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Products UOM Annual Installed Annual Capacity

Capacity Production Utilization (%)
Pelmets / Window Sill Nos. 10,800 6,500 60.19 %
Tables Nos. 200 150 75.00 %
Storages Sq. Mtrs. 4,833 4,126 85.37 %
Fiscal 2024
Flush Doors Nos. 1,800 620 34.44 %
Pressed laminated sheets on ply and Nos. 9,720 7,200 74.07 %
MDF
Pelmets / Window Sill Nos. 10,800 7,800 72.22 %
Tables Nos. 200 177 85.50 %
Storages Sq. Mtrs. 4,833 4219 87.30 %
For period ended September 30, 2024
Flush Doors Nos. 900 280 31.11%
Pressed laminated sheets on ply and Nos.
MDF 4,860 2,685 55.25%
Pelmets / Window Sill Nos. 5,400 2910 53.89%
Tables Nos. 100 82 82.00%
Storages Sq. Mtrs. 2,416 2,130 88.16%

*as certified by Sanjay Suresh Ranade, Chartered Engineer, vide his certificate dated January 21, 2025

Our actual capacities may not reach their installed capacity. Under-utilization of our manufacturing
capacities over extended periods, or significant under-utilization in the short-term, could materially and
adversely impact our business, growth prospects and future financial performance on account of the
constant overhead costs associated with our business. For details on our manufacturing capacities, see
“Our Business” on page 142 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

We have incurred indebtedness, and our inability to obtain further financing or meet our obligations,
including financial and other covenants under our dent financing arrangements could adversely
affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

As on September 30, 2024, out total indebtedness (including non-fund based limits) stood at X 6391.19
lakhs. Our ability to obtain financing is subject to a variety of uncertainties, including our financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows and liquidity of global capital and ending markets. Further,
financing may not be available in a timely manner or in amounts or terms acceptable to us, or at all.
Further, if we are required to raise equity financing, this could result in dilution to our Shareholders.
While as on date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any outstanding unsecured
loans, in the event we avail any unsecured loans in the future, there would be a possibility where such
loans could be recalled by the lender at any time. If any lender seeks repayment of any such loan, our
Company will need to find alternative sources of financing, which may not be available on commercially
reasonable terms, or at all. Our inability to obtain further financing could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Further, our Promoter, Sameer Akshay Pakvasa
and our subsidiary Doshi Infrastructure Private Limited, have given personal and corporate guarantees
respectively in relation to certain borrowings availed by our Company. If these guarantees are revoked,
our lenders may require alternative guarantees or collateral or the cancellation of such facilities, entailing
repayment of amounts outstanding under such facilities. If we are unable to source alternative guarantees
to the satisfaction to our lenders, we may need to seek alternative sources of capital, which may not be
available to us at commercially reasonable terms or at all and which may limit our operational flexibility.
Accordingly, our business, results of operations and cash flows may be adversely affected by the
revocation of the personal and corporate guarantees provided by our Promoter and Subsidiary.

Our financing agreements contain certain restrictive covenants. Our company is required to obtain prior
approval from certain of our lenders inter alia for amending and/or modifying the constitutional
documents and for approaching the capital markets for mobilizing additional resources in the form of
either debt of equity. We have obtained necessary consents from our lenders, as required under the
financing agreement, for the Issue related actions. Any failure in the future to satisfactorily comply with
any condition or covenant under our financing arrangements may lead to termination of one or more of
our credit facilities or immediate repayments of our credit facilities, any of which may adversely affect
our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Although we have not defaulted
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on our financial obligations and have been in compliance with the covenants in the past, we cannot assure
you that we will be able to comply with all such financial obligations and covenants in the future. Further,
we have granted security interests over certain of our assets, including charge on our properties including
our registered office, certain immovable fixed assets and current assets to secure our borrowings and any
failure to satisfy our obligations under such borrowings could lead to the forced sale and seizure of such
assets, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.
For further details of our indebtedness, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 270 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

Our insurance policies may not be adequate to cover all losses incurred in our business. An inability
to maintain adequate insurance cover to protect us from material adverse incidents in connection with
our business may adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash

flows.

Our operations are subject to certain hazards which if not insured could adversely affect our business and
results of operations. We maintain insurance coverage that we consider customary in the industry against
certain operating risks. Our insurance policies include contractor all risk policy, vehicle insurance,
udyam suraksha policy for building, furniture & fixtures, electrical fittings, plant & machinery, other
equipment, stock, stock in trade, finished goods and raw materials insurance. We also have employee
compensation insurance and fire insurance. We also have professional indemnity insurance to protect
ourselves from any possible harm. Further, when we undertake a project, we are contractually obligated
to obtain insurance coverage for the specific sites. For details of insurance policies maintained by us, see
“Our Business — Insurance” on page 164 of this Red Herring Prospectus. We cannot assure you that the
renewal of these insurance policies in the future will be granted in a timely manner, at an acceptable cost
or at all. In our experience, the amount of insurance currently maintained by us represents an appropriate
level of coverage required to insure our business and operations.

Our insurance may not be adequate to completely cover any or all our risks and labilities. There can be
no assurance that any claim under the insurance policies maintained by us will be honored fully, in part
or on tie, or that we have taken out sufficient insurance to cover all our losses. Our inability to maintain
adequate insurance cover in connection with our business could adversely affect our operations and
profitability. While we have not faced any such instances for the financial years ended March 31, 2022,
March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and for the six month period ended September 30, 2024 which led to a
material adverse effect on our business or operations, if our losses significantly exceed or differ from our
insurance coverage or cannot be recovered through insurance in the future, our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected. To the extent we suffer loss
or damage as a result of events for which we are not insured, or for which we did not obtain or maintain
insurance, or which is not covered by insurance or exceeds out insurance coverage or where our insurance
claims are rejected, the loss would have to be borne by is and our results of operations, financial
performance and cash flows could be adversely affected. If insurance coverage, client indemnifications
and/or other legal protections are not available or are not sufficient to cover risks or losses, it could have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Information relating to installed capacities, historical production and capacity utilization of our
Manufacturing Facility included in this Red Herring Prospectus is based on various assumptions and
estimates by the chartered engineer verifying such information and future production and capacity
utilization may vary.

Information relating to our installed capacities, historical production and capacity utilization of our
Manufacturing Facilities is based on various assumptions and estimates by Sanjay Suresh Ranade,
Chartered Engineer, vide his certificate dated January 21, 2025, including but not limited to those relating
to the number of working days in a week, working days in the financial year and the number of shifts per
working day. Such assumptions and estimates may not continue to be true and future production and
capacity utilization may vary. Calculation of the installed capacities and historical production and
capacity utilization of our Manufacturing Facilities by the independent chartered engineer may not have
been undertaken on the basis of any standard methodology and may not be comparable to that employed
by competitors. For details on our installed capacity and capacity utilisation, see “Our Business -
Capacity and capacity utilization” on page 58 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

51



36.

37.

Historically, a substantial portion of our revenue has come from General Contracting services with
smaller contributions from the Design and Build (D&B) services. As we seek to broaden our focus in
the D&B services, any failure to execute these projects with the same efficiency and quality as our
traditional offerings, or an inability to attract sufficient demand, could adversely affect our project
delivery, client satisfaction, and ultimately our financial performance.

Historically, our company has generated a substantial portion of its revenue from General Contracting
services, with smaller contributions from the Design and Build (D&B) services. For the financial years
ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2024, General Contracting services and Design
and Build services contributed to our total revenue as follows:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Six month period
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 ended September 30,
2024
Amount Asa % Amount Asa % Amount Asa % Amount  As a % of
of of of revenue
revenue revenue revenue
General 13,270.4 86.27%  15,350.2 80.68%  20,420.0 92.28%  13,503.68 70.30%
Contracting 8 8 9

Services

Design &  2,112.55 13.73%  3,675.58 19.32% 1,709.10 7.72% 5,705.95 29.66%
Build
services

Total 15,383.03 100.00%  19,025.86 100.00%  22,129.19 100.00%  19,209.63 100.00%
Revenue

from

Operations

For details regarding the General Contracting services and the Design and Build services, please see
“Our Business” on page 147 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

We have recently begun expanding into the Design and Build (D&B) segment which involves a more
integrated approach to project delivery, from conceptual design to construction and quality assurance.
While we see significant growth potential in this segment and aim to increase the share of D&B projects
in our portfolio, there are inherent risks associated with this transition.

We aim to grow the Design and Build services and may face operational challenges such as managing
more complex project scopes, adhering to stricter timelines, and balancing design innovation with cost
control. Unlike the traditional General Contracting services, D&B projects require a greater degree of
client collaboration, advanced project management, and integrated execution across multiple disciplines.
If we are unable to execute D&B projects with the same level of efficiency and quality as our traditional
offerings, or if we fail to attract sufficient demand in this segment, it could negatively impact our project
delivery, client satisfaction, and ultimately, our financial performance.

Moreover, as we transition towards a higher volume of D&B projects, there is a risk of resource strain,
both in terms of manpower and financial capacity. Scaling our operations to meet the demands of this
segment may require additional investment in technology, skilled personnel, and operational
infrastructure. If we are unable to make these adjustments successfully or if our D&B projects do not
yield the expected returns, our profitability and overall financial condition may be adversely impacted.

The life cycle of majority of our projects typically ranges from 2 to 6 months, making it challenging
to make accurate long-term projections

The life cycle of majority of our projects typically ranges from 2 to 6 months, which is relatively short
which can create challenges in making accurate long-term projections regarding revenue, resource
allocation, and strategic planning. The short duration of our projects may lead to volatility in cash flow
and operational efficiency, as we continually transition between various projects and clients.
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Moreover, the inability to secure a consistent pipeline of projects may hinder our capacity to forecast
future performance accurately. Fluctuations in project demand, unexpected delays, or changes in client
requirements can further complicate our ability to establish reliable long-term strategies. As a result, this
unpredictability could adversely affect our financial stability, resource management, and overall business
growth.

A significant portion of our contracts are structured as fixed-rate contracts. If we are unable to
effectively manage our cost in fixed-rate contracts, they may result in significant financial losses and
adversely affect our overall business stability and growth prospects.

A significant portion of our contracts are structured as fixed-rate agreements, which present inherent
risks that can affect our financial performance. While fixed-rate contracts allow for predictable revenue
streams, they also expose us to potential cost overruns and unforeseen expenses. If project costs exceed
our initial estimates due to factors such as material price fluctuations, labor shortages, or unanticipated
project complexities, our profit margins may be adversely impacted. Further, claiming such additional
costs from the clients incurred due to modifications or unforeseen expenses for the project site is
challenging and may give rise to disputes with our client.

Additionally, fixed-rate contracts limit our ability to adjust pricing in response to changes in market
conditions or project requirements. If we encounter increased costs during the project lifecycle, we may
have limited recourse to recover those expenses, leading to financial strain. Furthermore, fixed-rate
agreements may require us to allocate significant resources to project management and oversight to
ensure that we adhere to the agreed-upon budget and timeline.

This emphasis on cost control can impact our operational flexibility and ability to respond to new
opportunities or changing client needs. If we are unable to effectively manage our fixed-rate contracts or
if they result in significant financial losses, it could adversely affect our overall business stability and
growth prospects.

The following table provides the details of the revenue from fixed rate contracts and revenue from other than fixed
rate contracts for financial year ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and for the period ended
September 30, 2024:

(R in lakhs)
Particular For period ended For period ended For period ended For period ended
September 30, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue revenue revenue

Fixed rate 18,992.19 98.87% 21,609.06 97.65% 18423.78 96.84% 14,83858 96.46%
contract

Other than 217.44 1.13% 520.13 2.35% 602.08 3.16% 544.45 3.54%
fixed rate

contract

Total 19,209.63 100.00% 22,129.19 100.00% 19,025.86 100.00% 15,383.03 100.00%
revenue

from

operations

We may be unable to detect, deter and prevent all instances of fraud or other misconduct committed
by our employees which may have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Fraud or misconduct by our employees such as leaking of confidential information in relation to our
contracts and sales, unauthorized business transaction, bribery, breach of any applicable law or our
internal policies could result in regulatory actions and litigation thereby creating an adverse impact on
our business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Although we have
controls in place with respect to the handling of such cases, we may be unable to prevent, detect or deter
all such instances of misconduct. While there have been no instances in the last three financial years
ended March 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 and for the six month period ended September 30, 2024 of any
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such fraud or misconduct committed by our employees under, we cannot assure you that our employees
will not commit any fraud or other misconduct in the future. Further, we may not be able to identify non-
compliance and suspicious transactions in a timely manner. Any such misconduct committed against our
interests, which may include past acts that have gone undetected or future acts, may have a material
adverse effect on our business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We are dependent on our Promoter, Directors, Key managerial Personnel and members of Senior
Management, including other employees with technical expertise. Any loss or our inability to attract
or retain such person could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows.

We are dependent on our Promoter, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and members of Senior
Management for strategic business decisions and managing our business. We benefit from the industry
experience, vision and guidance of our Promoter, who is also our Chairman & Managing Director, and
has extensive experience in the industry in which we operate. Additionally, our Key Managerial
Personnel and members of senior management team includes technically qualified and experienced
professionals. The experience and leadership of our Promoter, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
members of senior management has played a key factor in our growth and development. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to retain them or find adequate replacements in a timely manner, or at all,
if required. Any loss or interruption in the services of our Key Managerial Personnel or members of
senior management could significantly affect our ability to effectively manage our operations and to meet
our strategic objectives. The loss of the services of any key personnel or our inability to recruit or train a
sufficient number of experienced personnel or our inability to manage the attrition levels in different
employee categories may have an adverse effect on our financial results and business prospects. Further,
if we are unable to offer qualified personnel adequate compensation, we may be unable to attract or retain
our employees and the competition for highly skilled personnel may require us to increase salaries and
which increased costs which we may be unable to pass on to our clients.

In addition, we could incur additional expenses and need to devote significant time and resources to
recruit and train replacement personnel, which could further disrupt our business operations, growth and
prospects. Our ability to meet continued success and future business challenges depends on our ability
to attract, recruit and train experienced, talented and skilled professionals. Recruiting and retaining
capable personnel, particularly those with expertise and experience in our industry, including in the
regions we operate are vital to our success. If we are unable to recruit, train and retain a sufficient number
of these employees, then our ability to maintain our competitiveness and grow our business could be
negatively affected. Any loss of, or our inability to attract or retain, such persons could adversely affect
our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. If we are unable to attract and
retain qualified personnel, our results of operations may be adversely affected. Further, should our
Promoters’ involvement in our business reduce for any reason in the future, our business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects may be adversely affected.

Attribution rate for the six month period ended as on September 30, 2024and financial year ended as on
March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

Particular Financial year Financial year  Financial year Six month
ended March 31, ended March ended March period Ended
2022 31, 2023 31, 2024 September 30,
2024

Permanent 45 56 65 66

Employees

Employees resigned 4 3 9 5

during the year

Attrition Rate 8.89% 5.36% 13.85% 7.58%

Our funding requirements and the deployment of Net Proceeds are based on management estimates
and have not been independently appraised. Any variation in the utilisation of Net Proceeds of the
Issue as disclosed in this Red Herring Prospectus shall be subject to compliance requirements,
including prior shareholders’ approval.
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We propose to utilize the Net Proceeds as stated under “Objects of the Issue” on page 102 of this Red
Herring Prospectus. As per section 27 of the Companies Act, the objects of utilization of the Net Proceeds
from the Issue as disclosed in this Red Herring Prospectus can only be varied after obtaining the
shareholders’ approval vide a special resolution. In the event, the Company wishes to vary the objects
for which the Net Proceeds from the Issue are required to be varied, our Company may not be able to
obtain the Shareholders’ approval in a timely manner, or at all. Any delay or inability to obtain such
Shareholders’ approval may adversely affect our business or operations. Therefore, we may not be able
to undertake variation of Objects of the Issue to use any unutilized proceeds of the Issue, if any, even if
such variation is in the interest of our Company. This may restrict our ability to respond to any change
in our business or financial condition, and thus, adversely affecting our business and results of operations.

Further, our Promoter would be required to provide an exit opportunity to Shareholders who do not agree
with our proposal to change the Objects of the Issue or vary the terms of such contracts, at a price and
manner as prescribed by SEBI. Additionally, the requirement on Promoter to provide an exit opportunity
to such dissenting shareholders may deter our Promoter from agreeing to the variation of the proposed
utilisation of the Net Proceeds, even if such variation is in the interest of our Company. Further, we
cannot assure you that the Promoter or the controlling shareholders of our Company will have adequate
resources at their disposal at all times to enable them to provide an exit opportunity at the price prescribed
by SEBI. In light of these factors, we may not be able to undertake variation of Objects of the Issue to
use any unutilized proceeds of the Issue, if any, or vary the terms of any contract referred to in this Red
Herring Prospectus, even if such variation is in the interest of our Company. This may restrict our
Company’s ability to respond to any change in our business or financial condition by redeploying the
unutilised portion of Net Proceeds, if any, or varying the terms of contract, which may adversely affect
our business and results of operations.

If we fail to obtain, maintain or renew the licenses, permits and approvals required to operate our
business, or fail to comply with applicable laws, our business, results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows may be adversely affected.

Our business requires us to obtain and renew from time to time, certain approvals, licenses, registrations
and permits. Certain of our approvals, licenses, registrations and permits are subject to expiry in the
ordinary course of business and once they expire, we cannot guarantee that we will receive the renewed
approvals in a timely manner or at all. Further, once we undertake a project, we are required under the
contracts and the relevant laws to obtain approvals from authorities at various stages of such projects.
Failure by us to renew, maintain or obtain the required permits or approvals at the requisite time may
result in the interruption of our operations and may have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Further, the approvals, licenses, registrations and permits issued to
us may be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any
terms or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action. While there have been no instances in
the past where any approvals, licenses, registrations and permits issued to us were suspended or revoked,
we cannot assure you that the relevant authorities would never suspend or revoke any of our approvals,
licenses, registrations and permits. For further details please refer to the “Government and Other
Statutory Approvals’ on page 282 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

There are certain instances of delays in payment of statutory dues. Any delay in payment of statutory
dues or non-payment of statutory dues in dispute may attract financial penalties from the respective
government authorities, which may have an adverse impact on our financial condition and cash flows.

Our Company is required to pay certain statutory dues including in relation to our Company’s employees
including the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and professional
taxes. The table below sets out details of the delays in statutory dues payable by our Company for the
years indicated:
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(< in lakhs)

Nature of Entity September Financial Year Financial Year Financial year
Payment 30, 2024 2024 2023 2022
Provident Company 0.25 - - 0.68
Fund Subsidiary - - - -
Total 0.25 - - 0.68
Employee Company 0.02 - - -
state Subsidiary - - - -
fnsurance Total 0.02 - - -
Professional Company - 0.44 0.33 0.14
taxes Subsidiary - - - .
Total - 0.44 0.33 0.14
Labour Company - 0.31 0.05 0.32
welfare Subsidiary - - - -
gllgfges Total - 0.31 0.05 0.32
Goods and Company 45.57 90.39 248.06 142.45
services tax Subsidiary _ _ _ _
Total 45.57 90.39 248.06 142.45
Taxes Company 49.53 26.23 15.57 32.27
deducted or  Subsidiary - - - -
collected at  Total 49.53 26.23 15.57 3227

source

There has been some delay in filing provident fund returns, professional tax, labour welfare fund charges,
goods and service tax and taxes deducted or collected at source, and it has been rectified by filing the
respective returns with late fees and applicable interest as mandated by respective law / act.

The delay in payment of aforesaid statutory dues were on account of oversight by the accounts team and
administrative overview, however the same has been subsequently paid. The Company is taking steps to
adhere to the timelines and to ensure that such delays do not take place in the future. The Company has
also implemented internal controls to track the compliances required, due dates and the actual date of
compliances on regular basis to ensure such delays are prevented in future. There can be no assurance
that such delays may not arise in future. This may lead to financial penalties from respective government
authorities which may have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and cash flows.

We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, and our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Our corporate == ELEGANZ logois for which we have made two separate registration
applications for registration under class 42. Our class trademarks were advertised but objected. Both the
abovementioned applications are pending. If we are unable to register our trademark for various reasons
or if any of our unregistered trademark are registered in favour of or used by a third party in India or
abroad, we may not be able to claim registered ownership of such trademark and consequently, we may
not be able to seek remedies for infringement of those trademarks by third parties other than relief against
passing off by other entities, causing damage to our business prospects, reputation and goodwill in India
and abroad. Apart from this, any failure to register or renew the registration of our registered trademark
may affect our right to use such trademark in future. Further, our efforts to protect our intellectual
property in India and abroad may not be adequate and any third-party claim on any of our unprotected
intellectual property may lead to erosion of our business value and our reputation, which could adversely
affect our operations. Third parties may also infringe or copy our registered brand name in India and
abroad which has been registered by us in India. We may not be able to detect any unauthorized use or
take appropriate and timely steps to enforce or protect our trademarks in India and abroad.

Further, if we do not maintain our brand name and identity, which we believe is one of the factors that
differentiates us from our competitors, we could lose our clients, which would negatively affect our
financial performance and profitability. Moreover, our ability to protect, enforce or utilize our brand
name is subject to risks, including general litigation risks. Furthermore, we cannot assure you that such
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brand name will not be adversely affected in the future by actions that are beyond our control, including
client complaints or adverse publicity from any other source in India and abroad. Any damage to our
brand name, if not immediately and sufficiently remedied, could have an adverse effect on our business
and competitive position in India and abroad.

We have presented certain supplemental information of our performance and liquidity which is not
prepared under or required under Indian GAAP

We have included certain financial and operational measures in this Red Herring Prospectus, which we
believe to be non-GAAP financial measures (“Non-GAAP Measures”) and KPlIs, in accordance with the
SEBI ICDR Regulations. We compute and disclose such KPIs relating to our operations and financial
performance as we consider such information to be useful measures of our business and financial
performance, and because such measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors and others
to evaluate the operational performance of companies such as us. These KPIs may not be computed on
the basis of any standard methodology that is applicable across the industry and therefore may not be
comparable to financial and operational measures, and industry-related statistical information of similar
nomenclature that may be computed and presented by other companies pursuing similar business.

Further, while after listing of the Equity Shares, we will continue to disclose the KPIs in accordance with
the applicable laws, however, as the industry in which we operate continues to evolve, the measures by
which we evaluate our business may change. Our internal systems and tools have a number of limitations,
and our methodologies or assumptions that we rely on for tracking these metrics may also change over
time, which could result in unexpected changes to our metrics, including the metrics we publicly disclose,
or our estimates of our category position. In addition, if the internal tools we use to track these measures
under-count or overcount performance or contain algorithmic or other technical errors, the data and/or
reports we generate may not be accurate. We calculate measures using internal tools, which are not
independently verified by a third party. Any real or perceived inaccuracies in such metrics may harm our
reputation and adversely affect our stock price, business, results of operations, and financial condition.
Further, Non-GAAP measures presented in this Red Herring Prospectus is a supplemental measure of
our performance and liquidity that is not required by, or presented in accordance with, Ind AS, Indian
GAAP, IFRS, U.S. GAAP or any other GAAP. Further, these Non-GAAP Measures are not a
measurement of our financial performance or liquidity and should not be considered in isolation or
construed as an alternative to cash flows, profit for the years or any other measure of financial
performance or as an indicator of our operating performance, liquidity, profitability or cash flows
generated by operating, investing or financing activities derived in accordance with Ind AS, Indian
GAAP, IFRS, U.S. GAAP or any other GAAP. In addition, these Non-GAAP Measures are not
standardized terms, hence a direct comparison of these Non-GAAP Measures between companies may
not be possible. Other companies may calculate these Non-GAAP Measures differently from us, limiting
its usefulness as a comparative measure. Although such Non-GAAP Measures are not a measure of
performance calculated in accordance with applicable accounting standards, our Company’s
management believes that they are useful to an investor in evaluating us as they are widely used measures
to evaluate a company’s operating performance.

Any reputational damage to our brand could have an adverse effect on our business, results of
operation, financial condition and cash flows.

We have three decades of experience in the Interior fit-outs industry and have established a track record
based on extensive client insights developed over the course of our operations, thereby enabling us to
acquire new clients and cover various client industries end-use applications. Negative reviews from our
clients regarding the quality of our products and services that we provide as part of our contracts,
dissatisfaction amongst our suppliers and clients, and inability to deliver quality products within the
scheduled timeline could adversely affect our public perception resulting in an adverse impact on our
brands recognition. Any negative perception or adverse publicity and media coverage about our brand
whether true or not, could damage our Company’s reputation, which could adversely affect our ability to
attract and retain clients, partners, suppliers, and employees. This could result in a loss of revenue and
market share, as well as increased legal, regulatory, and public relations costs, which could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of operation, financial condition and cash flows. While there have
been no instances for the last three financial years ended March 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 and for the six
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months ended September 30, 2023, where the public perception of our brand was materially impacted,
we cannot assure you that we will be able to protect our brand value.

The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoter could be lower than the floor price.

Our Promoters’ average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares in our Company could be lower than the
Floor Price of the Price Band as may be decided by the Company in consultation with the Book Running
Lead Manager. The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares acquired by our Promoter is set out
below:

Name of Promoter Average cost of acquisition per
Equity Share (in )"
Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1.77

" As certified by M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated January 29, 2025

For more details regarding weighted average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoter and
build-up of Equity Shares by our Promoter in our Company, see “Capital Structure” on page 87 of this
Red Herring Prospectus.

Certain sections of this Red Herring Prospectus disclose information from the industry report which
has been commissioned and paid for by us exclusively in connection with the Issue and any reliance
on such information for making an investment decision in the Issue is subject to inherent risks.

We have availed the services of an independent third-party research agency, CARE Analytics Advisory
Private Limited (“CARE”) appointed by us to prepare an industry report on “Research Report on Indian
Real Estate and Office Fit-Out” dated October 15,2024 (“CareEdge Report”), that has been exclusively
commissioned and paid for by us, for purposes of inclusion in this Red Herring Prospectus. The Industry
Report is available on the website of our Company at www.eleganz.co.in. Our Company, our Promoter
and our Directors are not related to CARE. Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on
information as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources
and publications may also base their information on estimates, projections, forecasts and assumptions
that may prove to be incorrect. While we have assumed responsibility for the contents of the report and
have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of the information, we make no representation or warranty,
express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of such facts and statistics. Further, the Industry
Report is not a recommendation to invest/ disinvest in any company covered in the Industry Report.
Accordingly, prospective investors should not place undue reliance on or base their investment decision
solely on this information.

In view of the foregoing, you may not be able to seek legal recourse for any losses resulting from
undertaking any investment in the Issue pursuant to reliance on the information in this Red Herring
Prospectus based on, or derived from, the Industry Report. You should consult your own advisors and
undertake an independent assessment of information in this Red Herring Prospectus based on, or derived
from, the Industry Report before making any investment decision regarding the Issue. For further details,
kindly refer “Industry Overview” on page 122 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

We have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the Objects
of the issue. Further we have not identified any alternate source of financing the “Objects of the
Issue”. Any shortfall in raising / meeting the same could adversely affect our growth plans, operations
and financial performance.

As on date, we have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the
objects of the issue. We meet our capital requirements through bank finance, owned funds and internal
accruals. Any shortfall in our net owned funds, internal accruals and our inability to raise debt in future
would result in us being unable to meet our capital requirements, which in turn will negatively affect our
financial condition and results of operations. Further we have not identified any alternate source of
funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to raise money from this issue or any shortfall in the
issue proceeds may delay the implementation schedule and could adversely affect our growth plans. For
further details please refer to the “Objects of the Issue” on page 102 of this Red Herring Prospectus.
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The requirements of being a public listed company may strain our resources and impose additional
requirements.

Our Company has no experience as a public listed company or with the increased scrutiny of its affairs
by shareholders, regulators and the public at large that is associated with being a public listed company.
As a public company, we will incur significant legal, accounting, corporate governance and other
expenses that we did not incur as an unlisted public company. Our Company will also be subject to the
provisions of the listing related compliances which require us to file unaudited financial results on a half
yearly basis. In order to meet our Company’s financial control and disclosure obligations, significant
resources and management supervision will be required. As a result, management’s attention may be
diverted from other business concerns, which could have an adverse effect on our business and
operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to satisfy our reporting obligations and/or
readily determine and report any changes to our results of operations in a timely manner as other listed
companies. In addition, we will need to increase the strength of our management team and hire additional
legal and accounting staff with appropriate public company experience and accounting knowledge and
we cannot assure that we will be able to do so in a timely manner.

Our Company has during the preceding one year from the date of this Red Herring Prospectus have
allotted Equity Shares at a price which may be lower than the Issue Price.

Our Company has issued Equity Shares in the preceding one year from the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus by way of private placement of 12,34,626 Equity Shares of face value of 10 each at an issue
price of X 81.00 per Equity Shares. Such issuances were at a price that may be lower than the Issue Price.
The price at which Equity Shares have been issued by our Company in the preceding one year is not
indicative of the price at which they will be issued or traded after listing. For details on such allotments,
see “Capital Structure” on page 87 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

If we are unable to establish and maintain an effective internal controls and compliance system, our
business and reputation could be adversely affected.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal measures commensurate with the
size and complexity of operations. Our internal audit functions make an evaluation of the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal systems on an ongoing basis so that our operations adhere to our policies,
compliance requirements and internal guidelines. We periodically test and update our internal processes
and systems and there have been no past material instances of failure to maintain effective internal
controls and compliance system. However, we are exposed to operational risks arising from the potential
inadequacy or failure of internal processes or systems, and our actions may not be sufficient to ensure
effective internal checks and balances in all circumstances.

We take reasonable steps to maintain appropriate procedures for compliance and disclosure and to
maintain effective internal controls over our financial reporting so that we produce reliable financial
reports and prevent financial fraud. As risks evolve and develop, internal controls must be reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Maintaining such internal controls requires human diligence and compliance and is
therefore subject to lapses in judgment and failures that result from human error. Any lapses in judgment
or failures that result from human error can affect the accuracy of our financial reporting, resulting in a
loss of investor confidence and a decline in the price of our Equity Shares.

Further, our operations are subject to anti-corruption laws and regulations. These laws generally prohibit
us and our employees and intermediaries from bribing, being bribed or making other prohibited payments
to government officials or other persons to obtain or retain business or gain some other business
advantage. We participate in collaborations and relationships with third parties whose actions could
potentially subject us to liability under these laws or other local anti-corruption laws. If we are not in
compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws, we may be subject to criminal and civil penalties,
disgorgement and other sanctions and remedial measures, and legal expenses, which could have an
adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Likewise, any investigation
of any potential violations of anti-corruption laws by the relevant authorities could also have an adverse
impact on our business and reputation. Additionally, there has not been any past instance where they

59



53.

II.

54.

55.

have not been able to maintain effective internal controls and compliance systems, during the six month
period ended as on September 30, 2024 and financial year ended as on March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.

Some of our Directors do not have experience of being a director of a public listed company.

Some of the Directors of our Company do not have the experience of having held directorship of public
listed company. Accordingly, they have limited exposure to management of affairs of the listed company
which inter-alia entails several compliance requirements and scrutiny of affairs by shareholders,
regulators and the public at large that is associated with being a listed company. As a public listed
company, the Company will require to adhere strict standards pertaining to accounting, corporate
governance and reporting that it did not require as an unlisted company. The Company will also be subject
to the SEBI Listing Regulations, which will require it to file audited annual report and unaudited half
yearly reports with respect to its business and financial condition. If the Company experiences any delays,
we may fail to satisfy its reporting obligations and/or it may not be able to readily determine and
accordingly report any changes in its results of operations as promptly as other listed companies.

Further, as a publicly listed company, the Company will need to maintain and improve the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, including keeping
adequate records of daily transactions. In order to maintain and improve the effectiveness of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, significant
resources and management attention will be required. As a result, the Board of Directors of the Company
may have to provide increased attention to such procedures and their attention may be diverted from our
business concerns, which may adversely affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial
condition. In addition, we may need to hire additional legal and accounting staff with appropriate
experience and technical accounting knowledge, but we cannot assure you that we will be able to do so
in a timely and efficient manner.

External Risk Factors

Natural disasters, fires, epidemics, pandemics, acts of war, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other
events could materially and adversely affect our business.

Natural disasters (such as typhoons, flooding and earthquakes), epidemics, pandemics such as COVID-
19, acts of war, terrorist attacks and other force majeure events, many of which are beyond our control,
may lead to economic instability, including in India or in other jurisdictions where we operate, which
may in turn materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our operations may be adversely affected by fires, natural disasters and/or severe weather, which can
result in damage to our property or inventory and generally reduce our productivity and may also require
us to evacuate personnel and suspend operations. Any terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of
violence or war may adversely affect the Indian securities markets. Such incidents could also create a
greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk and could have
an adverse effect on our business and the price of the Equity Shares. While there have been no such
incidents affecting our Company in the past three years of Financial Years ended March 31, 2024, March
31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and the six month period ended September 30, 2024, we cannot assure you
that the same will not occur in the future. Further, a number of countries in Asia, including India, as well
as countries in other parts of the world, are susceptible to contagious diseases and, could adversely affect
the Indian economy and economic activity in the country. As a result, any present or future outbreak of
a contagious disease could have a material adverse effect on our business and the trading price of the
Equity Shares.

Political, economic, regulatory or other factors that are beyond our control may have an adverse effect
on our business and results of operations.

The Indian economy and its securities markets are influenced by economic developments and volatility
in securities markets in other countries. Investors’ reactions to developments in one country may have
adverse effects on the market price of securities of companies located elsewhere, including India.
Adverse economic developments, such as rising fiscal or trade deficit, in other emerging market countries
may also affect investor confidence and cause increased volatility in Indian securities markets and
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indirectly affect the Indian economy in general. Any of these factors could depress economic activity and
restrict our access to capital, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations and reduce the price of our Equity Shares. Any financial disruption could have an
adverse effect on our business, future financial performance, shareholders’ equity and the price of our
Equity Shares.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance,
growth and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health
of the economy in which we operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of
India. Demand for our products and services may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in
domestic, regional and global economies. Economic growth in India is also affected by various factors
including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade movements, namely export demand and
movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty and liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange
currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural production. Consequently, any future
slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies
could adversely affect economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general and our
business in particular and high rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without proportionately
increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our operating margins. In addition, any deterioration in
international relations, especially between India and its neighbouring countries, may result in investor
concern regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the price of our Equity Shares.

A downgrade in ratings of India, may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Our borrowing costs and our access to the debt capital markets depend significantly on the credit ratings
of India. India’s sovereign debt rating could be downgraded due to various factors, including changes in
tax or fiscal policy or a decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves, which are outside our control.

Any further adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international
rating agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates and
other commercial terms at which such financing is available, including raising any overseas additional
financing. A downgrading of India’s credit ratings may occur, for example, upon a change of government
tax or fiscal policy, which are outside our control. This could have an adverse effect on our ability to fund
our growth on favourable terms and consequently adversely affect our business and financial
performance and the price of the Equity Shares.

We may be affected by competition laws, the adverse application or interpretation of which could
adversely affect our business.

The Competition Act, 2002 of India, as amended (“Competition Act”) seeks to prevent business
practices that have an appreciable adverse effect on competition in the relevant market in India. Under
the Competition Act, any arrangement, understanding or action in concert between enterprises, whether
formal or informal, which causes or is likely to cause an appreciable adverse effect on competition in
India is void and attracts substantial monetary penalties. Further, any agreement among competitors
which directly or indirectly involves the determination of purchase or sale prices, limits or controls
production, supply, markets, technical development, investment or provision of services, shares the
market or source of production or provision of services in any manner by way of allocation of
geographical area, type of goods or services or number of consumers in the relevant market or in any
other similar way or directly or indirectly results in bid-rigging or collusive bidding is presumed to have
an appreciable adverse effect on competition.

The Competition Act also prohibits abuse of a dominant position by any enterprise. If it is proved that
the contravention committed by a company took place with the consent or connivance or is attributable
to any neglect on the part of, any director, manager, secretary or other officer of such company, that
person shall be also guilty of the contravention and may be punished. With effect from April 11, 2023,
the Gol has enacted the Competition (Amendment) Act, 2023 (“Competition Amendment Act”).
Pursuant to the Competition Amendment Act, several amendments have been made to the Competition
Act, including introduction of deal value thresholds for assessing whether a merger or acquisition
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qualifies as a “combination”, expedited merger review timelines, codification of the lowest standard of
“control” and enhanced penalties for providing false information or a failure to provide material
information.

The Competition Act aims to, among other things, prohibit all agreements and transactions, including
agreements between vertical trading partners i.e., entities at different stages or levels of the production
chain in different markets, which may have an appreciable adverse effect on competition in India.
Consequently, all agreements entered into by us could be within the purview of the Competition Act. We
may also be subject to queries from the CCI pursuant to complaints by consumers or any third persons,
which could be made without any or adequate basis given our market presence. Further, the CCI has
extra-territorial powers and can investigate any agreements, abusive conduct or combination occurring
outside of India if such agreement, conduct or combination has an appreciable adverse effect on
competition in India. However, the effect of the provisions of the Competition Act on the agreements
entered into by us cannot be predicted with certainty at this stage. However, we may be affected, directly
or indirectly, by the application or interpretation of any provision of the Competition Act, or any
enforcement proceedings initiated by the CCI, or any adverse publicity that may be generated due to
scrutiny or prosecution by the CCI or if any prohibition or substantial penalties are levied under the
Competition Act, it would adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows, and prospects.

Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other
countries, including conditions in the United States, Europe and certain emerging economies in Asia.
Financial turmoil in Asia, Russia and elsewhere in the world in recent years has adversely affected the
Indian economy. Any worldwide financial instability may cause increased volatility in the Indian
financial markets and, directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and financial sector and
us. Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging
economy may cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in
other parts of the world could have a global influence and thereby negatively affect the Indian economy.
Financial disruptions and economic developments globally could materially and adversely affect our
business, prospects, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Concerns related to a trade
war between large economies may lead to increased risk aversion and volatility in global capital markets
and consequently have an impact on the Indian economy. Following the United Kingdom’s exit from the
European Union (“Brexit”), there remains significant uncertainty around the terms of their future
relationship with the European Union and, more generally, as to the impact of Brexit on the general
economic conditions in the United Kingdom and the European Union and any consequential impact on
global financial markets.

In addition, China is one of India’s major trading partners and there are rising concerns of a possible
slowdown in the Chinese economy as well as a strained relationship with India, which could have an
adverse impact on the trade relations between the two countries. In response to such developments,
regulators implemented a number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets.
However, the overall long-term effect of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global
financial markets is uncertain, and they may not have the intended stabilizing effects. Any significant
financial disruption such as the recent collapse of the Silicon Valley Bank, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation.

If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our products at a
Dproportionate rate in order to pass costs on to our clients thereby reducing our margins.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future.
India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase
in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of transportation, wages,
components and other expenses relevant to our business. Further, a rise in inflation in other countries,
such as in the United States of America or United Kingdom, may lead to an increase in the interest rates
in India and depreciation in the value of the Rupee which in turn make the components imported by our
Company costlier.
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Further, the Government of India has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation
rates, and it is unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian
inflation levels will not worsen in the future.

In recent months, consumer and wholesale prices in India have exhibited increased inflationary trends,
as the result of an increase in crude oil prices, higher international commodity prices, and higher domestic
consumer and supplier prices. The RBI has enacted certain policy measures and has recently increased
the repo rates to curb inflation. However, these policies and steps taken by the RBI may not be successful.
In February 2022, hostilities between Russia and Ukraine and recently in October 2023 hostilities
between Israel and Palestine have commenced. The market price of oil and fuel have risen sharply since
the commencement of these hostilities which may have an inflationary effect in India. High fluctuations
in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our costs. Any
increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to adequately pass on
to our clients, whether entirely or in part, and may adversely affect our business ,financial condition and
cash flows. In particular, we might not be able to control the increase in our expenses related to salaries
or wages payable to our employees, reduce our costs or increase the price of our products to pass the
increase in costs on to our clients. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows and
financial condition may be adversely affected.

Issue Related Risks

The ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition,
cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditures and other factors.

The amount of future dividend payments, if any, will depend upon future earnings, financial condition,
cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditures and other factors. The ability to pay
dividends may also be restricted under certain financing arrangements that the company has and may
enter into. There can be no assurance the company shall have distributable funds in the future.

After this Issue, the price of the Equity Shares may be volatile, or an active trading market for the
Equity Shares may not develop.

Prior to this Issue, there has been no public market for the Equity Shares. The trading price of the Equity
Shares may fluctuate after this Issue due to a variety of factors, including the results of operations and
the performance of our business, competitive conditions, general economic, political and social factors,
volatility in the Indian and global securities markets, the performance of the Indian economy and
significant developments in India‘s the financial year regime. There can be no assurance that an active
trading market for the Equity Shares will develop or be sustained after this Issue, or that the price at
which the Equity Shares are initially offered will correspond to the prices at which they will trade in the
market subsequent to this Issue.

Rights of shareholders of companies under Indian law may be more limited than under the laws of
other jurisdictions.

Our Articles of Association, composition of our Board, Indian laws governing our corporate affairs, the
validity of corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties, responsibilities and liabilities, and
shareholders’ rights may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction.
Shareholders’ rights under Indian law may not be as extensive and widespread as shareholders’ rights
under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may face challenges in asserting their rights
as shareholder in an Indian company than as a shareholder of an entity in another jurisdiction.

Future issuances or sales of the equity shares could significantly affect the trading price of the Equity
Shares and the grant of stock options under our employee stock option schemes may result in a charge
to our profit and loss account and adversely impact our results of operations.

Any future issuance of equity shares by us, the disposal of our equity shares by any of our major

shareholders or our issuance of stock options under our existing or future employee stock options
schemes (“ESOPs”) could dilute your shareholding, adversely affect the trading price of our Equity
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Shares or impact our ability to raise capital through another offering of securities. In addition, any
perception by investors that such issuance or sales of equity shares by our major sharcholders may occur
may significantly affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

There are restrictions on daily movements in the price of Equity Shares, which may adversely affect a
shareholder’s ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell, Equity Shares at a particular point in
time.

Subsequent to listing, we will be subject to a daily circuit breaker imposed on listed companies by all
stock exchanges in India which does not allow transactions beyond certain volatility in the price of the
Equity Shares. This circuit breaker operates independently of the index-based market-wide circuit
breakers generally imposed by SEBI on the Indian stock exchanges. The percentage limit on our circuit
breaker is set by the stock exchanges based on the historical volatility in the price and trading volume of
the Equity Shares. The Indian stock exchanges are not required to inform us of the percentage limit of
the circuit breaker from time to time, and may change it without our knowledge. This circuit breaker
would effectively limit the upward and downward movements in the price of Equity Shares. As a result
of this circuit breaker, there can be no assurance regarding the ability of shareholders to sell the Equity
Shares or the price at which shareholders may be able to sell their Equity Shares.

There is no guarantee that the Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
or at all, and any trading closures at Stock Exchange may adversely affect the trading price of our
Equity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission for listing of the Equity Shares will not be granted
until after those Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading requires all
other relevant documents authorizing the issuing of the Equity Shares to be submitted. There could be a
failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. Any failure or delay in obtaining the
approval would restrict your ability to dispose of the Equity Shares.

A third party could be prevented from acquiring control of us because of the anti-takeover provisions
under Indian law.

There are provisions in Indian law that may delay, deter or prevent a future takeover or change in control
of our Company. Under the takeover regulations, an acquirer has been defined as any person who, directly
or indirectly, acquires or agrees to acquire shares or voting rights or control over a company, whether
individually or acting in concert with others. Although these provisions have been formulated to ensure
that the interests of investors/shareholders are protected, these provisions may also discourage a third
party from attempting to take control of our Company. Consequently, even if a potential takeover of our
Company would result in the purchase of the Equity Shares at a premium to their market price or would
otherwise be beneficial to our shareholders, such a takeover may not be attempted or consummated
because of Indian takeover regulations.

You will not be able to sell immediately on an Indian stock exchange any of the Equity Shares you
purchase in the Issue.

The Equity Shares will be listed on the EMERGE platform of NSE Limited. Pursuant to Indian
regulations, certain actions must be completed before the Equity Shares can be listed and trading may
commence. Investors‘ book entry, or demat accounts with depository participants in India are expected
to be credited within two working days of the date on which the basis of allotment is approved by
Designated Stock Exchange. Thereafter, upon receipt of final approval from the Designated Stock
Exchange, trading in the Equity Shares is expected to commence within two working days of the date on
which the basis of allotment is approved by the Designated Stock Exchange. We cannot assure you that
the Equity Shares will be credited to investors’ demat accounts, or that trading in the Equity Shares will
commence within the time periods specified above.
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You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on sale of Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws and regulations, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares in an
Indian company are generally taxable in India. Any gain realized on the sale of shares on a stock exchange
held for more than 12 months will not be subject to capital gains tax in India if the securities transaction
tax (“STT”) has been paid on the transaction. The STT will be levied on and collected by an Indian stock
exchange on which equity shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares
held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short term capital gains tax in India, if securities
transaction tax has been paid on the transaction. Any gain realized on the sale of shares held for more
than 24 months to an Indian resident, which are sold other than on a recognized stock exchange and as a
result of which no STT has been paid, will be subject to long term capital gains tax in India. Further, any
gain realized on the sale of equity shares held for a period of 24 months or less which are sold other than
on a recognized stock exchange and on which no STT has been paid, may be subject to short term capital
gains tax at relatively higher rate as compared to the transaction where STT has been paid in India.

QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders are not permitted to withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of
quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a Bid and Retail Individual
Investors are not permitted to withdraw their Bids after Bid/Issue Closing Date.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders are not permitted to
withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after
submitting a Bid. Retail Individual Bidders can revise their Bids during the Bid/Issue Period and
withdraw their Bids until Bid/Issue Closing Date. While we are required to complete Allotment, listing
and commencement of trading pursuant to the Issue within three (3) Working Days from the Bid/ Issue
Closing Date, events affecting the Bidders’ decision to invest in our Equity Shares, including adverse
changes in international or national monetary policy, financial, political or economic conditions, our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may arise between the date of
submission of the Bid and Allotment, listing and commencement of trading. We may complete the
Allotment, listing and commencement of trading of our Equity Shares even if such events occur and such
events may limit the Bidders’ ability to sell our Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to the Issue or may cause
the trading price of our Equity Shares to decline on listing.

The Issue Price of the Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares
after the Issue.

The market price of the Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the Issue and may
decline below the Issue Price. There can be no assurances that investors who are allotted Equity Shares
through the Issue will be able to resell their Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability
to attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-
residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing
guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to
be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under
any of the exceptions referred to above, then prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally,
shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency
and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from
the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI, or any
other government agency, can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our
costs and negatively affect our stock price.

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control influence forecasts and directly affect
performance. These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies
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of governments, inflation, deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability,
fluctuations in commodities markets, consumer debt levels, unemployment trends and other matters that
influence consumer confidence, spending and tourism. Increasing volatility in financial markets may
cause these factors to change with a greater degree of frequency and magnitude, which may negatively
affect our stock prices.

Our Company’s revenues and profits are difficult to predict and can vary significantly from quarter to
quarter. This could cause our share price to fluctuate.

Our Company’s quarterly operating results may fluctuate from quarter to quarter depending upon various
internal and external factors. Therefore, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of
operations are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of our
Company’s future performance. It is possible that in the future some of our Company’s quarterly results
of operations may be below the expectations of market analysts and our investors, which could lead to a
significant decline of the share price of the Equity Shares.

Our assets and operations are located in India, and we are subject to regulatory, economic and political
uncertainties in India and a significant change in the central and state governments’ economic
liberalization and deregulation policies could disrupt our business.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-
residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing
guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to
be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under
any of the exceptions referred to above, then prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally,
shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency
and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from
the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI, or any
other government agency, can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.
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SECTION III - INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

The following is the summary of the Issue
Particulars
Equity Shares Issued through Public Issue:*(V®
Present Issue of Equity Shares by our Company
Of which:
Issue Reserved for the Market Maker

Net Issue to Public

Of which:
Allocation to Qualified Institutional Buyers®®

Of which:
(1) Anchor Investor Portion

(il)) Net QIB portion (assuming Anchor Investor
Portion is fully subscribed)

Allocation to Non -Retail Individual Investors

Allocation to Retail Individual Investors®

Pre-Issue and Post Issue Equity Shares
Equity Shares outstanding prior to the Issue
Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue
Use of Proceeds

Details
Issue of 60,05,000 Equity Shares of face value of
%10/- each at a price of X[e] per Equity Share
aggregating to X[ e] lakhs.

3,01,000 Equity Shares of face value of 210/- each at
a price of X[®]/- per Equity Share reserved as Market
Maker Portion aggregating to X[ e] lakhs.

Net Issue to Public of 57,00,000 Equity Shares of face
value of Z10/- each at a price of X[®]/- per Equity
Share to the Public aggregating to [ e] lakhs.

[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an
Issue Price of X[e]/- per Equity Share each
aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each at an
Issue Price of X [e]/- per Equity Share each
aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each at an
Issue Price of X[e]/- per Equity Share each
aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each at an
Issue Price of X[e]/- per Equity Share each
aggregating up to [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each at an
Issue Price of X[e]/- per Equity Share each
aggregating up to [e] Lakhs

1,65,94,626 Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each
2,25,99,626 Equity Shares of face value of T 10/- each
For further details, see ‘Objects of the Issue’ on page

102 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

*Subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment number of shares may need to be adjusted for lot size upon determination of issue price.

The Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time. This Issue is being
made by our company in terms of Regulation of 229 (2) and Regulation 253 (1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with Rule
19(2)(b)(i) of the SCRR wherein not less than 25% of the post — issue paid up equity share capital of our company are being issued

The present Issue has been authorized pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated October 08, 2024, and by Special Resolution
passed under Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 at an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of our shareholders held on

Our Company may, in consultation with the BRLM, allocate up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary
basis. The QIB Portion will accordingly be reduced for the Equity Shares allocated to Anchor Investors. One-third of the Anchor
Investor Portion shall be reserved for Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from Mutual Funds at or above the
Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-subscription in the Anchor Investor Portion, the remaining Equity Shares
shall be added to the Net QIB Portion. 5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to
Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB
Bidders, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. In the event the aggregate
demand from Mutual Funds is less than as specified above, the balance Equity Shares available for Allotment in the Mutual Fund
Portion will be added to the Net QIB Portion and allocated proportionately to the QIB Bidders in proportion to their Bids. For

()
to the public for subscription.
2
October 11, 2024.
3)
further details, see “Issue Procedure” on page 313.
4)

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, undersubscription, if any, in any category, except in the QIB
Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories of Bidders at the
discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and the Designated Stock Exchange, subject to
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(6)

(O]

applicable laws.

Not less than 15% of the Issue shall be available for allocation to Non-Institutional Bidders, provided that the unsubscribed portion
in either of such sub-categories may be allocated to applicants in the other sub-category of Non-Institutional Bidders, subject to
valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price and not less than 35% of the Issue will be available for allocation to Retail
Individual Bidders, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue
Price. All Bidders, other than the Anchor Investors, are mandatorily required to participate in this Issue only through an
Application Supported by Blocked Amount (“ASBA”) process, providing details of their respective bank accounts (including UPI
ID for UPI Bidders using UPI Mechanism) in which the Bid amount will be blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks or the
Sponsor Bank. The Anchor Investors are not permitted to participate in the Anchor Investor Portion through the ASBA process.
For further details, please see “Issue Procedure” on page 313.

In the event of over-subscription, allotment shall be made on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids received at or above the
Issue Price. Allocation to investors in all categories, except the Retail Portion, shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to
valid bids received at or above the Issue Price. The allocation to each Retail Individual Investor shall not be less than the minimum
Bid Lot, and subject to availability of Equity Shares in the Retail Portion, the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall be
allocated on a proportionate basis.

In the event of an under-subscription in the issue and compliance with Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR, our Company and the BRLM
shall first ensure Allotment of Equity Shares offered pursuant to the Fresh offer by the Issuer.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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Eleganz Interiors Limited
(CIN No: - U74140MH1996PLC098965)

ANNEXURE - |

RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
PARTICULARS NOTES For the period ended
September 30, 2024
31-03-2024 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
A) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital 1 1,659.46 1,536.00 96.00 96.00
(b) Reserves & Surplus 1 5,430.98 3,600.93 3,820.35 2,789.21
(c) Money received against share Warrants - - - -
7,090.44 5,136.93 3,916.35 2,885.21
2. Share Appication Money Pending allotment - - - -
3. Non Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 2 292.98 561.05 664.46 270.00
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 3 - - - 0.25
(c) Other Long term liabilities - - - -
(d) Long Term Provisions 4 108.43 101.05 77.99 73.38
401.41 662.10 742.45 343.63
4. Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 5 2,876.78 3,718.49 2,158.31 1,992.05
(b) Trade Payables 6
outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
. 965.79 1,119.98 475.14 872.03
enterprises; and
(8) total oqutanding dues of creqitors other than micro 4,288.41 415354 2,439.72 2,532.02
enterprises and small enterprises.
(c) Other Current Liabilities 7 7,768.85 2,413.71 1,883.92 1,665.30
(d) Short Term Provisions 8 7.13 7.20 3.34 13.14
15,906.96 11,412.92 6,960.43 7,074.54
Total 23,398.81 17,211.95 11,619.23 10,303.39
B) ASSETS
1. Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 9
1) Property, Plant and Equipment 868.89 641.08 624.62 505.35
11) Intangible Assets 5.50 7.14 2.84 1.89
1ll) Capital work-in-progress - - - -
1IV) Intangible assets under development - - - -
874.40 648.22 627.45 507.24
(b) Goodwill on Consolidation 492.43 492.43 492.43 492.43
(c) Non-Current Investment 10 242.65 264.63 148.69 110.48
(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3 30.45 24.69 5.12 -
(e) Long Term Loans and Advances 11 116.00 109.58 112.90 134.39
(f) Other Non Current Assets 12 71.62 78.80 106.74 92.24
953.15 970.13 865.88 829.54
2. Current Assets
(a) Current investments - - - -
(b) Inventories 13 5,257.11 5,035.83 2,285.40 1,911.77
(c) Trade Receivables 14 5,713.72 4,781.10 3,607.06 2,966.06
(d) Cash and Cash equivalents 15 3,190.18 1,612.80 715.46 256.71
(e) Short-Term Loans and Advances 16 4,576.60 1,598.63 1,219.15 1,538.11
(f) Other Current Assets 17 2,833.65 2,565.24 2,298.84 2,293.95
21,571.26 15,593.60 10,125.90 8,966.61
Total 23,398.81 17,211.95 11,619.23 10,303.39

As per our report of even date

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regd No.: 104184W/W100075

Hemant Kumar Agrawal
Designated Partner
Membership No.: 403143
UDIN: 25403143BMLIEH2390

Place : Mumbai
Date: 29th Janurary 2025

For, Eleganz Interiors Limited

Sameer Pakvasa

Managing Director
DIN: 01217325

Archana Desai
Chief Financial Officer

Mayank Kumar Sharma

Director

DIN:09283513

Rahul Sharma
Company Secretary
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Eleganz Interiors Limited

(CIN No: - U74140MH1996PLC098965)
ANNEXURE - I
RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the period For the year ended
PARTICULARS Note| ended September
30, 2024 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

1 Revenue From Operations 18 19,209.63 22,129.19 19,025.86 15,383.03
2 Other Income 19 30.57 179.46 91.28 151.23

Total Income (1+2) 19,240.20 22,308.65 19,117.14 15,534.26
3 Expenditure
(a) Cost of goods consumed 20 14,750.06 18,371.72 15,020.06 11,263.93
(b) Change in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade 21 (221.28) (2,750.43) (373.62) (325.95)
(c) Employee Benefit Expenses 22 538.54 937.53 713.24 678.17
(d) Finance Cost 23 199.04 348.68 224.22 195.80
(e) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 24 115.90 203.34 150.45 123.84
(f)  Other Expenses 25 2,572.78 3,589.27 2,331.81 3,087.54
4 Total Expenditure 3(a) to 3(f) 17,955.03 20,700.12 18,066.15 15,023.34
5 Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional & extraordinary items & Tax (2-4) 1,285.16 1,608.53 1,050.99 510.92
6 Exceptional and Extra-ordinary items - - - -
7 Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (56) 1,285.16 1,608.53 1,050.99 510.92
8 Tax Expense:
(a) Tax Expense for Current Year 337.47 397.89 25.23 -
(b) Short/(Excess) Provision of Earlier Year 9.62 - -
(c) Deferred Tax (5.77) (19.56) (5.37) 1.54

Net Current Tax Expenses 331.70 387.95 19.86 1.54
7 Profit/(Loss) for the Year (5-6) 953.47 1,220.58 1,031.13 509.38

Earning per equity share:

(1) Basic EPS 29 5.89 7.95 6.71 3.32

(2) Diluted EPS 29 5.89 7.95 6.71 3.32

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regd No.: 104184W/W100075

Hemant Kumar Agrawal
Designated Partner
Membership No.: 403143
UDIN: 25403143BMLIEH2390

Place : Mumbai
Date: 29th Janurary 2025

For, Eleganz Interiors Limited

Sameer Pakvasa

Managing Director
DIN: 01217325

Archana Desai
Chief Financial Officer

Mayank Kumar Sharma

Director

DIN:09283513

Rahul Sharma
Company Secretary
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Eleganz Interiors Limited
(CIN No: - U74140MH1996PLC098965)
ANNEXURE Il
RESTATED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Rs. in Lakhs)
';"'d“‘e [EErcd FOR THE YEAR ENDED
PARTICULARS ende
30, 2024 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Net Profit before Tax 1,285.16 1,608.53 1,050.99 510.92
Adjustment for :
Depreciation & Amortization 115.90 203.34 150.45 123.84
Finance Charges 199.04 348.68 224.22 195.80
Profit on sale of Fixed assets (2.46) (1.06)
Bad debts Written Off (1.77) 9.71 7.15 -
Foreign Exchange loss/(gain) (0.15) (0.20) - -
Balance Written off/(back) (6.27) 26.55 (5.76) 95.11
Impairement Of Assets - 9.66 1.26
Share of Profit in Associates 22 (115.95) (38.21) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,613.89 2,078.21 1,397.43 926.93
Changes in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (221.28) (2,750.43) (373.62) (325.95)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (930.85) (1,183.75) (648.14) (686.88)
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances (2,886.03) (321.92) 681.13 252.80
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (271.17) (610.87) (264.73) (309.46)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (13.04) 2,332.10 (483.42) 48.28
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 5,362.59 556.92 213.43 (85.60)
Cash generated from operations 2,654.12 100.26 522.08 (179.88)
Less: Direct Taxes Paid 429.40 465.08 387.40 398.51
Net cash flow from operating activities A 2,224.72 (364.82) 134.68 (578.38)
B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (342.07) (234.76) (287.88) (25.05)
Sale of Fixed Assets 13.10 8.62
Investment made/Sold during the year (0.00)| -
Long term Loans and advances (6.42) 3.32 21.49 207.76
Other Non Current Assets 7.18 27.95 (14.50) (35.99)
Net cash flow from investing activities B (341.32) (190.39) (272.27) 146.72
C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities :
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital 1,000.05 - - -
Receipt of Long-Term Borrowings 237.07 434.24 781.56 135.00
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings (505.15) (537.65) (387.10) (82.00)
Receipt/Repayment of Short-Term Borrowings (841.71) 1,560.18 166.26 444.55
Interest Paid (199.04) (348.68) (224.22) (195.80)
Share Money Pending Allotment - - - -
Long Term Loans and Advances - - - -
Net cash flow from financing activities C (308.78) 1,108.09 336.50 301.74
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivale (A+B+C) 1,574.62 552.87 198.91 (129.92)
Cash equivalents at the begining of the year 760.08 207.21 8.30 138.22
Cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,334.70 760.08 207.21 8.30
Notes :-
30-09-2024 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
1. | Component of Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on hand 4.39 7.39 5.53 5.23
Balance With banks 2,330.32 752.69 201.68 3.07
Share Application Money Pending Allotment -
Total 2,334.70 760.08 207.21 8.30

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
2. past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the company are segregated.

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies, restated notes to accounts and notes on adjustments for restated summary financial information (Annexure

1V) are an integral part of this statement.

As per our report of even date

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regd No.: 104184W/W100075

Hemant Kumar Agrawal
Designated Partner
Membership No.: 403143
UDIN: 25403143BMLIEH2390

Place : Mumbai
Date: 29th Janurary 2025

Sameer Pakvasa

Managing Director
DIN: 01217325

Archana Desai
Chief Financial Officer

For, Eleganz Interiors Limited

Mayank Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN:09283513

Rahul Sharma
Company Secretary
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SECTION IV — GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated as “Eleganz Interiors Private Limited” as a Private Limited company in Mumbai
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated April 18, 1996,
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai. Subsequently, our Company was converted into a
public limited company pursuant to a special resolution passed by our Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on September 11, 2023, and the name of our Company was changed to “Eleganz Interiors Limited”.
A fresh certificate of Incorporation consequent upon conversion from a Private Limited company to Public
Limited company dated November 17, 2023, was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The Corporate
Identification Number of our Company is U74140MH1996PLC098965. For change in registered office and other
details please see “History and Certain Corporate Matters” on page 179 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Registered Office

Gala Nos. 1 — 7, Ground Floor,

Sarita ‘B’, Prabhat Industrial Estate,
Western Express Highway,

Dahisar (E), Mumbai — 400 068
Telephone: +91-22-28960081

Website: www.eleganz.co.in

Company Registration Number: 098965

Corporate Identification Number: U74140MH1996PLC098965

Corporate Office

Gala Nos. 601-607, 6" Floor,

Sarita ‘B’, Prabhat Industrial Estate,
Western Express Highway,

Dahisar (E), Mumbai — 400 068
Telephone: +91-22-28960081
Website: www.eleganz.co.in

Registrar of Companies

Our Company is registered with the RoC located at the following address:

Registrar of Companies

100, Everest, Marine Drive,
Mumbai — 400 002, Maharashtra.
Telephone: +91-22-22812627
Email: roc.mumbai@mca.gov.in

Website: www.mca.gov.in

Board of Directors

Details regarding our Board as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus are set forth below:

Name and Designation
Sameer Akshay Pakvasa
Chairman and Managing Director
Mayank Kumar Sharma
Whole-Time Director

Sonal Pakvasa
Non-Executive and
Director

Non-Independent

DIN
01217325
09283513

00534045

73

Address

A-603, Amrit CHSL, 15 Carter Road, Khar —
West, Mumbai — 400 052

Flat No. 2f-7, Second Floor, No. 8, Hutchins
Road Cooke Town, Opposite Cooke Town
Park, Near ITC Factory, Bengaluru — 5600 05
8-N, Apsara Co-Op. Housing Society,61-B,
Pali Hill, Near Dilip Kumar Bunglow, Bandra
West, Mumbai,400 050


http://www.eleganz.co.in/
http://www.eleganz.co.in/
mailto:roc.mumbai@mca.gov.in
http://www.mca.gov.in/

Name and Designation DIN Address

Joshi Apurva Pradeep 06608172 8312/5/A Flat No. 501 Harshavardhan

Non-Executive- Independent Director Residency, Near St. Joseph School, Solapur
North, Solapur Maharashtra 413 001.

Mangina Srinivas Rao 08095079 Plot No. 4, BHEL Enclave, Akber Road, Near

Non-Executive- Independent Director Center Point, Bowenpally, Tirumalagni,
Manovikasnagar, Hyderabad Andra Pradesh —
500 009

For further details of our Directors, see “Our Management” on page 186 of this Red Herring Prospectus.
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Rahul Suryanarayan Sharma is our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. His Contact details are as
follows:

Rahul Suryanarayan Sharma
Gala Nos. 1 — 7, Ground Floor,
Sarita ‘B’, Prabhat Industrial Estate,
Western Express Highway,

Dahisar (E), Mumbai — 400 068
Telephone: +91 - 22 - 28960081

E-mail: cs@eleganz.co.in

Chief Financial Officer
Archana Prasad Desai is our Chief Financial Officer. Her contact details are as follows:

Archana Prasad Desai

Gala Nos. 1 — 7, Ground Floor,
Sarita ‘B’, Prabhat Industrial Estate,
Western Express Highway,

Dahisar (E), Mumbai — 400 068
Telephone: +91 - 22 - 28960081
E-mail: cfo@eleganz.co.in

Investor Grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, the BRLM or the Registrar to the
Issue in case of any pre- Issue or post- Issue related grievances including non-receipt of letters of Allotment,
non-credit of Allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account, non-receipt of refund orders or
non-receipt of funds by electronic mode etc.

All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy to the relevant
Designated Intermediary with whom the ASBA Form was submitted, giving full details such as name of the sole
or First Bidder, ASBA Form number, Bidder’s DP ID, Client ID, PAN, address of Bidder, number of Equity Shares
applied for, ASBA Account number in which the amount equivalent to the Application Amount was blocked or
the UPI ID (for UPI Investors who make the payment of Application Amount through the UPI Mechanism), date
of Application Form and the name and address of the relevant Designated Intermediary where the Application
was submitted. Further, the Applicant shall enclose the Acknowledgment Slip or the application number from the
Designated Intermediary in addition to the documents or information mentioned hereinabove.

All grievances relating to applications submitted through the Registered Broker and/or a stockbroker may be
addressed to the Stock Exchange with a copy to the Registrar to the Issue.

74


mailto:cs@eleganz.co.in
mailto:cfo@eleganz.co.in

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue and our Company
Book Running Lead Manager

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited

607/608, Marathon Icon, Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park,
Off. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Veer Santaji Lane,
Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400 013, Maharashtra, India.
Telephone: +91-22 6666 8040

Email id: investors@vivro.net

Investor Grievance id: investors@vivro.net
Website: www.vivro.net

Contact Person: Kruti Saraiya/ Aradhy Rajyaguru
SEBI Registration No.: INM000010122

CIN: U67120GJ1996PTC029182

Statement of responsibilities of the Book Running Lead Manager

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited is the sole Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue and all the
responsibilities relating to co-ordination and other activities in relation to the Issue shall be performed by them
and hence a statement of inter-se allocation of responsibilities is not required.

Syndicate Members

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited

607/608, Marathon Icon, Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park,
Off. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Veer Santaji Lane,
Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400 013, Maharashtra, India.
Telephone: +91-22 6666 8040

Email id: investors@vivro.net

Investor Grievance id: investors@vivro.net
Website: www.vivro.net

Contact Person: Vivek Vaishnav

SEBI Registration No.: INM000010122

CIN: U67120GJ1996PTC029182

Legal Counsel to the Issue

Rajani Associates, Advocates & Solicitors

204 — 207, Krishna Chambers 59, New Marine Lines,
Mumbai, 400 020, Maharashtra, India.

Telephone: +91-22 4096 1000

Email Id: sangeeta@rajaniassociates.net

Contact Person: Sangeeta Lakhi

Statutory & Peer Review Auditor of the Company

Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
405-408, Hind Rajasthan Building,
Dadasaheb Phalke Road,

Dadar (East), Mumbai -400014
Telephone: +91-22-40774602

Website: www.jsandco.in

Email 1d: info@jsaandco.in

Contact Person: Hemant Kumar Agrawal
Member ship Number: 403143

Peer Review Number: 015299

Firm Registration Number: 104184W/W100075
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Registrar to the lssue

Bigshare Services Private Limited

S6-2, 6th Pinnacle Business Park,

Mahakali Caves Road, next to Ahura Centre,
Andheri East, Mumbai- 400093, Maharashtra, India.
Telephone: +91-22-62638200

Email Id: ipo@bigshareonline.com

Investor Grievance Id: investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigsharconline.com

Contact Person: Ganesh Shinde

SEBI Registration: INRO00001385

CIN: U99999MH1994PTC076534

Bankers to the Issue, Refund Baker and Sponsor Bank

HDFC Bank Limited

FIG-OPS Department — Lodha, I Think Techno

Campus, O-3 Level, Next to Kanjumarg Railway Station,
Kanjumarg (East), Mumbai — 400042, Maharashtra.

Telephone: +91 22 30752929 +91 22 30752928 +91 22

30752914

Email Id: siddharth.jadhav@hdfcbank.com, sachin.gawade@hdfcbank.com,
eric.bacha@hdfcbank.com, tushar.gavankar@hdfcbank.com,
pravin.teli2@hdfcbank.com

Website: www.hdfcbank.com

Contact Person: Eric Bachai/Sachin Gawade/Pravin Teli/Siddharth
Jadhav/Tushar Gavankar

Banker to our Company

HDFC Bank Limited

Address: Plot No 124, Viraj, SV Road,
Khar West, Mumbai 400 052

Telephone No: +91 91676 29198
E-Mail ID : Kapil.karia@hdfcbank.com
Website: https;//www.hdfcbank.com
Contact Person : Kapil Karia

Bank of Baroda

Address: 06, Mulji Apartment,

2768 S.V. Road, Borivali East,

Mumbai — 400 066

Telephone No.: +91 9422166144
E-Mail ID: boreas@bankofbaroda.co.in
Website: https://www.bankofbaroda.com
Contact Person: Manish Kumar Prasad

Designated Intermediaries

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35.

or at such other

website as may be prescribed by SEBI and updated from time to time.

A list of the Designated Branches of the SCSBs with which an ASBA Bidder (other than UPI Bidders using the
UPI Mechanism), not bidding through Syndicate/ Sub Syndicate or through a Registered Broker, RTA or CDP
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may submit the Bid cum Application Forms, is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34 or at such other
websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks eligible as issuer banks for UPI Mechanism and eligible mobile applications
In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated September 28, 2019, SEBI
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 and SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism may only apply
through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names appears on the website of the SEBI, which may be
updated from time to time. A list of SCSBs and mobile applications, which are live for applying in public issues
using UPI Mechanism is provided as ‘Annexure A’ for the SEBI circular number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85  dated July 26, 2019 and is also available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40 for SCSBs and
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=43 for mobile
applications or at such other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Registered Brokers

The list of the Registered Brokers, including details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address,
is provided on the website of the Stock Exchange, at the National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.nseindia.com as updated from time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the Collecting Depository Participants (CDPs) eligible to accept Application Forms at the Designated
CDP Locations, including details such as name and contact details, are provided at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=19 for NSDL CDPs and
at https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=18 for CDSL CDPs, as
updated from time to time. The list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits
of the Bid cum Application Forms from the Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the
SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from time to time.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as
address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided on the websites of Stock Exchange at
www.nseindia.com as  updated from time to time and on  SEBI  website at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=10.

Brokers to the Issue

All members of the recognized stock exchanges would be eligible to act as Brokers to the Issue.

IPO Grading

No credit agency registered with SEBI has been appointed for grading for the Issue.

Experts

Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

1. Our Company has received written consent dated January 29, 2025 from our Statutory Auditor namely,
M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka and Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, to include their name as required under
Section 26(5) of the Companies Act 2013 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations, in this Red Herring
Prospectus, and as an “expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent
and in their capacity as our Statutory Auditors, and in respect of their (i) examination report dated January

29, 2025 on our Restated Financial Statements; (ii) their report dated January 29, 2025 on the Statement
of Special Tax Benefits included in this Red Herring Prospectus; and (iii) the certificates issued by them
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in relation to this Issue, and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus. However, the term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as defined under the
U.S. Securities Act.

2. Our Company has received a written consent dated January 21, 2024 from Ranade & Associates,
Chartered Engineer, to include his name as an “expert” as defined under section 2(38) and 26(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent and in his capacity as the independent chartered engineer and in
respect of the certificate issued by him and included in this Red Herring Prospectus.

Monitoring Agency

As the Net Proceeds of the Issue will be less than 10,000 lakhs, under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, it is not
required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company.

Appraising Entity

No appraising entity has been appointed in respect of any objects of this Issue.

Credit Rating

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Trustees

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of trustees is not required

Debenture trustees

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustees is not required.

Green Shoe Option

No green shoe option is applicable for the Issue.

Filing of Issue Document

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Red Herring Prospectus and Prospectus shall be filed with EMERGE Platform
of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (the “NSE EMERGE”) in terms of Regulation 246 (2) of SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

Draft Red Herring Prospectus will not be filed with SEBI nor SEBI will issue any observation on the draft offer
document in term of Regulation 246(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Pursuant to Regulation 246(5) of SEBI

ICDR Regulations and SEBI Circular Number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, a
copy of Prospectus will be filed online through SEBI Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in.

A copy of Draft Red Herring Prospectus will be available on website of the Company www.eleganz.co.in Book
Running Lead Manager www.vivro.net and stock exchange www.nseindia.com.

A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus, along with the material contracts and documents referred
elsewhere in the Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus, will be delivered to the office of Registrar of Companies,
Mumbeai situated at Registrar of Companies, 100, Everest, Marine Drive, Mumbai- 400002, Maharashtra, and the
same will also be available on the website of the Company www.cleganz.co.in, for inspection.

Changes in Auditors during the last three years

Except as stated below, there has been no change in the statutory auditors of our Company during the three years
immediately preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus
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Parsticulars Date of Change Reason for Change

Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP September 30,2022 Re appointment of the auditor
405-408, Hind Rajasthan Building, from the conclusion of Annual
Dadasaheb Phalke Road, General Meeting of FY 2021-22
Dadar (East), Mumbai -400014 till the conclusion of Annual
Telephone: +91-22-40774602 General Meeting of 2026-27.

Email Id: info@jsaandco.in

Contact Person: Hemant Kumar Agrawal
Member ship Number: 403143

Peer Review Number: 015299

Firm Registration Number:104184W/W100075

Type of Issue
The present Issue is 100% Book Building Issue.
Book Building Process

Book Building, with reference to the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the Red
Herring Prospectus within the Price Band. The Price Band shall be determined by our Company in consultation
with the Book Running Lead Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process, and advertised in all edition
of Financial Express (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper) and all edition of Jansatta (a widely
circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and Marathi edition of Mumbai Lakshdweep (a widely circulated
Marathi daily newspaper, Marathi being the regional language of Mumbai, where our Registered Office is located)
at least two working days prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening date. The Issue Price shall be determined by our
Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process
after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Principal parties involved in the Book Building Process are:

. Our Company

. The Book Running Lead Manager in this case being Vivro Financial Services Private Limited,

. The Syndicate Member(s) who are intermediaries registered with SEBI/ registered as brokers with NSE
and eligible to act as Underwriter. The Syndicate Member(s) will be appointed by the Book Running
Lead Manager;

. The Registrar to the Issue

. The Escrow Collection Banks/ Bankers to the Issue and

. The Designated Intermediaries and Sponsor bank

The SEBI ICDR Regulations have permitted the Issue of securities to the public through the Book Building
Process, wherein allocation to the public shall be made as per Regulation 253 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Issue is being made through the Book Building Process wherein not more than 50 % of the Net Issue shall be
available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Qualified Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”, the “QIB Portion”),
provided that our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, allocate up to 60% of the QIB
Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations (“Anchor
Investor Portion”), of which one-third shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being
received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-
subscription, or non-allocation in the Anchor Investor Portion, the balance Equity Shares shall be added to the Net
QIB Portion. Further, 5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis only to
Mutual Funds, and the remainder of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis
to all QIBs, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. However, if
the aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than 5% of the Net QIB Portion, the balance Equity Shares
available for allocation in the Mutual Fund Portion will be added to the remaining Net QIB Portion for
proportionate allocation to QIBs. Further, not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a
proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Bidders and not less than 35% of the Net Issue shall be available for
allocation to Retail Individual Bidders in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being
received at or above the Issue Price. All potential Bidders may participate in the Issue through an ASBA process
by providing details of their respective bank account which will be blocked by the SCSBs. All Bidders are
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mandatorily required to utilize the ASBA process to participate in the Issue. Under-subscription if any, in any
category, except in the QIB Category, would be allowed to be met with spill over from any other category or a
combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the BRLM and the Designated
Stock Exchange.

All Bidders, except Anchor Investors, are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process for participating in the
Issue. In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs bidding in the QIB Portion and Non-Institutional
Bidders bidding in the Non- Institutional Portion are not allowed to withdraw or lower the size of their Bids (in
terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail Individual Bidders can revise
their Bids during the Bid/ Issue Period and withdraw their Bids until the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Further, Anchor
Investors cannot withdraw their Bids after the Anchor Investor Bid/ Issue Period. Allocation to the Anchor
Investors will be on a discretionary basis.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, allocation to all categories in the Net Issue, shall
be made on a proportionate basis, except for Retail Portion where allotment to each Retail Individual Bidders
shall not be less than the minimum bid lot, subject to availability of Equity Shares in Retail Portion, and the
remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall be allotted on a proportionate basis. Under — subscription, if any,
in any category, would be allowed to be met with spill — over from any other category or a combination of
categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and the Stock
Exchange. However, under-subscription, if any, in the QIB Portion will not be allowed to be met with spill over
from other categories or a combination of categories.

In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 and the SEBI (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, all the investors (except Anchor Investors) applying
in a public Issue shall use only Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) process for application
providing details of the bank account which will be blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSBs) for
the same. Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 01,
2018, Retail Individual Investors applying in public Issue may use either Application Supported by Blocked
Amount (ASBA) facility for making application or also can use UPI as a payment mechanism with Application
Supported by Blocked Amount for making application. For details in this regards, specific attention are invited to
the chapter titled “Issue Procedure” on page 313 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations is subject to change from time to time and the
investors are advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to making a Bid or
application in the Issue.

For further details on the method and procedure for Book Building, please refer to the chapter titled “Issue
Procedure” on page 313 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Ilustration of the Book Building and Price Discovery Process:

Bidders should note that this example is solely for illustrative purposes and is not specific to the Issue; it also
excludes Bidding by Anchor Investors. Bidders can bid at any price within the Price Band. For instance, assume
a Price Band of 220 to %24 per share, Issue size of 3,000 Equity Shares and receipt of five Bids from Bidders,
details of which are shown in the table below. The illustrative book given below shows the demand for the Equity
Shares of the Issuer at various prices and is collated from Bids received from various investors.

Bid Quantity Bid Amount (%) Cumulative Quantity Subscription
500 24 500 16.67%
1,000 23 1,500 50.00%
1,500 22 3,000 100.00%
2,000 21 5,000 166.67%
2,500 20 7,500 250.00%

The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the Issuer is able to Issue
the desired number of Equity Shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e., ¥ 22.00 in the above example.
The Issuer, in consultation with the BRLM, may finalise the Issue Price at or below such Cut-Off Price, i.c., at or
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below X 22.00. All Bids at or above this Issue Price and cut-off Bids are valid Bids and are considered for allocation
in the respective categories.

Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding:

. Check eligibility for making a Bid (see section titled “Issue Procedure” on page 313 of this Red Herring
Prospectus);

. Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the Bid
cum Application Form;

. Ensure correctness of your PAN, DP ID and Client ID mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form.

Based on these parameters, the Registrar to the Issue will obtain the Demographic Details of the Bidders
from the Depositories.

. Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Government officials, residents of Sikkim and the
officials appointed by the courts, who may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in the
securities market, for Bids of all values ensure that you have mentioned your PAN allotted under the
Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. The exemption for Central or State Governments and
officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing in Sikkim is subject to the Depositary
Participant’s verification of the veracity of such claims of the investors by collecting sufficient
documentary evidence in support of their claims.

. Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this Red Herring
Prospectus and in the Bid cum Application Form;

Bid/Issue Program

Event Indicative Dates

Bid/ Issue Opening Date Friday, February 7, 2025

Bid/ Issue Closing Date Tuesday, February 11, 2025

Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Designated Stock On or about Wednesday, February 12,

Exchange 2025

Initiation of Allotment / Refunds / Unblocking of Funds from ASBA  On or about Thursday, February 13,

Account or UPI ID linked bank account 2025

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees On or about Thursday, February 13,
2025

Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock On or about Friday, February 14, 2025

Exchange

Note:

1. Our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, may consider participation by Anchor Investors in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Anchor Investor Bid / Issue Period shall be one Working Day prior to the Bid / Issue Opening
Date in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

2. Our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, consider closing the Bid / Issue Period for QIBs one Working Day
prior to the Bid / Issue Closing Date in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The above timetable is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Book Running
Lead Manager. Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for
the listing and the commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange are taken within 3
Working Days of the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, the timetable may change due to various factors, such as extension
of the Bid/ Issue Period by our Company, revision of the Price Band or any delays in receiving the final listing
and trading approval from the Stock Exchange. The Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares will be
entirely at the discretion of the Stock Exchange and in accordance with the applicable laws.

Bid/Issue Period (except the Bid/Issue Closing Date)

Submission and revision of Bids Only between 10.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. (Indian
Standard Time (“IST”)

Bid/Issue Closing Date*

Submission of Electronic Applications (Online ASBA | Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 5.00 p.m. IST

through 3-in-1 accounts) — For RlIs, other than QIBs and

Non-Institutional Investors

Submission of Electronic Applications (Bank ASBA | Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 4.00 p.m. IST
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through Online channels like Internet Banking, Mobile

Banking and Syndicate UPI ASBA applications)

Submission of Electronic Applications (Syndicate Non- | Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 3.00 p.m. IST

Retail, Non-Individual Applications)

Submission of Physical Applications (Bank ASBA) Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 1.00 p.m. IST

Submission of Physical Applications (Syndicate Non- | Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 12.00 p.m. IST

Retail, Non-Individual Applications of QIBs and Non-

Institutional Investors

Modification/ Revision/ Cancellation of Bids

Upward Revision of Bids by QIBs and Non-Institutional | Only between 10.00 a.m. on the Bid/Issue

Investors categories” Opening Date and up to 4.00 p.m. IST on
Bid/Issue Closing Date

Upward or downward revision of Bids or cancellation of | Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 5.00 p.m. IST

Bids by Retail Individual Bidders on Bid/ Issue Closing Date

* UPI mandate end time was at 5:00 p.m. on the Bid/ Issue Closing Date.
* QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders could neither revise their bids downwards nor cancel/withdraw their Bids.

On the Bid/Issue Closing Date, the Bids shall be uploaded until:

(1) 4:00 p.m. IST in case of Bids by QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders, and
(i1) until 5.00 p.m. IST or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchange, in case of Bids by Retail
Individual Bidders

The time for applying for Retail Individual Bidder on Bid/ Issue Closing Date maybe extended in consultation
with the BRLM, RTA and NSE taking into account the total number of applications received up to the closure of
timings.

Due to the limitation of time available for uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms on the Bid/ Issue Closing
Date, Bidders are advised to submit their applications one (1) day prior to the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and, in any
case, not later than 12.00 P.M. (IST) on the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Any time mentioned in this Red Herring
Prospectus is IST. Bidders are cautioned that, in the event a large number of Bid Cum Application Forms are
received on the Bid/Issue Closing Date, as is typically experienced in public Issue, some Bid Cum Application
Forms may not get uploaded due to the lack of sufficient time. Such Bid Cum Application Forms that cannot be
uploaded will not be considered for allocation under this Issue. Applications will be accepted only on Working
Days, i.e., Monday to Friday (excluding any public holidays). Neither our Company nor the BRLM is liable for
any failure in uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms due to faults in any software/hardware system or
otherwise.

In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-a-vis the data contained in the physical Bid
Cum Application Form, for a particular Bidder, the details as per the file received from Stock Exchange may be
taken as the final data for the purpose of Allotment. In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic
book vis-a-vis the data contained in the physical or electronic Bid Cum Application Form, for a particular ASBA
Bidder, the Registrar to the Issue shall ask the relevant SCSBs/ RTAs / DPs / stockbrokers, as the case may be, for
the rectified data.

Underwriter

Our Company and the Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue hereby confirm that the Issue is 100%
underwritten by the underwriter Vivro Financial Services Private Limited. The underwriting agreement is dated
January 21, 2025 and pursuant to the terms of the underwriting agreement, obligations of the underwriter are
subject to certain conditions specified therein. The underwriter has indicated their intention to underwrite
following number of specified securities being offered through this Issue.

Details of the Underwriter No. of Shares Amount % of the total Issue
Underwritten” Underwritten Size Underwritten
Vivro Financial Services Private Limited 60,50,000 [] 100.00

607/608 Marathon Icon, Opp. Peninsula
Corporate Park, Off. Ganpatrao Kadam
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Details of the Underwriter No. of Shares Amount % of the total Issue
Underwritten” Underwritten Size Underwritten
Marg, Veer Santaji Lane, Lower Parel,
Mumbai 400013, Maharashtra, India.
Telephone: +91-22 6666 8040
Email id: investors@vivro.net
Investor Grievance id: investors@vivro.net
Website: www.vivro.net
Contact Person: Vivek Vaishnav
SEBI Registration No.: INM000010122
CIN: U67120GJ1996PTC029182
*Includes 3,01,000 Equity shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each of the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to be subscribed by the

Market Maker vide their agreement dated January 21, 2025 in order to comply with the requirements of Regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, as amended.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of our Company, the resources of the above-mentioned Underwriter are
sufficient to enable them to discharge their respective underwriting obligations in full.

Details of Market Making Arrangement

Our Company and the Book Running Lead Manager have entered into Market Making Agreement dated January
21, 2025 with the following Market Maker to fulfil the obligations of market making for this Issue:

Name Rikhav Securities Limited

Address Office No. 992-A, 9™ Floor, P.J.Tower, Dalal Street,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400001

Telephone 022-69078200 / 300

E-mail roc(@rikhav.in

Contact Person Mr. Vishal G, Patel

SEBI Registration No. INZ000157737

Market Maker Registration No. SMEMMO0317408052012

Rikhav Securities Limited registered with EMERGE Platform of NSE, will act as the market maker and has agreed
to receive or deliver the specified securities in the market making process for a period of three years from the date
of listing of our Equity Shares or for a period as may be notified in SEBI ICDR Regulations as amended from
time to time.

The Market Maker shall fulfil the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, as amended from time to time and the circulars issued by NSE EMERGE and SEBI in this matter
from time to time.

In terms of Regulation 261(1) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the market making arrangement through the Market
Maker will be in place for a period of three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares and shall be carried
out in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations and the circulars issued by NSE EMERGE and SEBI regarding
this matter from time to time.

In terms of Regulation 261(2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Market Maker or Issuer, in consultation with the
Book Running Lead Manager may enter into agreements with the nominated investors for receiving or delivering
the specified securities in market making, subject to the prior approval of NSE EMERGE.

In terms of regulation 261(3) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, following is a summary of the key details pertaining to
the Market Making arrangement:

The Market Maker “Rikhav Securities Limited”, shall be required to provide a two-way quote for 75% of the time
in a day. The same shall be monitored by the Stock Exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall inform the Stock
Exchange in advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market
Maker(s).
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The prices quoted by Market Maker shall be in compliance with the market maker spread requirements and other
particulars as specified or as per the requirements of NSE EMERGE and SEBI from time to time.

The minimum depth of the quote shall be X1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only). However, the investors with
holdings of value less than ¥1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) shall be allowed to offer their holding to the
Market Maker in that scrip provided that he sells his entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration
to the effect to the selling broker.

There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts his
inventory through market making process, NSE EMERGE may intimate the same to SEBI after due verification.

The Market Maker shall not sell in lots less than the minimum contract size allowed for trading on NSE EMERGE
(in this case currently the minimum trading lot size is [*] Equity Shares; however, the same may be changed by
NSEfrom time to time).

After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the Market Maker would be exempted to
provide quote if the Shares of Market Maker in our company reaches to 25% of Issue Size. Any Equity Shares
allotted to Market Maker under this Issue over and above 25% of Issue Size would not be taken in to consideration
of computing the threshold of 25% of Issue Size. As soon as the Shares of Market Maker in our Company reduces
to 24% of Issue Size, the Market Maker will resume providing 2-way quotes.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for the quotes
given by him.

There would not be more than five Market Makers for a script at any point of time and the Market Makers may
compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.

On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading will
happen as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered
price during the pre-open call auction.

The Market maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily/fully
from the market-for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior
approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable reasons. The decision of
the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final.

The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving six months’ notice or on
mutually acceptable terms to the BRLM, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market Maker(s)
and execute a fresh arrangement.

In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the completion of the
compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the BRLM to arrange for another Market
Maker in replacement during the term of the notice period being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date
of releasing the existing Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of
regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended. Further our Company and the BRLM reserve the right
to appoint other Market Makers either as a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market
Maker subject to the total number of Designated Market Makers does not exceed five or as specified by the
relevant laws and regulations applicable at that particulars point of time. The Market Making Agreement is
available for inspection at our office from 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on working days.

Price Band and Spreads: The SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20,
2012, has laid down that for Issue size up to X250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first day shall be:

i. In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session
shall be 5% of the equilibrium price.
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il. In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading
session shall be 5% of the Issue price.

Additionally, the trading shall take place in TFT segment for first 10 days from commencement of trading. The
following spread will be applicable on the SME platform:

Sr.  Market Price Slab (in X) Proposed Spread (in Market Price Slab (in Rs.) Proposed Spread

No. % to sale price) (in % to sale price)
1. Up to 50 9
2. 50to 75 8
3. 75 to 100 6
4. Above 100 5

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Maker:

EMERGE Platform of NSE will have all margins which are applicable on NSE viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-
Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss Margin, Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. NSE may impose
other margins as deemed necessary from time-to-time.

Punitive Action in case of default by Market Maker:

EMERGE Platform of NSE will monitor the obligations on a real time basis and punitive action will be initiated
for any exceptions and/or non-compliances. Penalties / fines may be imposed by the Exchange on the Market
Maker, in case he is not able to provide the desired liquidity in a particular security as per the specified guidelines.
These penalties / fines will be set by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the
Market Maker in case they are not present in the market (offering two-way quotes) for at least 75% of the time.
The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities / trading membership.

The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties / fines
/suspension for any type of misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregularities by the Market Maker from time to time.

The Market Maker shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving 3 (three) months’ notice or on
mutually acceptable terms to the Book Running Lead Manager, who shall then be responsible to appoint a
replacement Market Maker.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side
for market makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the Issue size and as follows:

Issue Size Buy quote exemption threshold Re-entry threshold for buy quote
(Including mandatory initial inventory (Including mandatory initial
of 5% of the Issue size) inventory of 5% of the Issue size)
Up to %20 Crore 25% 24%
%20 to %50 Crore 20% 19%
%50 to %80 Crore 15% 14%
Above 280 Crore 12% 11%

The Market Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above shall be
subject to the applicable provisions of law and / or norms issued by SEBI / NSE from time to time.

All the above-mentioned conditions and systems regarding the Market Making Arrangement are subject to change
based on changes or additional regulations and guidelines from SEBI and Stock Exchange from time to time.

Withdrawal of the Issue

Our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, reserve the right not to proceed with the
Issue at any time before the Bid/ Issue Opening Date without assigning any reason thereof.
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If our Company withdraws the Issue any time after the Bid/ Issue Opening Date but before the allotment of Equity
Shares, a public notice within 2 (two) working days of the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, providing reasons for not
proceeding with the Issue shall be issued by our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same
newspapers where the pre- Issue advertisements have appeared, and the Stock Exchange will also be informed
promptly. The BRLM, through the Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts
within 1 (one) working Day from the day of receipt of such instruction.

If our Company withdraws the Issue after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with
an Issue of the Equity Shares, our Company will have to file a fresh Draft Red Herring Prospectus with the stock
exchange where the Equity Shares may be proposed to be listed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is subject to obtaining (i) the final listing and trading approvals of the
Stock Exchange with respect to the Equity Shares issued through this Red Herring Prospectus, which our
Company will apply for only after Allotment; and (ii) the registration of Red Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus with
RoC.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]

86



SECTION V - CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The share capital of the Company as on date of this Red Herring Prospectus is set forth below:

(T in lakhs, except share data)
Particulars Aggregate Aggregate value at
nominal value Issue Price*
A. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of face value % 10 each 2,500.00 -

B. ISSUED, SUBCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE
CAITAL BEFORE THE OFFER
1,65,94,626 Equity Shares of face value X 10 each 1,659.46 -

C. PRESENT OFFER IN TERMS OF THIS RED
HERRING PROSPECTUS#
Issue of up to 60,05,000 Equity Shares of face value X 10 600.50 [*]
each at an Issue Price of X [+] per Equity Share
Of which
Reservation for Market Maker: 30.50 []
3,01,000 Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an
Issue Price of X [*] per Equity Share reserved as Market
Maker Portion
Net Issue to Public: [°] [°]
[*] Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue
Price of X [+] per Equity Share to the Public
Net Public Issue consists of: *
Allocation of Qualified Institutional Buyers [] []
Not more than [*] Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/-
each at an Issue Price of X [*] per Equity Share will be
available for allocation to Qualified Institutional Buyers
Allocation to Non-Institutional Investors: [] []
At least [¢] Equity Shares of face value of 210/- each at
an Issue Price of X [*] per Equity Share will be available
for allocation to Non-Institutional Investors
Allocation to Retail Individual Investors: [°] [*]
At least [*] Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each at
an Issue Price of X [*] per Equity Share will be available
for allocation to Retail Individual Investors

D. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP EQUITY
CAPITAL AFTER THE ISSUE
2,25,99,626 Equity Shares of face value of R10/- each 2,259.96** -

E. SECURITIES PREMIUM
Before the Issue (as on the date of this Red Herring - 8,76,58,446
Prospectus)
After the Issue - [*]

*To be updated upon finalization of the Issue Price

The issue has been authorised by our Board of Directors at their meeting held on October 08, 2024 and by our Shareholders pursuant to the
resolution passed at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 11, 2024.

**Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment

#¥The allocation to all categories shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid Applications received at or above the Issue Price.
Under subscription, if any, in any of the categories, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any of the other categories or a
combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and Designated Stock
Exchange. Such inter-se spill over, if any, would be affected in accordance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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Classes of Shares

Our Company has only one class of share capital i.e., Equity Shares of face value X 10/- each only. All the issued
Equity Shares are fully paid-up. Our Company has no outstanding convertible instruments as on the date of this

Red Herring Prospectus.

Notes to Capital Structure

1. Change in Authorised Share Capital of our Company:

The initial authorized capital of our Company was %2,000/- (Rupees Two Thousand) consisting of 20
(Twenty) Equity Shares of *100/- (Rupees One Hundred) each. Further, the authorised share capital of
our Company has been altered in the manner set forth below:

Date of General
Meeting
September 01, 1999

June 04, 2010

July 22,2023

August 14, 2023

September 17,2024

Particulars of change in Authorized Share Capital

Increase of the authorised share capital of our Company from X 5,00,000/-
(Rupees Five Lakh Only) divided into 5,000 (Five Thousand Only) Equity
Shares of T 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each to ¥ 25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-
Five Lakh Only) divided into 25,000 (Twenty-Five Thousand Only) Equity
Shares of ¥ 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each.

Increase of the authorised share capital of our Company from X 25,00,000/-
(Rupees Twenty-Five Lakh Only) divided into 25,000 (Twenty-Five Thousand
Only) Equity Shares of X 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each to % 1,00,00,000/-
(Rupees One Crore Only) divided into 1,00,000 (One Lakh) Equity Shares of X
100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each.

Subdivision of the Equity Shares of the Company having face value of X 100/-
(Rupees Hundred Only) into Equity Shares of face value ¥ 10/- (Rupees Ten
Only). Therefore, the resulting Authorized Share capital of the Company was
changed to ¥ 1,00,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Only) divided into 10,00,000/-
(Ten Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of X 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each from X
1,00,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Only) divided into 1,00,000/- (One Lakh Only)
Equity Shares of X 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each.

Increase of the authorised share capital of our Company from 1,00,00,000/-
(Rupees One Crore Only) consisting of 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) Equity Shares of
% 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to X 21,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-One Crore
Only) consisting of 2,10,00,000 (Two Crore Ten Lakh Only) Equity Shares of %
10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

Increase of the authorised share capital of our Company from 21,00,00,000/-
(Rupees One Crore Only) consisting of 2,10,00,000 (Twenty One Lakh) Equity
Shares of % 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to % 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-
Five Crore) consisting of 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakh Only) Equity
Shares of % 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

2. Equity Share Capital History of our Company

Our existing Paid-up Equity Share Capital has been subscribed and allotted in the manner set forth below:

Sr. Date of

No. Allotment

1. On
Incorporation

2. Fiscal 1997"

3. September
21, 1999

4, March 24,

Nature of No. of Face Issue  Nature Cumulative Cumulative
Allotment Equity Value Price of Number of Paid-up
Shares ® ® Conside Equity Share
Allotted ration Shares Capital
Subscription 20 100 - Cash 20 2,000
to MOA®
-@ 1980 100 - - 2,000 2,00,000
Bonus 4,000 100 - - 6,000 6,00,000
Issue®
Bonus 18,000 100 - - 24,000 24,00,000
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Sr. Date of Nature of No. of Face Issue  Nature Cumulative Cumulative
No. Allotment Allotment Equity Value Price of Number of Paid-up
Shares ® ® Conside Equity Share
Allotted ration Shares Capital
2010 Issue®
5. October 15, Bonus 24,000 100 - - 48,000 48,00,000
2010 Issue®®
6. June 19,2017 Bonus 48,000 100 - - 96,000 96,00,000
Issue©®

7. Pursuant to our Board resolution dated June 30, 2023 and our Shareholders resolution dated July 22, 2023,
the existing equity shares of face value of *100/- each of our Company were sub-divided into equity shares of
face value of X10/- each. Consequently, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity shares capital of our
Company, comprising 96,000 equity shares of face value of *100/- each was sub-divided into 9,60,000, equity
shares of face value of *10/- each (“Equity Shares”).

8. August 16, Bonus 1,44,00,00 10 - - 1,53,60,000 15,36,00,000
2023 Issue” 0"
9. May 14,2024  Private 8,79,133 10 81 cash 1,62,39,133  16,23,91,330
Placement®
10.  June 11,2024 Private 3,08,950 10 81 cash 1,65,48,083  16,54,80,830
Placement®
11.  July 15,2024  Private 46,543 10 81 cash 1,65,94,626 16,59,46,260

Placement('?)

*The Form 2 filed by our Company with the RoC in relation to the allotment is not traceable in our records. We have engaged M K.
Saraswat & Associates, practicing Company Secretaries, to conduct searches and inspections of the secretarial records maintained
by the Company, documents available in the digital records maintained on the MCA portal, and physical search of the corporate
records of the Company as maintained at the ROC (“Inspection”). Pursuant to the Inspection, M.K. Saraswat & Associates,
practising Company Secretaries has issued a search report dated October 17, 2024 confirming that the Form 2 filing in relation to
the allotment of Equity Shares is untraceable. For details, see “Risk Factors - Some of our historical corporate records are not
traceable.” on page 34.

W Initial Subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of our Company — 20 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each issued at

par:
Sr. No.
1.
2.

2 Allotment of 1,980 Equity Shares of face value T 100/- each issued at par:

Sr. No.
1.

2.
3.
4

Name

Akshay Pakvasa
Sonal Pakvasa
Total

Name

Akshay Pakvasa
Sonal Pakvasa
Kartik Pakvasa
Ambalal Mistry
Total

Number of Equity Shares
10
10
20

Number of Equity Shares
330

330

610

610

1,980

? Allotment of 4,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 2:1

Sr. No.
1.

2.
3.
4

Name

Akshay Pakvasa
Sonal Pakvasa
Kartik Pakvasa
Ambalal Mistry
Total

Number of Equity Shares
680

680

1,320

1,320

4,000

@ Allotment of 18,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 3:1

Sr. No.
1.
2.
3.

Name

Akshay Pakvasa

Sonal Pakvasa

Sameer Akshay Pakvasa
Total

Number of Equity Shares
9,180

6,660

2,160

18,000

 Allotment of 24,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 1:1

Sr. No.
1.
2.
3.

Name

Akshay Pakvasa

Sonal Pakvasa

Sameer Akshay Pakvasa
Total

89

Number of Equity Shares
12,160

8,960

2,880

24,000



@ Allotment of 48,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 1:1

Sr. No. Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Akshay Pakvasa 47,999
2. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1
Total 48,000
7 Allotment of 1,44,00,000 Equity Shares of face value T 10/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 15:1
Sr. No. Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1,43,99,700
2. Archana Desai 300
Total 1,44,00,000
@ Allotment of 8,79,133 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 10/- each by way of Private Placement
Sr. No. Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Srinivasan Subramanian 30,864
2 Ashish Kumbhat 30,864
3 Amit Jain 30,864
4. Rupa Jain jointly with Ashish Jain 18,518
5. Yashodhara D Pendse 18,518
[ Puja Jain jointly with Hemal Shah 18,518
7. Smita Deepak Parekh 30,864
8. Virender Kumar Anand 30,864
9. Alpa Popat 18,148
10. Arun Popat 18,148
11. Beren Pupat 15,679
12. Rajeev Sharma 30,864
13. Zainab Hussain Nautiyal 61,728
14. Bharat Shah jointly with Anita Shah 30,864
15. Minerva Ventures Fund 2,46,914
16. EFC (I) Limited 2,46,914
Total 8,79,133
@ Allotment of 3,08,950 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 10/- each by way of Private Placement
Sr. No. Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Idris Rajkotwala 24,691
2. Jatin Sehgal 30,864
3. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 2,28,704
4 Archana Desai 24,691
Total 3,08,950
19 Allotment of 46,543 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 10/- each by way of Private Placement
Sr. No. Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Monu Popat 15,679
2. Soft Lite Impex Private Limited 30,864
Total 46,543

The securities issued by the Company from inception till the date of the Red Herring Prospectus have
been issued in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, more particularly, Section 62(1)(c) and Section
42 for the private placement, and Section 63 for Bonus issue.

Convertible Warrants

Our Company does not have any outstanding convertible warrants as on the date of filing this Red
Herring Prospectus

Preference Share Capital
As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any preference share capital.

Issue of shares for consideration other than cash or by way of bonus issue or out of revaluation of
reserves

Except as mentioned below, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than
cash or by way of bonus issue or out of revaluation of reserves at any time since incorporation.
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Sr. Date of Nature of No. of Face Issue Nature
No. Allotmen  Allotment Equity Value  Price of
t Shares ® ® Conside
Allotted ration
1. Septembe  Bonus 4,000 100 N.A. N.A.
r21,1999  Issue)
2. March 24, Bonus 18,000 100 N.A. N.A.
2010 Issue®
3. October Bonus 24,000 100 N.A. N.A.
15,2010 Issue®
4. June 19, Bonus 48,000 100 N.A. N.A.
2017 Issue®
5. August Bonus 1,44,00,000" 10 N.A. N.A.

16,2023 Issue®

*Number of shares increase due to split of face value of share from Z 100 to Z10/- each

Cumulativ
e Number
of Equity
Shares
6,000
24,000
48,000
96,000

1,53,60,000

D Allotment of 4,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 2:1

Sr. Name Number of Equity Shares
No.
1. Akshay Pakvasa 680
2. Sonal Pakvasa 680
3. Kartik Pakvasa 1,320
4. Ambalal Mistry 1,320
Total 4,000
@ Allotment of 18,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 3:1
Sr. Name Number of Equity Shares
No.
1. Akshay Pakvasa 9,180
2. Sonal Pakvasa 6,660
3. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 2,160
Total 18,000

) Allotment of 24,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 1:1

Sr. Name Number of Equity Shares
No.
1. Akshay Pakvasa 12,160
2. Sonal Pakvasa 8,960
3. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 2,880
Total 24,000

@ Allotment of 48,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 1:1

Sr. Name Number of Equity Shares
No.
1. Akshay Pakvasa 47,999
2. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1
Total 48,000

) Allotment of 1,44,00,000 Equity Shares of face value ¥ 10/- each by way of Bonus Issue in the ratio of 15:1

Sr. Name Number of Equity Shares
No.
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1,43,99,700
2. Archana Desai 300
Total 1,44,00,000

Issue of Equity Shares pursuant to schemes of arrangement

Cumulative
Paid-up
Share
Capital

6,00,000
24,00,000
48,00,000
96,00,000

15,36,00,000

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has not allotted any Equity Shares in terms

of any schemes of arrangement.

Issue or transfer of Equity Shares under employee stock option schemes

The Company does not have any employee stock option schemes under which any equity shares of the
Company is granted. Accordingly, no Equity Shares have been issued or transferred by our Company

pursuant to the exercise of any employee stock options.
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Issue of shares at a price lower than the Issue Price in the last year

The Issue Price shall be determined by Our Company in consultation with the BRLM after the BID/Issue
Closing Date. Our Company has issued Equity Shares during a period of 1 (one) year preceding the date
of this Red Herring Prospectus which may be lower than the Issue Price.

Sub-Division/ consolidation of Equity shares in the last one year

Except as disclosed below, our Company has not undertaken any sub-division or consolidation of its
Equity Shares in the one (01) year preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Pursuant to our Board Resolution dated June 30, 2023 and our Shareholders’ Resolution dated July 22,
2023, the Equity Shares of face value ¥ 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each were sub-divided into Equity
Shares of face value X 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. Consequently, the issued, subscribed and paid-up
equity share capital of our Company, comprising 96,000 (Ninety-Six Thousand Only) Equity Shares of
face value X 100/- were sub-divided into 9,60,000/- (Nine Lakh Sixty Thousand Only) Equity Shares of
face value X 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.
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10.

Shareholding Pattern of our Company

The table below presents the equity shareholding pattern of our Company as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Category Category of Number of Number of Number of Number of Total number Shareholding as a Number of Voting Rights held in each Number of Shareholding, as a Number of locked in Number of Shares pledged Number of Equity
or otherwise encumbered
(XIID)

(U]

)

(B)
©

(CD)

(€2

shareholder shareholders fully paid-up Partly

a0 (11D

Promoter and 2
Promoter

Group

Public 24
Non -
Promoter-

Non Public

Shares -
underlying

depository

receipts

Shares held by -
employee

trusts

Total 26
(A+B+C)

shares  of shares held % of total number

Equity paid-up underlying (VID)
Shares held Equity Depository
av) Shares Receipts (VI) (\%))
held
™
15,588,380 - 15,588,380
1,006,246 - 1,006,246
16,594,626 - 16,594,626

of shares

=IV)+(V)+ (calculated as per

SCRR,

class of securities (IX)

1957) (VIII) As a Number of Voting Rights

% of (A+B+C2) Class: Equity
Shares

93.94% 15,588,380

6.06% 1,006,246

100.00% 16,594,626

93

Total

15,588,380

1,006,246

16,594,626

shares
Underlying
Outstanding
convertible
securities

Total as  (including

a % of Warrants) (X)

(A+B+

(&)

93.94 -

6.06 -

100.00 -

% assuming full

conversion of
convertible
securities (as a

percentage of
diluted share
capital) (XI)=
(VID+(X) As a
% of (A+B+C2)
93.94

6.06

100.00

shares (XII)

Number As a % of Number (a)

(€]

total
Shares
held (b)

2

24

26

15,588,380

1,006,246

16,594,626

As a % of
total Shares
held (b)

Shares held in
dematerialized form
(XIV)



11.

12.

Date of
Allotment/
Acquisition

May 15, 2001*

January 23,
2004*
May 2, 2005*

May 2, 2005*

September 15,
2008*
September 15,
2008*

March 24, 2010
October 15, 2010
June 02, 2014

June 02,2014

June 02, 2014
June 02, 2014
August 28, 2014
August 28, 2014
August 29, 2014
2014-15%

June 19, 2017

September 8,
2021
September 8,
2021
September 8,
2021
September 8,
2021
September 8,
2021

Number of
Equity
Shares

Allotted/
Transferred

480

240
(480)
(240)
480
240
2,160

2,880
17,920

15,199

9,120
5,760
(17,920)
(11,280)
(18,798)
(5,760)
1
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000

15,996

Face
value
per
Equity
Share
®
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100

100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100

Other details of shareholding of our Company

Issue/
Transfer
Price per

Equity
Share ()

94

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Nature
of
Consid
eration

Cash

Cash
Gift
Gift
Gift
Gift
N.A.

N.A.
Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

N.A.

Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

Nature of
Allotment/
Transfer

Purchase from
Ambalal K
Mistry
Purchase from
Karthik Paksava
Gift to Akshay
Pakvasa
Gift to
Pakvasa
Gift from
Akshay Paksava
Gift from Sonal
Pakvasa

Bonus Issue
Bonus Issue
Purchase from
Akshay Pakvasa
and Sonal
Pakvasa
Purchase from
Akshay Pakvasa
and Sonal
Pakvasa
Purchase from
Akshay Pakvasa
Purchase from
Akshay Pakvasa
Sold to Akshay
Pakvasa

Sold to Akshay
Pakvasa

Sold to Akshay
Pakvasa

Sold to Akshay
Paksava

Bonus Issue

Sonal

Purchase from
Akshay Paksava
Purchase from
Akshay Paksava
Purchase from
Akshay Paksava
Purchase from
Akshay Paksava
Purchase from
Akshay Paksava

% of

Pre-

Issue
capital

Negligi
ble

Negligi
ble
Negligi
ble
Negligi
ble
Negligi
ble
Negligi
ble
0.01%
0.017%
0.1%

0.09%

0.05%
0.03%
0.11%
0.07%
0.11%
0.03%
Negligi
ble
0.12%
0.12%
0.12%

0.12%

0.09%

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has 26 (Twenty Six) shareholders.

The build-up of the equity shareholding of our Promoter since incorporation of our Company is
set forth in the table below:

% of

post -

issue
capital



Date of Number of Face Issue/ Nature Nature of % of % of

Allotment/ Equity value Transfer of Allotment/ Pre- post -
Acquisition Shares per Price per Consid Transfer Issue issue
Allotted/ Equity Equity eration capital  capital
Transferred Share  Share ()
®

Pursuant to our Board Resolution dated June 30, 2023 and our Shareholders’ Resolution dated July 22, 2023, the
Equity Shares of face value X 100/- (Rupees Hundred Only) each were sub-divided into Equity Shares of face
value X 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. Consequently, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of
our Company, comprising 96,000 (Ninety-Six Thousand Only) Equity Shares of face value X 100/- were sub-
divided into 9,60,000/- (Nine Lakh Sixty Thousand Only) Equity Shares of face value X 10/- (Rupees Ten Only)
each.

Accordingly, 95,998 Equity shares held by Sameer Akshay Pakvasa of face of 100 (Rupees Hundred Only) each
were sub-divided into 9,59,980 Equity Shares of face value of *10 (Rupees Ten Only) each.

August 16, 2023 1,43,99,700 10 10 N.A. Bonus Issue 86.77% [°]

August 17,2023 1) 10 10 Cash Sold to Aatif Negligi [¢]
Mohamed Yakub ble

August 17,2023 1) 10 10 Cash Sold to Suhail Negligi [¢]
Mohamed Yakub ble

August 17,2023 (1.00) 10 10 Cash Sold to Mayank Negligi [°]
Kumar Sharma ble

August 17, 2023 (1.00) 10 10 Cash Sold to Sonal Negligi [°]
Paksava ble

August 17, 2023 (1.00) 10 10 Cash Sold to Rajeev  Negligi [°]
Narendra ble
Sharma

June 11, 2024 2,28,704 10 81 Cash Private 1.38%  [°]
Placement

Total 1,55,88,379 - - - - 93.94%

*The transfer forms for the transfer of Equity Shares of our Company are not traceable. For further details, see “Risk Factor —
Some of our historical corporate records are not traceable.” beginning on page 34.

13. List of Shareholders of the Company holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share Capital of

the Company
a. As on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus
Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares Percentage of the Pre-Issue
No. Held (Face value Equity Share Capital (%)
%10)
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1,55,88,379 93.94
2. Minerva Ventures Fund 2,46,914 1.49
3. EFC (I) Limited 2,46,914 1.49
Total 1,60,82,207 96.92
b. 10 days prior to the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus
Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares Held (Face  Percentage of the Pre-Issue
No. value X10) Equity Share Capital (%)
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1,55,88,379 93.94
2. Minerva Ventures Fund 2,46,914 1.49
3. EFC (I) Limited 2,46,914 1.49
Total 1,61,18,207 96.92
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14.

15.

16.

17.

One year prior to the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus

Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares Held (Face Percentage of the Pre-Issue

No. value X10) Equity Share Capital (%)
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1,53,59,680 99.99
Total 1,53,59,680 99.99

Two years prior to the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus

Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares Held (Face Percentage of the Pre-
No. value X100) Issue Equity Share
Capital (%)
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 95,998 99.99
Total 95,998 99.99

The aggregate shareholding of the Promoter and Promoter Group

Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares Held Percentage of the Pre-Issue
No. (Face value ¥100) Equity Share Capital (%)
Promoter
1. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa 1,55,88,379 93.94
Promoter Group
1. Sonal Pakvasa 1 Negligible
Total 1,55,88,380 93.94

Except as provided below no Equity Shares were acquired/ purchased/ sold by the Promoter and
Promoter Group, Directors and their immediate relatives within six months immediately preceding
the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. Date of Name of Category of  Number of Percentage of Purchase/
No. Allotment/ Shareholder Allottees Equity the Pre-Issue Sold
Transfer Shares Equity Share
capital
1. June 11,2024  Sameer Akshay  Promoter 2,28,704 1.38% Purchase
Pakvasa

The members of the Promoters’ Group, our directors and the relatives of our directors have not financed
the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company, other than in the normal course of the
business of the financing entity, during the six months immediately preceding the date of filing this Red
Herring Prospectus.

Details of Promoter’s Contribution locked in for 3 years

Pursuant to the Regulation 236 and 238 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, an aggregate of 20.00% of the
Post-Issue Equity Share Capital held by our Promoter shall be considered as promoters’ contribution
(“Promoters’ Contribution”) and locked-in for a period of three years from the date of Allotment of the
Equity Shares. The lock-in of the Promoters’ Contribution would be created as per applicable law and
procedure and details of the same shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing of the
Equity Shares.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoter holds 15,588,379 Equity Shares of face
value of ¥10/- each constituting 93.94% of the pre-issued, subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital
of our Company, which are eligible for the Promoter’s contribution.

Our Promoter, Sameer Akshay Pakvasa, has given written consent to include 45,31,225 Equity Shares
of face value of %10/- each held by them and subscribed by them as part of Promoter Contribution
constituting 20.05 % of the post Issue Equity Shares of our Company. Further, he has agreed not to sell
or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the Promoter contribution, for a period of
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three years from the date of allotment in this Issue.

Name of Number of  Number of Face Value Percentage of the Percentage of the Date up to which
Promoter Equity Shares Equity Shares per Equity pre- Issue paid- post- Issue paid- Equity Shares are

held locked-in* Share X)  up capital (%) up capital (%)* subject to lock-
in”
Sameer 1,55,88,379  45,31,225 10 93.94% [o] [e]
Akshay
Pakvasa
Total 1,55,88,379  45,31,225 93.94% [o] [e]

*subject to finalization of basis of allotment
“to be updated at time of Prospectus

The minimum Promoter’s contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified
minimum lot and from persons defined as “Promoter” under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. All Equity
Shares, which are being locked in are not ineligible for computation of Minimum Promoter Contribution
as per Regulation 237 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and are being locked in for 3 (three) years as per
Regulation 238(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations i.e. for a period of three years from the date of allotment
of Equity Shares in this Issue.

The shareholding of the Promoter in excess of 20% of the fully diluted Post-Issue Equity Share capital
shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of Allotment.

The Equity Shares held by shareholders other than Promoter shall be locked-in for a period of 1 (one)
year from the date of Allotment in the Issue, the same may be transferred to any other person holding the
Equity Shares which are locked-in, subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of transferees for
the remaining period (and such transferees shall not be eligible to transfer until the expiry of the lock-in
period) and compliance with the SEBI Takeover Regulations.

All the Equity Shares held by our Promoter are in dematerialized form.

Compliance with regulation 237 of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the minimum Promoter’s contribution
of 20% as shown above which is subject to lock-in for three years, we confirm the following:

Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Conditions Eligibility Status of
Equity Shares forming
part of the Promoter
Contribution
237(1) (a) Specified securities acquired during the preceding three years, if they are  Eligible
@) acquired for consideration other than cash and revaluation of assets or

capitalization of intangible assets is involved in such transaction
237(1) (a) Specified securities acquired during the preceding three years, resulting  Eligible
(i1) from a bonus issue by utilization of revaluation reserves or unrealized

profits of the issuer or from bonus issue against Equity Shares which are

ineligible for minimum promoters’ contribution.
237 (1) Specified securities acquired by the promoters’ and alternative investment  Eligible
(b) funds or foreign venture capital investors or scheduled commercial banks

or public financial institutions or insurance companies registered with

Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, or any non-

individual public shareholder holding at least five per cent. of the post-

issue capital or any entity (individual or non-individual) forming part of

promoter group other than the promoter(s) during the preceding one year

at a price lower than the price at which specified securities are being

offered to the public in the initial public offer.
237 (1) Specified securities allotted to the promoters and alternative investment Eligible
() funds during the preceding one year at a price less than the issue price,

against funds brought in by them during that period, in case of an issuer

formed by conversion of one or more partnership firms or limited liability

partnerships, where the partners of the erstwhile partnership firms or

limited liability partnerships are the promoters of the issuer and there is
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20.

21.

Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Conditions Eligibility Status of

Equity Shares forming
part of the Promoter
Contribution

no change in the management.

Provided that specified securities, allotted to the promoters against the

capital existing in such firms for a period of more than one year on a

continuous basis, shall be eligible;

237 (1) Specified securities pledged with any creditor Eligible

(d)
Compliance with Lock-in Requirements

The entire pre-issue paid-up capital of the Company shall remain locked in as per requirements of
Regulations 238 and 239 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as detailed hereinafter:

As required by clause (a) of Regulation 238, Minimum Promoters’ Contribution i.e. 45,31,225 Equity
Shares of face value of 210/- each held by our promoter which shall 20.05 % of proposed post-issue
paid up capital shall be locked-in for a period of three years from the date of allotment in the Initial Public
Offer, which is as under:

Name of Number of Number of Face Value Percentage of  Percentage of Date up to which

Promoter Equity Equity per Equity the pre- Issue  the post- Issue  Equity Shares
Shares held Shares Share X) paid-up capital paid-up capital are subject to
locked-in* (%) (%)™ lock-in”
Sameer 1,55,88,379  45,31,225 10 93.94% [®] [e]
Akshay
Pakvasa
Total 1,55,88,379  45,31,225 93.94% [e] [e]

*subject to finalization of basis of allotment
"o be updated at time of Prospectus

As required by clause (b) of Regulation 238, the excess of minimum promoters’ contribution i.e.
1,10,57,155Equity Shares of face value of R10/- each held by our Promoter shall be locked-in for a period
of one year from the date of allotment in present initial public offer, which is as under:

Name of Number of Number of Face Value Percentage of  Percentage of Date up to which

Promoter Equity Equity per Equity the pre- Issue  the post- Issue  Equity Shares
Shares held Shares Share X) paid-up capital paid-up capital are subject to
locked-in* (%) (%) lock-in*
Sameer 1,55,88,379  1,10,57,154 10 93.94% [e] [e]
Akshay
Pakvasa
Total 1,55,88,379  1,10,57,154 93.94% [e] [e]

*subject to finalization of basis of allotment
"to be updated at time of Prospectus

As required by Regulation 239, the entire pre-issue capital held by persons other than the promoter i.e.
10,06,247 Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each shall be locked-in for a period of one year from the
date of allotment in the present initial public offer

Inscription or recording of non-transferability
In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company confirms that certificates of
Equity Shares which are subject to lock in shall contain the inscription “Non-Transferable” and specify

the lock-in period and in case such equity shares are dematerialized, the Company shall ensure that the
lock-in is recorded by the Depository.
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22.

23.

24.

25.

Pledge of Locked in Equity Shares

In terms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares held by our Promoter and
locked in may be pledged as a collateral security for a loan granted by a scheduled commercial bank or
public financial institution or a systemically important non-banking finance company or housing finance
company, subject to following:

In case of Minimum Promoters’ Contribution, the loan has been granted to the issuer company or its
subsidiary(ies) for the purpose of financing one or more of the Objects of the Issue and pledge of equity
shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

In case of Equity Shares held by Promoter in excess of Minimum Promoters’ contribution, the pledge of
equity shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

However, lock in shall continue pursuant to the invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall not be
eligible to transfer the equity shares till the lock in period stipulated has expired.

Transferability of Locked in Equity Shares

In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and subject to provisions of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as
applicable:

The Equity Shares held by our Promoter and locked in as per Regulation 238 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations may be transferred to any person of the Promoters’ Group or to a new promoter(s) or persons
in control of our Company, subject to continuation of lock-in for the remaining period with transferee
and such transferee shall not be eligible to transfer them till the lock-in period stipulated has expired.

The Equity Shares held by persons other than Promoter and locked in as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations may be transferred to any other person (including Promoters’ Group) holding the
equity shares which are locked-in along with the equity shares proposed to be transferred, subject to
continuation of lock-in for the remaining period with transferee and such transferee shall not be eligible
to transfer them till the lock in period stipulated has expired.

Lock-in of Equity Shares Allotted to Anchor Investors

50% of the Equity Shares Allotted to Anchor Investors in the Anchor Investors Portion shall be locked-
in for a period of 90 days from the date of Allotment and the remaining 50% of the Equity Shares shall
be locked-in for a period of 30 days from the date of Allotment.

Employee stock option schemes

The Company does not have any employee stock option schemes under which any Equity Shares of the
Company is granted. Accordingly, no Equity Shares have been issued or transferred by our Company

pursuant to the exercise of any employee stock options.

There are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert debentures, loans or other instruments
into Equity Shares as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Other Confirmations

26.

27.

Our Company, our Directors and the Book Running Lead Manager have not entered into any buy-back
arrangements for the purchase of Equity Shares being issued through the Offer from any person.

We have 26 shareholders as on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus. As on the date of this
Red Herring Prospectus, the entire Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of our Company
is fully paid up. Since the entire issue price in respect of the Issue is payable on application, all the
successful applicants will be allotted fully paid-up Equity Shares.
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28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

The Book Running Lead Manager and their associates do not hold any Equity Shares of our Company
as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. The BRLM and its affiliates may engage in the transactions
with and perform services for our Company in the ordinary course of business or may, in the future,
engage in investment banking transactions with our Company for which they may receive customary
compensation.

Our Promoter and Promoter Group will not participate in the Issue.

Our Company shall ensure that any transactions in Equity Shares by our Promoter and the Promoter
Group during the period between the date of filing this Red Herring Prospectus and the date of closure
of the Issue shall be reported to the Stock Exchange within 24 hours of the transactions.

There are no outstanding convertible securities or any other right which would entitle any person any
option to receive Equity Shares as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus

Prior to this Initial Public Offer, our Company has not made any public issue or right issue to public at
large.

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of the Issue

As on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding warrants, options or
rights to convert debentures, loans or other financial instruments into our Equity Shares.

As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this Issue.

As on date of this Red Herring Prospectus, other than the Equity Shares, there is no other class of
securities issued by our Company.

Our Company undertakes that at any given time, there shall be only one denomination for our Equity
Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, none of the Equity Shares held by our Promoter/ Promoter
Group are subject to any pledge.

As on the date of filing the Red Herring Prospectus document, our Company does not have any such plan
for altering the capital structure by way of split or consolidation of the denomination of the shares, or
issue of specified securities on a preferential basis or issue of bonus or rights or further public issue of
specified securities or qualified institutions placement. Further, our Company may alter its capital
structure by way of split / consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares or issue of equity shares
on a preferential basis or issue of bonus or rights or further public issue of equity shares or qualified
institutions placement, within a period of six months from the date of opening of the present issue to
finance an acquisition, merger or joint venture or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of
arrangement or for any other purpose, as the Board of Directors may deem fit, if an opportunity of such
nature is determined by the Board of Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by NSE,
SEBI and other regulatory authorities from time to time.

There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued.
There are no safety net arrangements for this public Issue.
Our Promoter and Promoter Group will not participate in this Issue.

This Issue is being made through Book Building Process.
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45.

46.

47.

In terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended, (the
SCRR) the Issue is being made for at least 25% of the post-Issue paid-up Equity Shares Share capital of
our Company. Further, this Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
from time to time.

No person connected with the Issue shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in the nature of
discount, commission, and allowance, or otherwise, whether in cash, kind, services or otherwise, to any
Applicant.

Except as stated below, none of our other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel holds Equity Shares in
our Company.

Sr.  Name of Individual Designation Number of % of Pre-Issue paid
No. Equity Shares up Share Capital
1 Sameer Akshay Chairman and Managing 1,55,88,379 93.94

Pakvasa Director
2. Mayank Kumar Whole-Time Director 1 0.00

Sharma
3. Archana Desai Chief Financial Officer 25,011 0.15
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SECTION VI - PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE
OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Our Company intends to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (“Gr oss Proceeds”), after deducting
the Issue related expenses (“Net Proceeds”), for the following objects:

1 Repayment, in full or in part, of certain borrowings availed by our Company;
2. To meet working capital requirements; and
3. General Corporate Purposes.

(collectively, referred to “Objects”)

In addition, our Company expects to receive the benefits of listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange
and enhancement of our Company’s visibility and brand image and creation of a public market for our Equity
Sharesin India.

The Main Objects clause and objects incidental and ancillary to the Main Objects as set out in the Memorandum
of Association of our Company enables us to undertake the existing activities and the activities for which the
funds are being raised through the Issue.

| ssue Proceeds

The details of the | ssue Proceeds are set forth in the table below:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Gross Proceeds from this I ssue® Upto [e]
Less: Estimated Issue related expenses* [e]
Net Proceeds from thelssue [e]
A assuming full subscription and allotment.
*to be finalized upon determination of the I ssue Price and updated in the Prospectus at the time of filing with the RoC.
Utilisation of Net Proceeds and Schedule of Deployment
The proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds by our Company is set forth in the following table:
(R in lakhs)
Particulars Amount which will be Proposed schedule for deployment of
financed from Net the Net Proceeds
Proceeds Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2026
Repayment of a portion of certain 2,500.00 2,500.00 -
outstanding borrowings availed by
our Company
Utilization towards working capital 3,000.00 2,000.00 1,000.00
requirements of our Company
Genera Corporate Purposes* [e] [e] [e]
Total Net proceeds® [o] [e] [e]

*To be finalized upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC. The amount utilized for
General Corporate Purposeswill not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.
~ Assuming full subscription and subject to finalization of basis of allotment.

The funding requirements mentioned above are based on management estimates and current business plans.
However, such fund requirements and deployment of funds have not been appraised by any bank, financial
institution or any other external agency. For further details, see ‘Risk Factors— Our funding requirements and the
proposed deployment of Net Proceeds are not appraised by any independent agency and deployment of funds
raised through this Issue shall not be subject to monitoring by any monitoring agency’ on page 54 of this Red
Herring Prospectus. We may have to revise our funding requirements and deployment on account of a variety of

102



factors, such asour financial and market condition, business and strategy, competition, negotiation with customers
and vendors, outstanding Order Book, variation in cost estimates on account of various factors and other external
factors, which may not be within the control of our management. This may entail rescheduling or revising the
planned utilisation of net and funding proceeds at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with
applicable laws. For details, see ‘Risk Factors - Any variation in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds would be
subject to certain compliance requirements, including prior shareholder’s approval.’ on page 54 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.

If the estimated utilization of the Net Proceeds in the scheduled financial years are not completely met, due to
reasons stated above, the same shall be utilised in the next financial year i.e. FY 2025-26 or FY 2026-27, as may
be determined by our Company, in accordance with applicable laws. Subject to applicable laws, in the event of
any increase in the actual utilization of funds earmarked for the purposes set forth above, such additional funds
for a particular activity will be met by way of means available to us, including from internal accruals and any
additional equity and/or debt arrangements. Our management expectsthat such alternate meanswould be available
to fund any such shortfall. Further, if the actual utilisation towards the Object is lower than the proposed
deployment, such balance will be used for future growth opportunities and towards general corporate purposes to
the extent that the total amount to be utilised towards general corporate purposeswill not exceed 25% of the Gross
Proceeds in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

M eans of Finance

The fund requirements set out above is proposed to be entirely funded from the Net Proceeds, working capital
loans from bank and internal accruals. Accordingly, we confirm that there are no requirements to make firm
arrangements of finance under Regulation 230(1)(e) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In case of shortfall in the Net
Proceeds or any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for the Objects, our Company may explore
arange of optionsincluding utilizing our internal accruals, any additional equity and/or debt arrangements.

Details of the Objects of thislssue
1. Repayment, in full or in part, of certain borrowings availed by our Company

Our Company has entered various arrangementsfor borrowings, in theform of, inter alia, working capital
loans, from HDFC banks and Bank of Baroda banks. As on December 31, 2024, the total working capital
borrowings of our Company, is I 4,143.87 lakhs. For details of these financing arrangements including
indicative terms and conditions, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 270.

Our Company intends to utilize % 2,500.00 lakhs from Net Proceeds towards repayment of full or part of
the principal amount on working capital loans availed by it, the details of which are listed out in the table
below. Pursuant to the terms of the borrowing arrangements, commitment or foreclosure charges as
prescribed by the respective lenders may beimposed on us. Such commitment or foreclosure charges, as
applicable, along with interest, will also be funded out of Net Proceeds. In the event the Net Proceeds
are insufficient for payment of commitment or foreclosure charges, or interest, as applicable, such
payment shall be made from the internal accruals of our Company.

Given the nature of the borrowings and the terms of repayment, the aggregate outstanding amounts under
the borrowings may vary from time to time and our Company may in accordance with the relevant
repayment schedule, pre-pay/repay or refinance some of its existing borrowings prior to Allotment.
Further, the amounts outstanding under the borrowings as well as the sanctioned limits are dependent on
several factors and may vary with the business cycle of our Company with multiple intermediate
repayments, drawdowns and enhancement of sanctioned limits. Further, our Company may also avail
additional borrowings after the date of this Red Herring Prospectus and/or draw down further funds under
existing loans from timeto time. In light of the above, if at the time of filing this Red Herring Prospectus,
any of the below mentioned loans are repaid in part or full or refinanced or if any additional credit
facilities are availed or drawn down and if the terms of new loans are more onerous than the older loans
or if the limits under the borrowings are increased, then the table below shall be suitably revised to reflect
the revised amounts or loans as the case may be which have been availed by our Company.
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We believe that the repayment of a portion of certain outstanding borrowings availed by our Company
will help reduce our outstanding indebtedness and finance costs, assist usin maintaining afavorable debt
to equity ratio and enable utilisation of our internal accruals for further investment in business growth
and expansion.

The selection of borrowings proposed to be repaid amongst our borrowing arrangements availed will be
based on various factors, including (i) cost of the borrowing, including applicable interest rates, (ii) any
conditions attached to the borrowings restricting our ability to repay the borrowings and time taken to
fulfil, or obtain waivers for fulfilment of such conditions, (iii) terms and conditions of such consents and
waivers, (iv) levy of any prepayment penalties and the quantum thereof, (v) provisions of any laws, rules
and regulations governing such borrowings, and (vi) other commercial considerations including, among
others, the amount of the loan outstanding and the remaining tenor of theloan. Our Company may utilize
Net Proceeds to repay the facilities disclosed below in accordance with commercial considerations,
including amounts outstanding at the time of repayment. For details, see “Financial Indebtedness” on
page 270 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

In accordance with Clause 9(A)(2)(b) of Part A of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our
Company has obtained the requisite Statutory Auditor’s report dated January 29, 2025 issued in
accordance with Standard on Related Services (SRS) 4400, “Engagements to Perform Agreed-upon
Procedures regarding Financial Information”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
certifying the utilisation of loans for the purpose availed.

Our Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, members of Senior Management, Promoters, members of our
Promoter Group and Group Company do not have any interest in the proposed investment to be made by
our Company towards the abovementioned Object.

The details of the outstanding loans of our Company on a standalone basis proposed for repayment or
prepayment, in full or in part from the Net Proceeds are set forth below:
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Name of the
Lender

HDFC Bank
Limited

Bank of Baroda

Natur e of
Borrowings

Various fund
based and non-
fund based
working  capital
facilities
including  cash
credit, letter of
credit, Bank
Guarantee,
corporate card and
commercial card.

Fund based and
non-fund  based
working  capital
facilities

including  cash
credit, letter of
credit, Bank
Guarantee.

Date of
Sanction
L etter

27-Jun-24

04-Oct-24

Amount Outstanding I nterest Purpose for
sanctioned ason Amount ason Ratep.a./ which the loan
December 31, December 31, 2024 was sanctioned
2024 R in lakhs)*
11,207.00 3301.66 Rate of For Working
Interest — capital
10.71% Requirement
1,500.00 842.21 Rate of For Working
Interest — capital
11.00% Requirement
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Commitment Char ges

Borrower is liable to be
charged a commitment
fees of 0.5% per annum
on the shortfall amount,
in case the quarterly
utilisation is less than
60% of the cash credit
CC/Overdraft  against
property (ODAP)
facilities sanctioned.

Commitment  Charges
will be levied in case of
non-utilisation/under-
utilisation of working
capita limits  for
advance amount with
fund based working
capital of Rs 1 Crore or
above, if average
utilisation is below 60%
of sanctioned/operative
limit. Utilisation shall be
examined on quarterly
basis

Charges: @0.50% p.a.+
GST for the balance un-
untilized portion below
60% of the
sanction/operative limit.

Note: At the time of
closure of accounts, the
commitment basis.
charges should be

Prepayment
Charges

Bank  prepayment
charges of 4 % or at
such rate as may be
advised by the bank
a the time such

prepayment request
is made for
prepayment or
foreclosure of the
facility.

Closure before 6
months - 4% of
entire loan amount
outstanding

Closure after 6
months - 2% of the
entire loan
outstanding.

No prepayment
charges for loans
upto Rs 50.00 lakhs,
if the borrower is
classified as micro
or small enterprise.
Or As per Bank

guidelines
applicable from
timeto time.

Note: In case the

credit facilities are
taken over by any
Bank/FI/NBFC

Tenor/Repa
yment
Scheduled

Payable on
demand

Payable on
demand



Name of the
Lender

Natur e of
Borrowings

Date of
Sanction
L etter

Amount
sanctioned ason
December 31,
2024

Outstanding
Amount ason
December 31, 2024
R in lakhs)*

I nterest
Ratep.a/

Purpose for
which theloan
was sanctioned

Commitment Char ges

recovered on a

proportionate basis.

Rate of commitment
charges: To belevied on
quarterly basis, based on
average utilization of
sanctioned/operative
limit.

(As certified by Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co LLP Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditor of the Company, through its certificate dated January 29, 2025)
*Sanctioned limit includes non-fund based limits sanctioned by HDFC Bank Limited and Bank of Baroda. For details, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 270
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Prepayment
Charges

within 12 months
from the date of first
disbursement, all
the concessions
availed by the
borrowing  during
the last 12 months
preceding the date
of Closure/takeover
will be refunded to
the bank by the
borrowers.

Tenor/Repa
yment
Scheduled



To meet working capital requirements

We propose to utilise ¥ 3,000.00 Lakhs from the Net Proceeds to fund the working capital requirements
of our Company in fiscal 2025 and 2026. Out of ¥ 3000.00 lakhs, the Company intends to utilise %
2,000.00 lakhs in fiscal 2025 and incremental utilise of T 1,000.00 lakhs in fiscal 2026. We have net
working capital requirements, and we fund most of our net working capital requirements in the ordinary
course of business from our existing equity, internal accruals and financing facilities from various banks,
financial institutions and non-banking financial companies. Our Company requires working capital for
funding its present and future growth requirements. For details, please see “Financia |ndebtedness”
beginning on page 270 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

In light of the ongoing projects awarded to our company, and in order to support the incremental business
requirements, our Company requires additional funds in the financia year ending March 31, 2025, and
March 31, 2026, for its net working capital requirements. Our Company requires net working capital,
after deducting cash & cash equivalent, of 310,575.65 lakhs and X13,843.95 lakhs for fiscal year 2025
and 2026, respectively. The Company proposes to utilise X 2,000.00 lakhs in fiscal 2025 and X 1,000.00
lakhsin fiscal 2026 towards net working capital requirement from the proceeds of the Issue.

Basis of estimation of working capital requirement

The details of our Company’s working capital for Fiscals 2022, 2023 and 2024 and for the quarter ended
September 30, 2024 and their source of funding, derived on the basis of audited financial statements of
our Company and on the basis of existing and estimated working capital requirement of our Company,
on astandalone basis, and assumptions for such working capital requirements, our Board, pursuant to its
resolution dated January 29, 2025, has approved the projected working capital requirements for Fiscal
2025 and 2026.The details of such working capital are as set forth below:

(In Lakhs)
Sr. Particulars Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal For Six month  Fiscal Fiscal 2026
No. 2022 2023 2024 period ended 2025
September 30,
2024
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Estimate) (Estimate)
I Current Assets
1 Inventories 1,911.77 2,285.40 5,035.83 5,257.11 5609.60 7619.71
2 'Fl;reacdgevabl05 2,892.36 3,607.06 4,781.10 5,713.72 7191.80 9349 34
3 Cash & Cash 6.34 205.51 758.90 2,333.75 3262.25 2610.72
Equivalents
4 ][\g?ré;gl Money 248.41 508.26 852.72 855.48 1528.00 2104.00
5 Short-term Loans ~ 1,648.17 1,181.61 1,615.95 4,611.13 1991.00 2346.12
& Advances )
6 Retention Money 2,257.33 2,248.47 2,476.89 2,713.92 3454.85 4725.01
7 Other Current 30.79 86.38 80.65 94.82 85.00 97.00
Assets )
Total (A) 8,995.17  10,122.67 15,602.03  21,579.93 23122.50 28851.90
I Current
Liabilities
1 Trade Payables 3,404.05 2,914.87 5,273.51 5,254.20 5609.60 7619.71
2 Other Current 1,591.36 1,883.29 2,413.48 7,768.80 3675.01 4777.51
Liabilities
3 Short Term 13.14 3.34 7.20 7.13 0.00 0.00
Provisions
Total (B) 5,008.55 4,801.49 7,694.19 13,030.13  9284.61 12397.22
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Sr. Particulars Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal For Six month  Fiscal Fiscal 2026
No. 2022 2023 2024 period ended 2025
September 30,
2024
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Estimate) (Estimate)
1 Total Working 3,986.62 5,321.17 7,907.84 8,549.80 13,387.90 16,454.68
Capital Gap (A-
B)
Less: Cash & 6.34 205.51 758.90 2,333.75 3262.25 2610.72
Cash Equivalents
v Net Working 3,980.28 5,115.66 7,148.94 6,216.04 10,575.64 13,843.96
capital Gap

\4 Funding pattern
a) Bank Borrowings 1,992.05 2,158.31 3,718.49 2,876.78 1,000.00 1,000.00
b) Internal Accruals 1,988.24 2,957.36 3,430.46 3,339.26 7,575.64 11,843.96
/ Networth
) Amount proposed - - - 2,000.00 1,000.00
to be utilized
from Net
Proceeds
* Note: Short Term Borrowings includes current maturity of long-term borrowings and interest accrued but not due (As certified
by Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co LLP Chartered Accountants, Satutory Auditor of the Company, through its certificate dated January
29, 2025)

In addition to the receivables, inventories and payables, we are required to provide 5% to 10% of the
project tender amount as performance bank guarantee and upto 5% to 10% of project tender amount as
retention money till the project is completed. Thereafter, the combined 10% of the project tender amount
as retention money must continue for a period of 12 to 36 months from the date of completion of the
respective project as per the defect liability period clause. Further, to obtain Bank Guarantee, the
Company deposits approximately 20% of the guarantee amount as Margin Money to the Banks.

Hence, we have net working capital requirement in the nature of trade receivables, inventory of raw
material and finished goods, FDRs against bank guarantees, earnest money deposit, retention money etc.
whichwefundinthe ordinary course of businessfrom our internal accrual s/equity and financing facilities
from various banks, financial institutions and related parties.

Assumptions for our estimated working capital requirements

The table below contains details of the holding levels (days) considered for Fiscal 2024 and estimated
holding levels (days) for fiscal year 2025 and fiscal year 2026:

Sr Particulars Basis Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Six month Fiscal Fiscal
No 2022 2023 2024 period ended 2025 2026
September
30, 2024
1  TradeReceivables Days 69 69 79 54 75 75
Inventories
2 (Work-in-progress) Days 62 56 100 65 75 75
3  Trade Payables Days 110 71 105 65 75 75

Justification for holding period levels:
Inventories Inventories primarily include work in progress. The average inventory holding
level in Fiscal 2022, 2023, 2024 and for the six-month period ended September 30,
2024, were 62, 56,100 and 65 days respectively.

The inventory levels are dependent on the nature, size, and timelines of our
projects. As project volumes increase, so does the need for higher inventory levels
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to meet demand. For instance, larger and a greater number of projects often require
substantial amounts of inventory to ensure that project gets completed on time,
which can lead to longer holding periods. We believe that considering the size of
our orders in hand, overall economic conditions and various factors involved in
execution of projects, the holding level is expected to be maintained to 75 daysfor
fiscal 2025 and fiscal 2026.

The inventory level has witnessed an increase over the disclosed financial period
primarily due to being awarded new projects and the level of work on existing
projects. In view of the Order Book of ¥ 43,486.33 lakhs as of December 31, 2024,
the estimated time to complete these projects and new project win, we have
considered theinventory level to be maintained around 75 daysfor fiscal 2025 and
fiscal 2026.

The assumption of increase in holding level reflects a possible expansion in
inventory levels, potentially due to increased production or purchasing activities.
Trade Our project’s invoice is done based on percentage of work completed, material
Receivables supplied or milestone achieved. On an average, we realize our invoice within a
period of 68 to 79 days subject to the stage of the project, the payment cycle
followed by our clients, acceptance of escalation claims, budgetary alocation
available, etc.

The debtors’ realization for Fiscal 2022, 2023 and 2024, and for the quarter ended
September 30, 2024, were 69, 69, 79 and 54 days. Based on our historical debtors’
realization days, we believe that a collection period of 75 days for fiscal 2025 and
fisca 2026, seems redlistic and achievable, given the current business

developments.
Trade Our trade payables mainly comprise of suppliers of materials and services such as
Payables plywood’s, laminates, granite, tiles, hardware items, electronic and mechanical

items, to sub-contractors, etc. During Fiscal 2022, 2023, 2024 and for the six month
period ended September 30, 2024, our creditors period was 110, 71, 105 and 65
days respectively. However, we anticipate reducing the creditors payment period
to 75 daysin fiscal 2025 and fiscal 2026.

Additionally, some of our purchases require advance payments to suppliers, and
timely payments are crucia for timely delivery of projects, strengthening long-
term relationships and maintaining a balanced supply chain.

General Corporate Purposes

In terms of Regulation 230(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the extent of the Issue Proceeds proposed
to be used for general corporate purposes must not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. Our Board will
haveflexibility in applying the balance amount towards part or full repayment/prepayment of outstanding
borrowings, meeting our working capital requirements, capital expenditure, funding our growth
opportunities, including strategic initiatives, meeting expensesincurred in the ordinary course of business
including salaries and wages, administration expenses, insurance rel ated expenses, meeting of exigencies
which our Company may face in course of business and any other purpose as may be approved by the
Board or a duly appointed committee from time to time.

Our management, in response to the competitive and dynamic nature of our industry and business, will
have flexibility in utilizing any amounts for general corporate purposes under the overall guidance and
policies of our Board. The quantum of utilisation of fundstowards any of the purposeswill be determined
by the Board or aduly appointed committee, based on the amount actually available under this head and
the business requirements of our Company, from time to time.
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Estimated I ssue related expenses

The total expense of this Issue is estimated to be X [] lakhs. The break-up of the Issue expensesis as
follows:

Particulars Amount* % of % of
(R in lakhs) Estimated Estimated
Issuerelated Issuesize
expenses
Fees payable to BRLM and commission [e] [e] [e]

(including selling commission, brokerage and

underwriting commission) *

Commission/processing fee for SCSBs, [e] [e] [e]
Sponsor Bank and Bankers to the Issue and

bidding/uploading charges for Members of the

Syndicate, Registered Brokers, RTAs and

CDPs

Fees payable to the Registrar to the Issue [e] [e] [e]
Others

(i) Listing fees, SEBI filing fees, BSE [e] [e] [e]
processing fees and other regulatory expenses;

(it) Printing and stationery expenses, [e] [e] [e]
(iii) Advertising and marketing expenses, [e] [e] [e]
(iv) Fees payable to legal counsel; [e] [e] [e]
(vi) Miscellaneous (including fees payable to [e] [e] [e]

auditors, consultants, market research firms

and other professional agencies)

Total estimated | ssue expenses* [e] [e] [e]
* Amounts will be finalised and incorporated in the Prospectus on determination of Issue Price

~ The detail s of the fees and commissions payable to Designated Intermediaries will be updated at the time of filing of Prospectus
with RoC.

1) SCSBsand other intermediarieswill be entitled to selling commission of 0.01% of the Amount Allotted (product of the number
of Equity Shares Allotted and the I ssue Price) for the forms directly procured by them and uploaded on the el ectronic system
of the Sock Exchange by them.

2)  Processing fees payable to the SCSBs for Bid cum Application Forms which are procured by the Registered Brokers/ RTAs
/ CDPs and submitted to the SCSB for blocking shall be ¥10/- per valid Bid cum Application Form (plus applicable taxes).
In case the tota/ processing charges payable exceeds 10 lakhs, the amount payable would be proportionately distributed
based on the number of valid applications such that the total processing charges payable does not exceed X10 lakhs (Based
on valid Bid cum Application Forms)

3) Processing fees for applications made by Retail Individual Investors and Non-Institutional Investors using the UPI
Mechanismwould be as follows:

Sponsor Bank HDFC Bank Limited
¥6.5 +GST per UPI valid application

Bridge Financing Facilities

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan from any bank or financial ingtitution as on the date of this
Red Herring Prospectus, which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds.

Interim use of Net Proceeds

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, our Company intends to temporarily deposit the
funds temporarily in the scheduled commercial banks included in the second schedule of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934, as may be approved by our Board of Directors in compliance with the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws. Our Company confirms that pending utilization of the
Net Proceeds towards the stated objects of the Issue, our Company shall not use/deploy the Net Proceeds
for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in shares of any other listed company or for any investment in
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the equity markets.
Monitoring of utilization of funds

Since the Issue is for an amount less than X 10,000.00 lakhs, in terms of Regulation 262 of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for the purposes of the
Issue. Our Audit Committee will monitor the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue. We will disclose
details of the utilization of the Net Proceeds of the Issue, including interim use, under a separate head in
our financial statements specifying the purpose for which such proceeds have been utilized or otherwise
disclosed as per the disclosure requirements.

Pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company will disclose to the Audit Committee the uses
and applications of the Net Proceeds. Our Company will prepare a statement of funds utilised for
purposes other than those stated in this Red Hering Prospectus and place it before the Audit Committee,
as required under applicable law. Such disclosure shall be made only until such time that al the Net
Proceeds have been utilised in full. The statement shall be certified by the statutory auditor of our
Company. Furthermore, in accordance with the Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our
Company will furnish to the Stock Exchange on a half yearly basis, a statement indicating (i) deviations,
if any, in the utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue from the objects of the Issue as stated above; and (ii)
details of category wise variationsin the utilisation of the proceeds from the I ssue from the objects of the
I ssue as stated above.

Variation in Objects

In compliance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company will not vary the Objects of
the Issue unless our Company is authorized to do so by way of a special resolution of its Shareholders
and such variation will be in accordance with applicable laws, including the Companies Act, 2013 and
the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing
of such special resolution shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act, 2013
and applicablerules. The notice shall simultaneously be published in the newspapers, onein English and
one in Marathi, being the regional language of Mumbai, where our Registered and Corporate Office is
situated, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules. Our Promotersor controlling
shareholders must provide an exit opportunity to such Shareholders who do not agree to the proposal to
vary the Objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this regard.

Appraising entity

None of the Objects of this Issue, for which the Net Proceeds will be utilized, have been appraised.
Strategic or financial partners

There are no strategic or financial partnersto the Objects of the I ssue.

Interest of Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors, in the Objects of the | ssue

Our Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors do not have any interest in the objects of the Issue. No
part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to our Promoter, Promoter Group,
Directors and Key Manageria Personnel of our Company. There are no material existing or anticipated

transactionsin relation to the utilisation of the Net Proceeds entered or to be entered into by our Company
with our Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel.
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BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE

The Price Band and Issue Price will be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead
Manager on the basis of assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares issued through the Book Building
Process and on the basis of quantitative and qualitative factors as described below. The face value of the Equity
Shares is X 10 each and the Issue Price is [®] times the Floor Price and [®] times the Cap Price, and Floor Price is
[e] times the face value and the Cap Price is [@] times the face vaue. Investors should read the following basis
with the sections titled “Risk Factors”, “Restated Financial Information” and the chapter titled “Our Business”
beginning on page 29, 210 and 142 respectively, of this Red Herring Prospectus to get a more informed view
before making any investment decisions. The trading price of the Equity Shares of our Company could decline
due to these risk factors and you may lose all or part of your investments.

Qualitative Factors

Some of the qualitative factors and our strengths which form the basis for the Issue Price are:

Proven track record of diversified service offerings encompassing awide range of industries;
Long term relationship with customers;

Experienced and qualified designing, engineering and execution team;

Professional and experienced management team;

Diverse domain expertise with effective project integration capabilities;

Strong footprint at key economic hubsin India;

Strong and diversified Order Book;

Nook~wdpE

For more details on qualitative factors, refer to chapter “Our Business” on page 142 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

Quantitative Factors

The information presented in this section is derived from our Restated Consolidated Financial Statements. For
more details on financial information, investors please refer the chapter titled “Restated Financial 1nformation”
on page 210 of this Red Herring Prospectus. Investors should evaluate our Company taking into consideration its
earnings and based on its growth strategy. Some of the quantitative factors which may form the basis for
computing the price are as follows:

1. Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (“EPS”):
Financial period Basic and Diluted EPS (in ) Weight
Fiscal 2024 7.95 3
Fiscal 2023 6.71 2
Fiscal 2022 3.32 1
Weighted Average 6.76 -
Six month period ended September 30, 5.89 [e]
2024
* Not Annualised
Notes:
@ Earnings per Share arein accordance with Accounting Sandard 20 - Earnings per Share, as amended
2 Basic Earnings per Equity Share (J) = Profit for the year, as restated, divided by Weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period/year
?3) Diluted Earnings per Equity Share () = Profit for the year, as restated divided by Weighted average number of diluted
equity shares outstanding during the period/year
4) Weighted Average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted EPS divided by the aggregate of weightsi.e. (EPSx Weight) for
each year/Total of weights
5) The figures disclosed above are based on the Restated Financial Satements.
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Price Earning (P/E) Ratio in relation to Price Band of X [e] to ¥ [e] per Equity Share:

Particulars P/E at the Floor Price P/E at the Cap Price
(number of times) (number of times)

Based on ‘basic EPS - for The details shall be provided post the fixing of price band by our

Fiscal 2024 . .

Based on diluted EPS for Company at the stage of Pro.spectus or the filing of price band
. advertisement and

Fiscal 2024

Industry Peer Group P/E Ratio

There are no listed companies whose business operations are similar to that of our Company or are of a
comparable size to that of our Company. Accordingly, it is not possible to provide an industry
comparison in relation to our Company.

Return on Net Worth (“RoNW?): Asper the Restated Financial Statements:

Financial period RoNW (%) Weight
Fiscal 2024 26.96% 3
Fiscal 2023 30.32% 2
Fiscal 2022 19.64% 1
Weighted Average 26.86% -
for the six month period ended o -
September 30, 2024° 15.60%
* Not Annualised
Notes:
@ Weighted average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted Return on Net Worth divided by the aggregate of weightsi.e.
(Return on Net Worth x Weight) for each year/Total of weights.
(@) Return on Net Worth (%) = Restated profit for the year divided by average net worth, where average net worth is

calculated by dividing sum of closing net worth of the current fiscal year and closing net worth of the previous fiscal
year by 2. Net Worth of FY 2021 is taken from audited financial statements Net worth = Equity Share capital plus
Reserves and Surplus

(©)] Net worth = Equity Share capital plus Reserves and Surplus

Net Asset Value per Equity Share:

Net Asset Value per Equity Share NAYV per Equity Share (%)

Asat March 31, 2024 33.44

As at September 30, 2024 42.73

After the Issue

- At Floor Price [e]

- At Cap Price [e]

Issue Price [e]
Notes:
@ Net Asset Value per Equity Share = Net worth derived from Restated Financial Satements as at the end of the year

divided by number of equity shares outstanding as at the end of the period/year as per Restated Financial Satements.

) The ‘Net worth’ defined above is in accordance with 2(1)(hh) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e. “net worth” means

the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the profits and securities premium
account and debit or credit balance of profit and loss account, after deducting the aggregate value of the
accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off, as per the audited balance
sheet, but does not include reserves created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation.

Comparison of accounting ratioswith Industry Peers
There are no listed companies whose business operations are similar to that of our Company or are of a

comparable size to that of our Company. Accordingly, it is not possible to provide an industry
comparison in relation to our Company.
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Key Financial and Operational Performance Indicators

The table below sets forth the details of the key financial and operational performance indicators
(“KPIs”) that our Company considers have abearing for arriving at the basisfor Issue Price. These KPIs
have been used historically by our Company to understand and analyse business performance, which in
result, help usin analysing the growth of various vertical segments. The Bidders can refer to the below-
mentioned KPIs to make an assessment of our Company’s performance in various business verticals and
make an informed decision.

The KPIs disclosed below have been approved by a resolution of our Audit Committee dated January
29, 2025 and the Audit Committee has confirmed that the KPIs pertaining to our Company that have
been disclosed to investors at any point of time during the three years period prior to the date of this Red
Herring Prospectus have been disclosed in this section and have been subject to verification and
certification by M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, bearing firm registration
number 104184W/W100075, pursuant to certificate dated January 29, 2025, which has been included as
part of the “Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection” on page 368.

Our Company confirmsthat it shall continueto disclose al the KPIsincluded in this section on aperiodic
basis, at least once in ayear (or any lesser period as determined by the Board of our Company), for a
duration of one year after the date of listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange or till the
complete utilization of the proceeds of the Fresh Issue as per the disclosure made in the Objects of the
I ssue Section, whichever islater or for such other duration as may be required under the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018.

For details of our key operating, financial and other operating metrics disclosed elsewhere in this Red
Herring Prospectus, see “Our Business” on pages 142 and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 257.

Set forth below are KPI's which have been used historically by our Company to understand and analyse
the business performance, which in result, help us in analysing the growth of various verticals of the
Company that have abearing for arriving at the Basis for the Issue Price:

(R in lakhs except percentages and ratios)
Sr No Particulars Period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023  Fiscal 2022
September 30, 2024

1 Revenue from Operations |akhs) 19,209.63 22129.19 19025.86 15383.03
2 Earnings before Interest, Tax, 1,569.54 1,981.10 1,334.38 679.33
Depreciation and Amortisation
(EBITDA) @
3 EBITDA Margins (%)® 8.17% 8.95% 7.01% 4.42%
4 Profit after Tax (PAT) 953.47 1,220.58 1,031.13 509.38
5 PAT Margins (%)© 4.96% 5.52% 5.42% 3.31%
6 Cash Profit after Tax © 1,069.37 1423.93 1191.24 634.48
7 Current Ratio® 1.36 1.37 1.45 1.27
8 Debt-Equity Ratio® 0.45 0.83 0.72 0.78
9 Return on Equity (%)@ 15.60%" 26.96% 30.32% 19.64%
10 Return on Capital Employed (%)® 15.09%" 24.23% 21.46% 15.34 %
"Not Annualised
Notes:

EBITDA has been calculated as a sum of profit before tax, finance costs and depreciation and amortization less other income.
EBITDA Marginsis calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations.

PAT Margins (%) is calculated as Profit After Tax carried to balance sheet divided by Revenue from Operations.

Cash Profit After Tax iscal culated asa sumof Profit After Tax to balance sheet and Depreciation and amortisation and Impairment
as per Restated Financial Satements.

Current Ratio is calculated as Total Current Assets divided by Total Current Liabilities.

Debt-Equity Ratio is calculated as Total Debt divided by Adjusted Net-Worth as per Restated Financial Satements. Total Debt is
calculated as a sum of Long-Term Borrowings and Short-Term Borrowings (including current maturity of long-term borrowings).
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(9)

(h)

Return on Equity is calculated as Restated profit after tax After Tax carried to balance sheet for the year divided by average net
worth, where average net worth is calculated by dividing sum of closing adjusted net worth of the current fiscal year and closing
adjusted net worth of the previous fiscal year by 2. Adjusted net worth of FY 2021 is taken from audited consolidated financial
statements.

Return on Capital Employed is calculated as Earnings Before Interest and Tax divided by Average Capital Employed. Average
Capital Employed iscalculated by dividing sumof closing capital employed of the current fiscal year and closing capital employed
of the previous fiscal year by 2. Capital employed is calculated as sum of adjusted net worth, Long-Term Borrowings and short-
term borrowings. Capital Employed of FY 2021 is taken from audited consolidated financial statements.

Description on the historic use of the KPIs by our Company to analyse, track or monitor the
operational and/or financial performance of our Company

The KPIs disclosed below have been used historically by the Company to understand and analyze the
business performance, which in result, help it in analyzing the growth of various verticals, and other
relevant and material KPIs of the business of the Company that have a bearing for arriving at the Basis
for Offer Price have been disclosed below. The KPIs set forth above have been approved by the Audit
Committee pursuant to its resolution dated January 29, 2025.

Thelist of the KPIsaong with brief explanation of the relevance of the KPIs for the business operations
of the Company are set forth below:

Sr  KPIs Explanation

No.

I. Revenue from Operations Revenue from operation provided information regarding growth

of our business operations over the period

2. Earnings before Interest, EBITDA provides information regarding operational
Tax, Depreciation and profitability and the financial performance of the business.
Amortisation (EBITDA)

3. EBITDA Margins (%) EBITDA margin provides the financial benchmarking against

peers as well as to compare against the historical performance of
our business.

4. Profit after Tax (PAT) PAT provides information regarding the overall Profitability of
our business.
5. PAT Margins (%) PAT margin is an indicator of the overall profitability of our

business and provides the financial benchmarking against peer
as well as to compare against the historical performance of our
business.

6. Cash Profit after Tax Cash Profit after Tax is an indicator which denotes profit
generated from our business operations during the period before
adjusting the non-cash items

7. Current Ratio Current ratio is an indicator of short-term solvency i.e.,
company's ability to pay short-term obligations or those due
within one year.

8. Debt-Equity Ratio Debt Equity Ratio is an indicator of overall leverage of our
company
9. Return on Equity (%) RoE provides how efficiently the Company generates profits
from average shareholders’ funds.
10. Return on Capital RoCE provides how efficiently our Company generates earnings
Employed (%) from the average capital employed in our business.

Comparison of KPIswith listed industry peers
There are no listed companies whose business operations are similar to that of our Company or are of a

comparable size to that of our Company. Accordingly, it is not possible to provide an industry
comparison in relation to our Company.

Comparison of Key Performance Indicators over time shall be explained based on additions or
dispositionsto our business
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Our Company has not made any additions or dispositions to its business during quarter ended September
30, 2024and during the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022. For further details see “History and Certain
Corporate Matters” on page 179.

Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition, Floor Price and Cap Price

Priceper shareof the Company (asadjusted for corporateactions, including split, bonusissuances)
based on primary issuancesof Equity Sharesor convertible securities(excludingissuance of Equity
Shares pursuant to a bonus issue) during the 18 months preceding the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus, where such issuance is equal to or more than 5% of the fully diluted paid-up share
capital of the Company in a single transaction or multiple transactions combined together over a
span of rolling 30 days (“Primary | ssuances”)

The details of the Equity Shares or convertible securities, excluding issuance of bonus shares, during the
18 months preceding the date of this RHP, where such issuance is equal to or more that 5% of the fully
diluted paid-up share capital of the Company (calculated based on the pre- Issue capital before such
transaction(s)), in a single transaction or multiple transactions combined together over a span of rolling
30 days (“Primary Issuance”) are as follows:

Date of No. of Face | ssue Natur e of Natur e of Total
allotment shares Value price allotment  consideration consideration
transacted*  (in%) per (in % lakhs)
share
14-May-24 8,79,133 10 81 Private Cash 712.1
Placement
11-Jun-24 3,08,950 10 81 Private Cash 250.25
Placement
15-Jul-24 46,543 10 81 Private Cash 37.7
Placement
Total 1,000.05
Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition [Total Consideration/Total Number of 81.00
Shares Transacted]

Except as stated above, it is confirmed that there are no primary/new issue of shares, equal to or more
than 5% of the fully diluted paid-up share capital of the Company (calculated on the pre-issue capital on
the date of allotment) in the 18 months prior to the date of this RHP.

Price per share of the Company (as adjusted for corporate actions, including bonus issuances)
based on secondary sale or acquisition of equity shares or convertible securities (excluding gifts)
involving the Promoters, membersof the Promoter Group, or other Shareholder s of the Company
with rightsto nominate directors during the 18 months preceding the date of filing of the DRHP/
RHP, where the acquisition or saleisequal to or morethan 5% of the fully diluted paid-up share
capital of our Company (calculated based on the pre-Offer capital before such transaction/s) in a
single transaction or multiple transactions combined together over a span of rolling 30 days
(“Secondary Transactions”)

There has been no secondary sale / acquisitions of Equity Shares or any convertible securities
(“Security(ies)”), where the Promoters, members of the Promoter Group, or shareholder(s) having the
right to nominate director(s) in the board of directors of the Company are a party to the transaction
(excluding gifts), during the 18 months preceding the date of this certificate, where either acquisition or
sale is equal to or more than 5% of the fully diluted paid up share capital of the Company (calculated
based on the pre- Issue capital before such transaction/s and excluding employee stock options granted
but not vested), in asingle transaction or multiple transactions combined together over a span of rolling
30 days

Price per sharebased on thelast five primary or secondary transactions
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Since there are transactions to report to under (a) and (b) above, therefore, information based on last 5
primary or secondary transactions (secondary transactions where Promoter / Promoter Group entities or
shareholder(s) having the right to nominate director(s) in the Board of the Company, are a party to the
transaction) not older than 3 years prior to the date of this Red Herring Prospectusirrespective of the size

of transactionsis not required to be disclosed.

Weighted aver age cost of acquisition, Floor Price and Cap Price:

Type of transaction

Weighted average cost of acquisition for last 18 months
for primary / new issue of shares (equity / convertible
securities), excluding shares issued under an employee
stock option plan/employee stock option scheme and
issuance of bonus shares, during the 18 months preceding
the date of filing of this Prospectus, where such issuance
is equa to or more than five per cent of the fully diluted
paid-up share capital of our Company (calculated based
on the pre-issue capital before such transaction/s and
excluding employee stock options), in asingle transaction
or multiple transactions combined together over a span of
rolling 30 days.

Weighted average cost of acquisition for last 18 months
for secondary sdle / acquisition of shares equity /
convertible securities), where promoter / promoter group
entities or shareholder(s) having the right to nominate
director(s) in our Board are a party to the transaction
(excluding gifts), during the 18 months preceding the date
of filing of this Prospectus, where either acquisition or sale
is equal to or more than 5% of the fully diluted paid-up
share capital of our Company (cal cul ated based on the pre-
issue capital before such transaction(s) and excluding
employee stock options granted but not vested), inasingle
transaction or multiple transactions combined together
over aspan of rolling 30 days.

WACA

(in %)

81.00

Floor Price
R [eD*

[e]

[e]

Cap Price
R [e])*

[e]

[e]

Note: Sincetherewereno primary or secondary transactions of equity shares of our Company during
the 18 months to report (a) and (b), the information has been disclosed for price per share of our
Company based on the last five primary or secondary transactions where Promoter, members of the
Promoter Group, Promoters or shareholder(s) having the right to nominate directors on the Board,
are aparty to the transaction, not older than three years prior to the date of filing of this Red Herring
Prospectus irrespective of the size of the transaction, is as below:

Last 5 primary transactions

Last 5 secondary transactions
* To be updated at Prospectus stage after finalization of price band.

Jugtification for Basisof | ssue price

N.A.
N.A.

N.A.
N.A.

N.A.
N.A.

The following provides an explanation for the Issue Price/Cap Price being [®] times of weighted average
cost of acquisition of Equity Shares that were issued by our Company or acquired or sold by our
Promoter, the Promoter Group or other shareholders with rights to nominate directors by way of primary
and secondary transactions as disclosed in paragraph above, in the last 18 months preceding the date of
this Red Herring Prospectus compared to our Company’s KPIs and financial ratios for the quarter ended

September 30, 2024 and Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022.
[e]

(To be included on finalization of Price Band)
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The following provides an explanation to the Issue Price/Cap Price being [®] times of weighted average
cost of acquisition of Equity Shares that were issued by our Company or acquired by our Promoter, the
Promoter Group or other shareholderswith rightsto nominate directors by way of primary and secondary
transactions as disclosed in paragraph above, in the last 18 months preceding the date of this Red Herring
Prospectusin view of external factors, if any

[o]
(To be included on finalization of Price Band)

The Price Band of X [#] — [@] has been determined by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, on
the basis of the demand from investors for the Equity Shares through the Book Building process.
Investors should read the abovementioned information along with “Risk Factors”, “Business Overview”
and “Restated Financial Information” beginning on pages 29, 142 and 210, respectively of this Red
Herring Prospectus, to have amore informed view.
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STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS

To,

The Board of Directors,

Eleganz InteriorsLimited

GalaNos. 1-7,

Sarita'B',Prabhat Industrial Estate,
Western Express Highway, Dahisar (E),
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400068.

Dear Sirs’Madams,

Sub: Statement of possible special tax benefit (the “Statement”) available to Eleganz Interiors Limited
(the “Company?), and its shareholders prepared to comply with the requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (I ssue of Capital and Disclosur e Requirements), 2018 asamended (the
“SEBI ICDR Regulations) in connection with the proposed initial public offering of equity shares of
face value of ¥ 10 each (the “Equity Shares”) of the Company.

We, Jayesh Sanghragjka & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 104184W/W100075),
Statutory auditors of the Company, hereby confirm that the enclosed Annexure A, prepared by the Company and
initiated by us for identification purpose (“Statement”) for the Issue, provides the possible special tax benefits
available to the Company and to its shareholders under direct tax and indirect tax laws presently in forcein India,
including the Income-tax Act, 1961, and Income tax Rules, 1962, as amended (hereinafter referred to as “Direct
Tax Laws”), and indirect tax lawsi.e., Central Goods and Service Act, 2017, Integrated Goods and Service Act,
2017, respective state Goods and Service Act, 2017, Customs Act, 1962 and the Customs Tariff Act, 1975, Foreign
trade (Development and Regulation) Act 1992 read with Foreign Trade Policy, as amended, read with the rules,
circulars and notifications issued in connection thereto) (hereinafter referred to as “Indirect Tax Laws’),
presently in force in India, available to the Company and its shareholders. Several of these benefits are dependent
on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant statutory provisions.
Hence, the ability of the Company and/or its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling
such conditions, which based on business imperatives the Company facesin the future, the Company may or may
not choose to fulfill.

This statement of possible specia tax benefits is required as per Schedule VI (Part A)(9)(L) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. While the term ‘special tax benefits’ has not been defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, for the
purpose of this Statement, it is assumed that with respect to special tax benefits available to the Company, the
same would include those benefits as enumerated in the Annexure A. Any benefits under the taxation laws other
than those specified in Annexure A are considered to be general tax benefits and therefore not covered within the
ambit of this Statement. Further, any benefits available under any other laws within or outside India, except for
those mentioned in the Annexure A have not been examined and covered by this statement.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Statement are not exhaustive. The Statement is only intended to provide
general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax
advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences and changing tax laws, each investor is advised
to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their
participation in the Issue.

In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and the consequent taxation shall be further subject to any benefits
available under the applicable Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement, if any, between India and the country in
which the non-resident has fiscal domicile.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:

1 the Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in the future; or
2. the conditions prescribed for availing of the benefits, where applicable have been/would be met with.
3. the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein.
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The contents of the enclosed Statement are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from
the Company on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

We have conducted our review in accordance with the ‘Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special
Purposes’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“I CAI”’) which requires that we comply with
ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. We hereby confirm that while providing this
statement we have complied with the Code of Ethicsissued by the ICALI.

We hereby consent to be named an “expert” under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and our name may be
disclosed as an expert to any applicable legal or regulatory authority insofar as may be required, in relation to the
statements contained therein. We further confirm that we are not and have not been engaged or interested in the
formation or promotion or management of the Company.

We have carried out our work on the basis of Restated Financial Statements and other documents, public domain
and information made available to us by the Company, which has formed substantial basis for this Statement.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for Firmsthat Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financia Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements.

We hereby consent to our name and the aforementioned details being included in the Issue Documents and/or
consent to the submission of this certificate as may be necessary, to any regulatory / statutory authority, stock
exchanges, any other authority as may be required and/or for the records to be maintained by the BRLM in
connection with the I ssue and in accordance with applicable law.

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them in the I ssue Documents.
Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 104184W/W100075

Hemant Kumar Agrawal
Designated Partner
Membership No.: 403143
UDIN: 25403143BMLIFK 4812
Date: January 29, 2025

Encl: Asabove
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ANNEXURE A

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE APPLICABLE DIRECT AND INDIRECT
TAX LAWSIN INDIA

This statement of possible special tax benefitsis required as per Schedule VI (Part A)(9)(L) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. While the term ‘special tax benefits’ has not been defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, for
the purpose of this Statement, it is assumed that with respect to specia tax benefits available to the Company,
the same would include those benefits as enumerated in this Annexure. Any benefits under the taxation laws
other than those specified in this Annexure are considered to be general tax benefits and therefore not covered
within the ambit of this Statement. Further, any benefits available under any other laws within or outside India,
except for those mentioned in this Annexure have not been reviewed and covered by this statement.

Notes:

Special Direct tax benefits available to the Company

There are no special tax benefits available to the company under Direct Tax laws
Special Indirect tax benefits availableto the Company

There are no special tax benefits available to the company under Indirect Tax laws
Special tax benefits available to Shareholders

There are no specia tax benefits available to the Shareholders

The above Statement of Tax benefits sets out the special tax benefits available to the Company, and its shareholders under the tax
laws mentioned above.

The above Statement covers only above-mentioned tax laws benefits and does not cover any general tax benefits under any other
law.

This Statement is intended only to provide genera information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a
substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, each investor is advised to consult
his’her own tax advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his’her investment in the shares of the Company.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the
existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not assume responsibility
to update the views consequent to such changes.

This statement does not discuss any tax consequences under any law for the time being in force, as applicable of any country
outside India. The shareholders / investors are advised to consult their own professional advisors regarding possible tax
conseguences that apply to them in any country other than India.

For and on behalf of
Eleganz InteriorsLimited

Sameer Pakvasa
Managing Director
Date : January 29, 2025
Place : Mumbai
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SECTION VII- ABOUT THE ISSUER COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Unless otherwise indicated, the information in this section is obtained or extracted from the report dated October
15, 2024, titled “Research Report on Indian Real Estate and Office Fit-Out” prepared and issued by CARE
Advisory Research and Training Limited (“CareEdge Report ). The Report has been exclusively and paid for by
us for the purposes of this Issue and is available on the website of the Company at www.eleganz.co.in. It is hereby
clarified that the information in this section is only an extract of the CareEdge Report and does not comprise the
entire CareEdge Report. All information in the CareEdge Report that is considered material by usfor the purposes
of this Issue has been included in this section, and none of thisinformation has been further modified by usin any
manner, except for the limited purpose of presentation or ensuring continuity. The data may have been re-
classified by us for the purposes of presentation. Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on
information as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources and
publications may also base their information on estimates, projections, forecasts and assumptions that may prove
to beincorrect. Accordingly, investors must rely on their independent examination of, and should not place undue
reliance on, or base their investment decision solely on this information. The recipient should not construe any of
the contents in this report as advice relating to business, financial, legal, taxation or investment matters and are
advised to consult their own business, financial, legal, taxation, and other advisors concerning the transaction.
For further details, kindly refer chapter “Risk Factors— Certain sections of this Red Herring Prospectus disclose
information from the industry report which has been commissioned and paid for by us exclusively in connection
with the Issue and any reliance on such information for making an investment decision in the Issue is subject to
inherent risk”” on page 58 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

1. Economic Outlook
1.1. Global Economy

Global growth, which stood at 3.3% in CY23, is anticipated to fall to 3.2% in CY24 and then bounce
back again to 3.3% in CY25. The CY24 forecast has remained same compared to the April 2024 World
Economic Outlook (WEO) Update and increased by 0.1 percentage point compared to the January 2024
WEQO. Despite this, the expansion remains historically low, attributed to factors including sustained high
borrowing costs, inflation woes, reduced fiscal support, lingering effects of Russia’s Ukraine invasion,
Iran—Israel Cold War, sluggish productivity growth, and heightened geo-economic fragmentation.

Chart 1: Global Growth Outlook Projections (Real GDP, Y-0-Y change in %)
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Notes: P-Projection; Source: IMF — World Economic Outlook, July 2024
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Table 1: GDP growth trend comparison - India v/s Other Economies (Real GDP, Y-0-Y change in
%)

Real GDP (Y-0-Y change in %) Real GDP (Y-0-Y change in %)
CY2 CY2 CY2 CY2 CY24 CY25 CY26 CY27 CY28 CY29

0 1 2 3 P P P P P P

India -5.8 9.7 7.0 8.2 7.0 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5
China 2.2 8.5 3.0 5.2 5.0 4.5 3.8 3.6 34 33
Indonesia -2.1 3.7 53 5.0 5.0 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1
Saudi -3.6 5.1 7.5 -0.8 1.7 4.7 4.0 35 3.0 3.5
Arabia

Brazil -3.3 4.8 3.0 2.9 2.1 2.4 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0
Euro Area -6.1 5.9 3.4 0.5 0.9 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2
United 2.2 5.8 1.9 2.5 2.6 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1
States

P- Projections; Source: IMF- World Economic Outlook Database (July 2024)
Emerging Market and Developing Economies Group

Emerging market and developing economies are forecasted to maintain stable growth at 4.3% in both
CY24 and CY25. This forecast has been revised upwards by 0.1 percentage point as compared to the
April 2024 WEO update on account of stronger activity in Asia, particularly China and India. Growth
prospects in economies across the Middle East and Central Asia continue to be weighed down by oil
production and regional conflicts. Growth forecast of sub-Saharan Africa has also been revised
downward on account of weak economic activity. Low-income developing countries are anticipated to
experience a gradual growth uptick, starting at 3.9% in CY23 and climbing to 4.4% in CY24 and 5.3%
in CY25, as certain constraints on near-term growth begin to ease.

The economic forecast for emerging and developing Asia reveals a modest deceleration in growth, with
projections indicating a decline from 5.7% in CY23 to 5.4% in CY24 and 5.1% in CY25. China's
trajectory reflects a slowdown, transitioning from 5.2% in CY23 to 5.0% in CY24 and 4.5% in CY25
due to fading post-pandemic stimuli and ongoing property sector challenges. In contrast, India's growth
remains robust, with anticipated rates of 7.0% in CY24 and 6.5% in CY25, bolstered by resilient domestic
demand and a burgeoning working-age populace.

Despite the turmoil in the last 2-3 years, India bears good tidings to become a USD 5 trillion economy
by CY27. According to the IMF dataset on Gross Domestic Product (GDP) at current prices, the nominal
GDP has been at USD 3.6 trillion for CY23 and is projected to reach USD 5.3 trillion by CY27 and USD
6.4 trillion by CY29. India’s expected GDP growth rate for coming years is almost double compared to
the world economy.

Besides, India stands out as the fastest-growing economy among the major economies. The country is
expected to grow at more than 6.5% in the period of CY24-CY29, outshining China’s growth rate. By
CY27, the Indian economy is estimated to emerge as the third-largest economy globally, hopping over
Japan and Germany. Currently, it is the third-largest economy globally in terms of Purchasing Power
Parity (PPP) with a ~7.6% share in the global economy, with China [~18.7%] on the top followed by the
United States [~15.6%]. Purchasing Power Parity is an economic performance indicator denoting the
relative price of an average basket of goods and services that a household needs for livelihood in each
country.

Despite Covid-19’s impact, high inflationary environment and interest rates globally, and the geopolitical
tensions in Europe, India has been a major contributor to world economic growth. India is increasingly
becoming an open economy as well through growing foreign trade. Despite the global inflation and
uncertainties, Indian economy continues to show resilience. This resilience is mainly supported by stable
financial sector backed by well-capitalized banks and export of services in trade balance. With this, the
growth of Indian economy is expected to fare better than other economies majorly on account of strong
investment activity bolstered by the government’s capex push and buoyant private consumption,
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1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

particularly among higher income earners.

Indian Economic Outlook

GDP Growth and Outlook

Resilience to External Shocks remains Critical for Near-Term Outlook

India’s real GDP grew by 7.0% in FY23 and stood at ~Rs. 161 trillion, as per the First Revised Estimate,
despite the pandemic in previous years and geopolitical Russia-Ukraine spillovers. In Q1FY24, the
economic growth accelerated to 8.2%. The manufacturing sector maintained an encouraging pace of
growth, given the favorable demand conditions and lower input prices. The growth was supplemented
by a supportive base alongside robust services and construction activities. This momentum remained in
the range in the Q2FY24 with GDP growth at 8.1%, mainly supported by acceleration in investments.
However, private consumption growth was muted due to weak rural demand and some moderation in
urban demand amid elevated inflationary pressures in Q2FY?24. The GDP growth number improved for
Q3FY24 at 8.6%.

GDP Growth Outlook

. Driven by fixed investment and improving global environment, domestic economic activity
continues to expand. The provisional estimates (PE) placed real GDP growth at 8.2% for FY24.

. Industrial activity led by manufacturing continues its momentum on the back of strengthening

domestic demand. Moreover, the services sector-maintained buoyancy as could be observed by
growth in high frequency indicators such as E-way bills, GST revenues, toll collections,
aggregate, and a healthy growth in domestic air cargo and port cargo. The purchasing managers’
index for both manufacturing and services continues to exhibit a sustained and healthy
expansion.

. Improved agricultural activity would improve rural consumption, while urban consumption
would be supported by buoyancy in services activity. Additionally, improvement in global trade
prospects are expected to support external demand.

Persistent geopolitical tensions and volatility in international financial markets and geo-economic
fragmentation do pose risk to this outlook. Based on these considerations, the RBI, in its August 2024

monetary policy, has projected real GDP growth at 7.2% y-o-y for FY25.

Table 2: RBI's GDP Growth Outlook (Y-0-Y %)

FY25P Q1FY25P Q2FY25P Q3FY25P Q4FY25P Q1FY26P
(complete
year)
7.2% 71% 7.2% 7.3% 7.2% 7.2%

Industrial Growth
Improved Core and Capital Goods Sectors helped IIP Growth Momentum

The Index of Industrial Production (IIP) is an index to track manufacturing activity in an economy. On a
cumulative basis, IIP grew by 11.4% y-o-y in FY22 post declining by 0.8% y-o-y and 8.4% y-o-y,
respectively, in FY20 and FY21. This high growth was mainly backed by a low base of FY21. FY22 IIP
was higher when compared with the pre-pandemic level of FY20, indicating that while economic
recovery was underway. During FY23, the industrial output recorded a growth of 5.2% y-o-y supported
by a favorable base and a rebound in economic activities.

During FY24, the industrial output recorded a growth of 5.9% y-o-y supported by growth in
manufacturing and power generation sectors. The period April 2024 — June 2024, industrial output grew
by 5.2% compared to the 4.7% growth in the corresponding period last year. For the month of June 2024,
the ITP growth increased to 4.2% compared to the last year’s 4.0%, on account of growth in mining. The
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manufacturing sector showed a decline in June 2024 from 3.5% in June 2023 to 2.6% in June 2024.
Within the growth in manufacturing, the top three positive contributors were Manufacture of basic
metals, Manufacture of electrical equipment, and Manufacture of motor vehicles, trailers, and semi-
trailers.

So far in the current fiscal, the government's spending on infrastructure has been strong, and there are
visible signs of pick up in private investment. Consumer durables production increased due to favorable
conditions, while non-durables saw a slight decline. Urban demand is driving consumption, while rural
demand is recovering. Good monsoon forecasts are positive, but high unemployment and food inflation
pose challenges. Infrastructure/construction output is growing well due to government spending. Private
investment and manufacturing capacity utilization are increasing, supporting hopes for private sector
growth. Good monsoon could boost rural demand, but food inflation remains a concern. Overall,
sustained improvements in consumption and private investment are crucial for industrial performance.

11.4 ;

Y-0-Y growth in IIP (in %)

Apr'23-Jun'23
Apr'24-Jun'24

Source: MOSPI
Concluding Remarks

The major headwinds to global economic growth are escalating geopolitical tensions, volatile global
commodity prices, high interest rates, inflation woes, volatility in international financial markets, climate
change, rising public debt, and new technologies. Despite the global economic growth uncertainties, the
Indian economy is relatively better placed in terms of GDP growth compared to other emerging
economies. According to IMF’s forecast, it is expected to be 7% in CY24 compared to the world GDP
growth projection of 3.2%. The bright spots for the economy are continued healthy domestic demand,
support from the government towards capital expenditure, moderating inflation, investments in
technology and improving business confidence.

Likewise, several high-frequency growth indicators including the purchasing managers index, E-way
bills, bank credit, toll collections and GST collections have shown improvement in FY24. Moreover,
normalizing the employment situation after the opening up of the economy is expected to improve and
provide support to consumption expenditure.

The India Meteorological Department (IMD) has made a significant forecast, predicting “above normal”
rainfall for the upcoming monsoon season, marking the first time in a decade that such an optimistic
outlook has been declared at the initial stage. This forecast, coupled with an anticipated eight-year-high
rainfall, offers promising prospects for the agrarian economy and inflation. The expected development
of La Nina conditions in the second half of the year (August-September) further adds to the positive
outlook. La Nina is a climate pattern that tends to enhance rainfall activity. IMD's more optimistic
prediction is expected to bolster agricultural growth and incomes, while also potentially alleviating
stubborn food inflation pressures.

At the same time, public investment is expected to exhibit healthy growth as the government has allocated

a strong capital expenditure of about Rs. 11.11 lakh crores for FY25. The private sector’s intent to invest
is also showing improvement as per the data announced on new project investments and resilience shown
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by the import of capital goods. Additionally, improvement in rural demand owing to healthy sowing,
improving reservoir levels, and progress in south-west monsoon along with government’s thrust on capex
and other policy support will aid the investment cycle in gaining further traction.

Real estate sector in India
Overview

Indias real estate sector has long been a cornerstone of the nation's economy, second only to agriculture,
in terms of employment generation. Historically, the sector has undergone significant transformation,
driven by urbanization, evolving consumer preferences, and regulatory reforms. Today, it is on the cusp
of exponential growth, expected to reach amarket size of Rs. 83 trillion by 2030, atestament to its pivotal
role in India’s economic trajectory.

The real estate market is broadly categorized into housing, commercial, retail, and hospitality, with
residential real estate accounting for a staggering 80% of thetotal market share. AsIndiatransitionsfrom
aprimarily rural to amore urban-centric society, this segment has witnessed significant growth. Back in
the 1990s, India saw a gradual rise in rea estate demand as cities like Mumbai, Delhi, and Bangalore
became economic powerhouses. Fast forward to 2023, luxury home sales priced at Rs. 4 crore and above
surged by 75%, driven by an expanding affluent class and increased investments in premium properties.

Urbanization continues to be a key driver of the sector’s growth. In 1951, only 17.3% of India’s
population resided in urban areas. Today, that number has increased to over 35%, with projections
indicating an urban population of 542.7 million by 2025 and 675.5 million by 2035. Thisinflux of people
into cities has not only increased the demand for housing but also commercial and office spaces. For
instance, cities like Bengaluru, Gurugram, and Pune have emerged as major hubs for IT and corporate
activity, fueling the demand for commercial rea estate.

Retail real estate, another vital component of the sector, is set for a major boom. From traditional brick-
and-mortar shops in bustling bazaars to sprawling malls in urban centers, retail spaces have evolved
significantly over the years. By 2028, around 41 million sq. ft. of new retail developments will be
operational in India’s top seven cities, signaling a robust future for the retail landscape.

Types of Real Estate

Chart 2: Indian Real Estate Structure

Types of
Real Estate

» Residential

-
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Land

. Raw Land: Undeveloped plots that can be used for various purposes, including agricultural,
industrial, or residential development.
. Agricultural Land: Land used for farming and agriculture, often subject to specific regulations

and zoning laws.

Residential

. Apartments/Flats: Multi-unit buildings, often within residential complexes, catering to various
income groups.

. Independent Houses/Villas: Standalone residential units, often in gated communities or
individual plots.

. Gated Communities: Residential areas with controlled access and shared amenities, offering
enhanced security and lifestyle features.

. Affordable Housing: Housing projects aimed at providing cost-effective options for low to

middle-income groups.

Commercial & Retail

. Office Spaces: Buildings or units leased for business operations, including corporate offices,
coworking spaces, and business centers.

. Retail Stores/shopping malls: Spaces for retail businesses, including standalone stores,
shopping malls, and specialty retail centers.

. Mixed-Use Developments: Projects that combine commercial, residential, and sometimes

hospitality components, offering a blend of functionalities within a single development.

Hospitality

. Hotels: Properties providing lodging services, ranging from luxury hotels to budget
accommodations.

. Resorts: Recreational properties offering leisure facilities, often located in scenic or tourist
destinations.

. Serviced Apartments: Residential units with hotel-like amenities, catering to short or long-term

stays for business or leisure travelers.

Chart 3: Indian Real Estate Sector Developments: Segment-wise
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Source: IBEF, CareEdge Research

Commercial Real Estate
Overview of Commercial Real Estate

The Indian real estate industry witnessed a slowdown in the years prior to COVID-19 due to the general
slowdown in the economy. However, this had little impact on the demand for office space. The demand
for office space grew by leaps and bounds for the better part of the past decade with the unavail ability of
good quality supply being the only impediment to higher growth. We estimate the demand for office
space, particularly in metros, to have outpaced supply prior to 2020.

The commercia real estate sector in India plays a crucia role in the country's economic development,
comprising office spaces, retail, industrial, and hospitality properties. This sector provides the physical
infrastructure required for businesses to operate, expand, and contribute to economic growth. It has
witnessed significant evolution, especialy in major metropolitan cities like Bengaluru, Mumbai, Delhi
NCR, and Hyderabad, where the demand for Grade A office spaces, business parks, and flexible
workspacesisincreasing. The growth of the commercial real estate sector was primarily fueled by Global
Capability Centers (GCCs) and the growing demand for flexible office spaces, which together accounted
for 55% of total leasing.

The office segment growth was aided by investors with a keen interest in the commercial space.
Alongside, NRIs also started investing in this segment, given the lucrative returns. A comparison of
investments in commercial with residential sectors shows that returns from commercial are higher than
those from residential.

In India, commercial property gives the average rental yield of 8%-11%, while the rental yield from
residential property is 1.5%-3%.

This segment, which includesindustrial, retail, and warehousing, is thus projected to do well on account
of arapid growth of the warehousing segment and a gradual pick up in the office segment.

Chart 4: Indian Commercial Real Estate Market Size
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The Indian commercial rea estate market has witnessed significant expansion, growing from Rs 1,763
billion in CY17 to Rs 8,218 billion in CY23. It is projected to reach Rs 22,398 billion by CY 30F,
reflecting a CAGR of 15.4%. This growth is closely aligned with the overall Indian real estate market,
which hasincreased from Rs 7,665 billion in CY 17 to Rs 40,089 billion in CY 23 and is expected to reach
Rs 83,172 billion by CY 30F, with a CAGR of 15.7%.

The share of commercia rea estate in the total Indian real estate market declined from 23% in CY 17 to

20.5% in CY 23, primarily due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the widespread adoption of work-from-
home (WFH) policies. However, a shift isunderway as many firmslike Google, Deloitte, and Accenture
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have begun implementing return-to-office policies. In 2023, office leasing surged to 59.6 million sg. ft.,
and in the coming years, more companies are expected to adopt a hybrid or full work-from-office model.

The increase in commercial real estate’s share is driven by factors like the rise of IT, e-commerce, retail,
and BFSI sectors, urbanization, government initiatives like “Smart Cities,” and strong leasing activity
from multinational corporations and startups, boosting demand for modern office spaces across India.

Overview of Interior Fit Out Services Construction Space

The interior fit-out services segment within the construction space refers to the final stage of development,
where the internal spaces of buildings are customized and equipped according to the client’s requirements.
This segment covers a wide range of activities, including space planning, electrical and mechanical
installations, furnishing, and design elements, such as flooring, ceilings, and partitioning. The objective is
to convert bare spaces, typically known as “shell and core,” into functional areas for commercial or
residential use.

In commercial real estate, interior fit-out services are vital for transforming offices, retail stores, and
hospitality spaces into operational environments that meet the specific needs of businesses. With the rise
of flexible workspaces and global multinationals entering India, the demand for fit-out services has
significantly increased. The sector is characterized by custom design solutions that emphasize modernity,
sustainability, and functionality.

Chart 7: Indian Office Fit Out Market Size
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The Indian office fit-out market has seen remarkable growth, rising from Rs 154 billion in CY20 to Rs 277
billion in CY23, and is projected to reach Rs 805 billion by CY30F, with a CAGR of 16.5%. This expansion
is closely tied to increasing office leasing activity and changing workplace needs.

India’s office leasing space has also grown substantially, from 39.4 million sq. ft. in CY20 to an expected
69.4 million sq. ft. in CY24. This rise in leasing activity is a significant driver for the fit-out market, as new
and expanding businesses require tailored office spaces. The post-pandemic recovery, along with the shift
toward hybrid work models, has led to companies investing in office environments that offer flexibility,
collaboration spaces, and wellness features, further fueling the demand for fit-out services.

The IT, e-commerce, and BFSI sectors have been particularly active in leasing new office spaces, especially
in Tier 1 and Tier 2 cities, leading to higher demand for modern, technology-driven office designs. The
entry of multinational corporations setting up operations in India has also bolstered this demand.

Urbanization and government-backed infrastructure initiatives, such as Smart Cities, are further pushing
the development of commercial real estate. The integration of smart office technologies like IoT and Al,
along with the growing emphasis on sustainable and energy-efficient designs, has significantly influenced
the fit out market’s growth. With robust leasing activity and evolving workspace trends, the office fit-out
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market is poised for sustained growth through CY30F.

Chart 8: India Office Market Vacancy, HICY20-H1CY24
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Office market vacancy indicates the percentage of office space that remains unoccupied and available
for lease. It serves as a key metric for assessing the health of the commercial real estate market, reflecting
the balance between supply and demand. Vacancy rates increased significantly. The rise from 14.2% to
17.2% suggests growing unoccupied space, driven by economic uncertainty, increased remote working,
and reduced office space needs during the pandemic. The vacancy rate remained steady, indicating a
stabilization in the market as the initial impacts of the pandemic began to level out. A slight decline in
vacancy rates suggests a gradual recovery, with improved leasing activity and a potential adjustment to
new working patterns and market conditions. The data reveals that while vacancy rates rose during the
pandemic, recent trends show a modest improvement, reflecting a stabilizing office market with potential
signs of recovery.

Chart 9: End-use Split of Transactions of Office Market in H1ICY24 and H1CY23
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India Facing

Office spaces dedicated to operations and activities focused on the Indian market. This could include
local branches, regional offices, or other entities serving the domestic market. Increased from 35% in H1
2023 to 41% in H1 2024. This indicates a growing preference for office spaces focused on domestic
operations.
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Flex

Flexible office spaces that offer adaptability in terms of layout, lease terms, and usage. These spaces are
designed to cater to varying business needs, often providing options for short-term leases and adjustable
office configurations. Rose from 25% in H1 2023 to 28% in H1 2024. This suggests a continued increase
in demand for flexible office spaces that can adapt to varying needs.

Global Capability Centers

Offices that serve as central hubs for global operations, including research and development, customer
support, or other functions managed from a single location to support international activities. Decreased
from 26% in H1 2023 to 21% in H1 2024.

Third Party IT Services

Office spaces leased by companies providing IT services to other businesses. These are often specialized
spaces used by firms offering outsourced IT solutions, such as managed services or consultancy. Dropped
from 14% in H1 2023 to 10% in H1 2024, showing a decrease in the demand for office spaces leased by
third-party IT service providers.

3.3.1 Office Fit Out Trends

Embracing Diverse Workspace Typologies: Indian businesses are increasingly adopting a variety of
fit-out typologies, ranging from basic hybrid to advanced hybrid models. This trend underscores a shift
towards more adaptable and versatile office designs that accommodate different work styles and
functions. The diverse typologies reflect a broader movement towards creating dynamic and flexible
work environments.

Investment in Retrofitting: Investment in retrofitting involves updating and modifying existing office
spaces to meet new operational demands and sustainability standards. This process includes enhancing
energy efficiency, modernizing infrastructure, and incorporating advanced technologies. Companies are
allocating substantial budgets towards retrofitting existing office spaces to align with new operational
needs and sustainability goals. Retrofit costs vary significantly, from basic hybrid to advanced hybrid,
indicating a strong market interest in upgrading and optimizing older spaces.

Minimal Reinstatement Expenses: The cost of reinstatement, or restoring office spaces to their original
condition, remains relatively low in India. This trend suggests a growing preference for fit-out designs
that minimize structural changes and facilitate easier end-of-lease restorations.

3.3.2  Types of Interior Fit Out

Chart 10: Structure of Interior Fit Out
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Shell and Core Fit Out

Shell and core fit out refers to the delivery of a building’s basic structure, including external walls,
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roofing, floors, stairs, and essential services like plumbing, electricity, and elevators. The internal space
is left open for tenants to complete the interior design based on their specific needs. This approach allows
customization and flexibility. Increasing demand for adaptable workspaces, urbanization, and the rise of
commercial real estate developments have boosted its adoption, with businesses prioritizing efficiency
and personalization for their operations.

Green Fit Out

Green fit out focuses on creating eco-friendly interiors by using sustainable materials, energy-efficient
systems, and waste-reduction strategies. It involves installing low-energy lighting, renewable energy
sources like solar panels, and recycled or locally sourced building materials. The goal is to minimize the
environmental impact while promoting healthier, more productive workspaces. With rising awareness
around sustainability, companies are increasingly opting for green certifications like LEED. As energy
costs rise and regulations around environmental standards tighten, this approach aligns with long-term
cost-saving and compliance strategies.

Hot Desk Fit Out

Hot desk fit out designs focus on creating flexible, shared workspaces where employees don’t have
assigned desks but use any available workstation. This setup is popular in open-plan offices, coworking
spaces, and hybrid work environments. It promotes space efficiency, collaboration, and adaptability,
accommodating varying employee schedules. As remote work and hybrid models gain popularity,
businesses are increasingly looking for space-saving and cost-effective solutions. Additionally, the
demand for modern office layouts that encourage creativity and interaction makes this type of fit-out an
attractive option for companies seeking flexibility. Notably, this kind of fit out helps to maximize space
utilization, improve desk efficiency, and reduce real estate costs.

Tech-driven Fit Out

Tech-driven fit out integrates advanced technologies into office spaces, including smart lighting,
automated climate control, and IoT-enabled devices and focus on creating workplaces that are fit for the
future. It focuses on creating a seamless, connected environment where employees can easily interact
with digital tools, such as touchless entry systems and virtual meeting rooms. This approach enhances
workplace efficiency, optimizes energy use, and supports hybrid work setups. As businesses embrace
digital transformation and seek to enhance productivity, tech-driven solutions are becoming more
common, with companies looking to future-proof their workspaces and improve employee experience.

Others

Other fit-out types include Category A (Cat A) Fit Out, Category B (Cat B) Fit Out, Turnkey Fit Out,
and Hybrid Fit Out.

. Category A (Cat A) Fit Out: Delivers a basic workspace with essential services like lighting,
HVAC, and restrooms, allowing tenants to further customize interiors.

. Category B (Cat B) Fit Out: Focuses on tenant-specific customization, including furniture,
partitions, and branding to create a fully operational space.

. Turnkey Fit Out: Provides a ready-to-use workspace, with the contractor handling the entire
process from design to completion.

. Hybrid Fit Out: Combines elements from different fit-out styles, offering a flexible approach
that adapts to varied client needs.
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Interior Fit Out Contractor presence in construction value chain

Chart 11: Construction Value Chain Analysis
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Project Initiation

The construction value chain begins with project initiation, where architects and clients work together
to define the project's scope, goals, and requirements. This stage also involves conducting a feasibility
study to assess the project's viability, including financial and logistical considerations. During this phase,
the role of interior fit-out contractors is minimal, but they may provide preliminary input on design
feasibility and potential challenges.

Design Phase

In the design phase, detailed architectural plans and designs are created. Architectural design involves
creating detailed plans and drawings that outline the building's structure, layout, and appearance.
Architects develop these designs to ensure that the building meets the client’s needs and adheres to
regulations. Interior fit-out contractors can contribute by offering insights on practical aspects like
material choices and integration of interior elements, ensuring the designs are feasible and align with the
overall project goals. This collaboration helps in refining both the aesthetics and functionality of the
space.

Pre-Construction

In the pre-construction phase, planning and budgeting involve finalizing project costs, schedules, and
procurement strategies to ensure smooth execution. Permitting and approvals entail securing necessary
permissions from regulatory bodies to comply with legal and safety standards. This stage is crucial for
establishing a clear roadmap and ensuring all aspects of the project are aligned before construction
begins, setting the foundation for a successful build.
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Construction

In the construction phase, site preparation involves clearing and preparing the site for building. Structural
work includes constructing the building’s framework, such as foundations, walls, and roofing. Systems
installation encompasses the setup of essential systems, including electrical, plumbing, and HVAC. This
phase focuses on building the core structure and infrastructure necessary to support the final interior and
functional elements, ensuring the site is ready for the subsequent stages of fit-out and finishing.

Fit-Out and Finishing

In the fit-out and finishing phase, interior design involves applying detailed design plans to the interior
spaces, focusing on aesthetics and functionality. Interior fit-out contractors play a crucial role here,
overseeing the installation of partitions, flooring, ceilings, lighting, and fixtures, effectively turning the
raw space into a usable environment. Their expertise ensures that all elements align with the design
vision and meet high-quality standards. Specialty work includes the installation of specialized systems
or custom elements tailored to specific needs, such as bespoke cabinetry or advanced lighting systems.
This phase ensures that all interior elements are completed to the highest standards, creating a finished
space that meets both design expectations and practical requirements. The focus is on delivering a
polished, ready-to-use environment that reflects the project's overall vision.

Post-Construction

In the post-construction phase, inspection and quality control are essential to ensure that all aspects of
the building meet required standards and specifications. This involves a thorough review of the
completed work to identify any issues or defects. Interior fit-out contractors play a vital role in this
process by addressing any final adjustments or corrections needed for the interior elements. They ensure
that installations, finishes, and custom elements are completed to the highest quality and are fully
functional. Their involvement helps guarantee that the interior space aligns with the design vision and is
ready for occupancy. This phase ensures that all aspects of the fit-out are perfected, contributing to the
overall success of the project.

Occupancy and Handover

In the occupancy and handover phase, final handover involves officially transferring the completed
building to the client, ensuring all documentation, keys, and operational instructions are provided.
Occupancy follows, marking the point at which the building is ready for use. This phase ensures that the
space is fully functional and meets all agreed-upon standards. Any final adjustments or issues identified
during inspections are addressed, guaranteeing a smooth transition from construction to everyday use.

Finally, the maintenance and facility management phase, which includes regular upkeep of the building's
systems and interiors is conducted. Interior fit-out contractors may be involved in periodic maintenance
or repairs of the installed interior elements, ensuring that the space remains functional and well-
maintained over time.

Key Demand Drivers & Future Prospects

Evaluation of Demand-Supply Scenario of the Office Space including the Analysis of Annual
Transactions Volume

Current Demand in Commercial Real Estate

The demand-supply scenario of office space in India shows a strong growth trajectory, as reflected in the
significant increase in annual transaction volumes. From CY21 to CY23, transaction volumes grew
steadily from 381 lakh sq. ft. to 516 lakh sq. ft., indicating a recovery from the pandemic's impact. The
jump in transactions from CY21 to CY23 highlights the growing demand for office space, driven by
positive economic sentiments and a resurgence in business confidence.
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Chart 12: Transactions in the Commercial Segment
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In HICY?24, transaction volumes hit a new high of 347 lakh sq. ft. compared to 261 lakh sq. ft. in
HI1CY23, showcasing the strengthening momentum. The Indian economy’s robust growth, supported by
effective monetary policy and a strong GDP outlook, has led to increased occupier activity, especially
from India-facing businesses and global capability centers (GCCs). The latter saw a 48% rise in space
uptake during H1CY24, further bolstering demand.

The demand for office space in India is strong, supported by economic growth and increased business
confidence, while supply is likely to be under pressure, given the continued momentum in transaction
volumes. This could drive rents higher and further incentivize new developments in the sector.

Demand-Supply Scenario of Real Estate in Major Cities

The demand-supply scenario in India’s major office space markets reflects growing demand, with a
persistent supply shortfall across most cities, creating a tightening market.

. Bengaluru saw a 20% growth in transactions from CY21 (122 lakh sq. ft.) to CY22 (145 lakh
sq. ft.), but a 14% decline to 125 lakh sq. ft. in CY23. In H1 CY24, transactions grew 20% YoY
to 84 lakh sq. ft. rising from 70 lakh sq. ft. in HI CY23. Completions peaked in CY22 at 156
lakh sq. ft. and dropped by 14% in CY23 to 134 lakh sq. ft., with H1 CY24 completions rising
20% to 77 lakh sq. ft. from 64 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY23, indicating a balanced market. Rent
growth remains moderate, driven by the steady demand-supply balance.

. Mumbai posted a remarkable recovery, with transactions growing 68% from CY21 (38 lakh sq.
ft.) to CY22 (64 lakh sq. ft.), and further 16% growth in CY23 to 74 lakh sq. ft. H1 CY24
transactions grew 81% YoY, jumping to 58 lakh sq. ft. from 32 lakh sq. ft. in Hl
CY23.Completions, after dipping 60% in CY22, rebounded by 55% in CY23. H1 CY24
completions more than tripled, growing 207% YoY to 43 lakh sq. ft. from 14 lakh sq. ft. in H1
CY23. This remarkable growth, primarily fueled by a substantial volume of BFSI transactions,
pushed Mumbai to its highest half-year leasing figures since 2012.

. NCR (National Capital Region) witnessed steady growth in transactions, up 39% from CY21
(64 lakh sq. ft.) to CY22 (89 lakh sq. ft.), and a further 13% growth to 101 lakh sq. ft. in CY23.
In H1 CY24, transactions grew 12% YoY, reaching 57 lakh sq. ft. from 51 lakh sq. ft. in H1
CY23. Completions spiked by 55% in CY22, before declining by 11% in CY23. H1 CY24
completions dropped 25.6% YoY to 29 lakh sq. ft. from 39 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY23, signaling
supply constraints that may tighten vacancy rates further.
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Chart 13: Office Transactions, CY21-CY23
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Chart 14: Office Transactions, H1ICY23 vs HICY24
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Chart 15: Office Completions
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Chart 16: Office Completions, HICY23 Vs H1CY24
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Hyderabad maintained consistent growth, with transactions rising 12% from CY21 (60 lakh
sq. ft.) to CY22 (67 lakh sq. ft.) and further 31% growth in CY23 to 88 lakh sq. ft. H1 CY24
transactions grew 72% YoY to 50 lakh sq. ft. from 29 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY23. Completions
peaked at 112 lakh sq. ft. in CY22, before dropping by 42% to 65 lakh sq. ft. in CY23. However,
H1 CY24 completions saw 317% growth YoY to 50 lakh sq. ft. rising from 12 lakh sq. ft. in H1
CY23. This growth was driven by increased absorption from Global Capability Centers (GCCs)
and flex space operators. In H1ICY23, Hyderabad's IT sector, traditionally strong, saw a
significant slowdown due to the Western economic downturn. However, in CY24, the sector is
recovering, with rising demand for AI/ML profiles and GCCs leading space take-up.

Pune experienced strong transaction growth, rising 63% from CY21 (38 lakh sq. ft.) to CY22
(62 lakh sq. ft.), and 8% further growth to 67 lakh sq. ft. in CY23. H1 CY24 transactions almost
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doubled, with a 91% YoY growth to 44 lakh sq. ft. from 23 lakh sq. ft. in HI CY23. However,
completions fell by 46% in CY23 compared to CY22. H1 CY24 completions decreased slightly
by 4% YoY, from 25 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY23 to 24 lakh sq. ft., leading to one of the lowest
vacancy rates across cities, pushing rents upward.

Chennai displayed volatility, with a 44% increase in transactions from CY21 (39 lakh sq. ft.)
to CY22 (56 lakh sq. ft.), followed by a 93% surge in CY23 to 108 lakh sq. ft. H1 CY24,
however, saw a 33% decline YoY, with transactions dropping to 30 lakh sq. ft. from 45 lakh sq.
ft. Completions peaked at 66 lakh sq. ft. in CY23, but fell drastically by 65% YoY, from 23 lakh
sq. ft. in H1 CY23 to just 8 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY24. This mismatch between supply and demand
has driven vacancy rates lower and rent growth to the highest in the country.

Ahmedabad saw consistent growth, with transactions doubling from CY21 (11 lakh sq. ft.) to
CY22 (22 lakh sq. ft.), though they fell 18% in CY23 to 18 lakh sq. ft. H1 CY24 transactions
grew 240% YoY to 17 lakh sq. ft. rising from 5 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY23. Completions have
remained steady, and in HI CY24, completions matched transactions at 17 lakh sq. ft. The
development of high-grade office spaces and improved infrastructure in the city has driven
sustained occupier interest, contributing significantly to market growth.

Kolkata displayed slower growth, with transactions rising 38% from CY21 (8 lakh sq. ft.) to
CY22 (11 lakh sq. ft.), and a further 27% increase to 14 lakh sq. ft. in CY23. HI CY24
transactions saw a modest 16% YoY increase, from 6 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY23 to 7 lakh sq. ft.
Completions, however, fell 58% YoY, from 7.2 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY23 to 3 lakh sq. ft. in H1
CY24, indicating limited new supply.

Across all cities, total transaction volumes reached 347 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY24, up 33% YoY
from 261 lakh sq. ft. in H1 CY23. The Indian office space market continues to show strength,
driven by strong demand across key cities like Bengaluru, Mumbai, Pune, and Hyderabad.
Vacancy rates are declining as supply struggles to keep pace with demand, which is reflected in
H1 CY24 completions growing by 35% YoY, from 186 lakh sq. ft. to 251 lakh sq. ft. This supply-
demand imbalance is pushing rents higher, especially in constrained markets like Pune and
Chennai.

4.3 Assessment of Major Growth Drivers for the Office Space Industry

1.

Increasing Population to result in Increased Workforce

India is the second-largest populated country in the world and its rising population will result in
more individuals joining the workforce. For instance, China’s (most populated country in the
world) population grew at a rate of 12% from 125 crores in 1999 to 140 crores in 2019 whereas
India’s population increased by 32% from 104 crores to 137 crores during the same period. A
higher number of employees will create more demand for office space, and will therefore, be a
key demand driver in the future.

Hybrid Work Models and Flexible Spaces

The shift to hybrid work models, accelerated by the pandemic, has reshaped office space
requirements. Many organizations are adopting a mix of remote and in-office work, which has
led to the rise of demand for flexible, employee-centric spaces. Office layouts now focus on
collaboration zones, wellness areas, and hot desking to accommodate a dynamic workforce.
This trend is reshaping the demand for office spaces across major cities, with occupiers seeking
adaptable spaces that align with the new working norms.

Technology and Digital Transformation

The rapid pace of technological advancements is revolutionizing how businesses operate and
collaborate. The adoption of digital tools, cloud computing, and Al-driven solutions is leading
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4.4

to increased demand for office spaces that support tech infrastructure. Cities like Bengaluru and
Hyderabad are hubs for tech companies, which are driving the demand for modern office spaces
that cater to their digital needs. These companies require well-equipped spaces with high-speed
internet, data centers, and technology support systems.

4. Growth in Tier-2 and Tier-3 Cities

As businesses diversify their operations beyond metro cities, demand for office spaces in tier-2
and tier-3 cities is rising. Locations like Jaipur, Coimbatore, and Indore are witnessing
increasing demand due to the availability of talent and lower operational costs. These cities
provide an attractive alternative for companies looking to expand without the high real estate
costs associated with metros. Government initiatives promoting smart cities and improved
infrastructure are further boosting the appeal of these locations.

5. Increased Outsourcing and Back Office Demand

India remains a key destination for global outsourcing, particularly for IT and back-office
operations. The cost advantage, combined with a highly skilled workforce, makes it an attractive
market for multinationals seeking to set up or expand their operations. This outsourcing trend
is fueling demand for office spaces, especially in cities like Pune, Hyderabad, and Bengaluru,
which are known for housing global delivery centers.

6. ESG and Sustainable Development

There is an increasing focus on sustainability and ESG (Environmental, Social, and
Governance) in office real estate. Companies are now prioritizing eco-friendly buildings and
green certifications (such as LEED). The growing emphasis on reducing carbon footprints and
promoting employee well-being through sustainable practices is driving demand for energy-
efficient buildings and smart office designs, boosting demand for green office spaces

7. Institutional Investments and REITs

The India’s commercial real estate sector has attracted significant institutional investment,
particularly from global private equity firms and Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs). This
has provided a boost to the development of high-quality office spaces, particularly in top-tier
cities. The focus is on creating premium office spaces that cater to the needs of both
multinational corporations and domestic companies, further fueling the supply and demand
dynamics in the industry.

Growth Outlook of Commercial Office space demand

The growth outlook for commercial office space demand in India remains strong, driven by multiple key
factors, such as the growth of Global Capability Centers (GCCs), the IT and BPO sectors, foreign direct
investment (FDI), and infrastructure development. In Q1 2024 alone, GCCs accounted for 37% of all
leasing activity, highlighting the increasing demand from global businesses setting up operations in India.
Major metropolitan cities like Bengaluru and Hyderabad continue to dominate the office leasing market,
contributing half of the leasing activity and three-fourths of the new supply during this period.

As India's economy expands, driven by resilient GDP growth and urbanization, demand for high-quality
workspaces is increasing. The rise of startups and SMEs has further fueled the demand for flexible office
solutions and co-working spaces. Additionally, multinational corporations, attracted by India’s skilled
workforce and competitive costs, are investing heavily in office spaces, especially in technology hubs like
Bengaluru, Pune, and Hyderabad.

The flex-office segment has seen robust growth as well, with managed offices becoming popular among

both multinational and domestic enterprises, especially in the IT/ITES sector. This trend is expected to
continue, with flex operators playing a major role in leasing activity.
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4.6

Looking forward, technology adoption, sustainability practices, and hybrid work models will further
shape the demand for commercial office spaces. Major cities like Bengaluru and Hyderabad are predicted
to lead project completions over the next three years, and premium office spaces in key micro markets are
expected to command higher rental premiums. Despite potential inflationary pressures and rising fit-out
costs, the market's strong fundamentals and investor confidence are likely to sustain growth, making India
a vital global office space destination.

Opportunities emerging for Interior Fit-out Contracting Services in India

. Growth in Commercial Real Estate
As the commercial real estate sector continues to expand, particularly in major cities like
Mumbai, Delhi, and Bengaluru, there is an increased demand for high-quality interior fit-out
services. Office spaces, retail stores, and hospitality sectors are key areas driving this growth.

. IT and Tech Industry Expansion
With the rapid growth of the IT and tech industry, there is a rising need for modern, flexible
workspaces. Companies are investing in state-of-the-art office interiors to attract and retain
talent.

. Healthcare and Educational Facilities
The expansion of healthcare and educational institutions is creating opportunities for specialized
fit-out services. Hospitals and schools require tailored interior solutions to enhance functionality
and comfort.

. Retail Sector Evolution
The retail sector's shift towards experiential stores and flagship outlets is driving demand for
innovative and engaging interior designs. This trend provides opportunities for contractors to
showcase creative and customer-centric solutions.

. Sustainability Trends
There is a growing emphasis on sustainable and eco-friendly interior solutions. Fit-out
contractors that focus on green building practices and energy-efficient materials are likely to
gain a competitive edge.

. Government Initiatives

Government projects, including smart city developments and public infrastructure upgrades, are
generating opportunities for interior fit-out services in public and semi-public spaces.

. Renovation and Retrofit Projects
With many existing buildings needing modernization, there is a strong market for renovation
and retrofit fit-out services, offering potential for contractors to work on upgrading outdated
interiors.

Key Threats and Challenges Related to Fit-Out Industry

Cost Fluctuations in Raw Materials

The Indian fit-out industry heavily relies on materials like wood, steel, glass, and other customized

elements. Fluctuations in the prices of these materials, often driven by global market conditions, can
drastically impact project budgets. Volatility in commodity prices, such as metals and petroleum-based
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products, further compounds the issue, leading to price surges. These sudden changes in material costs
make it difficult for fit-out companies to offer fixed pricing to clients, which can lead to renegotiations,
delays, or cancellations of projects. Moreover, inflationary trends and supply chain disruptions
exacerbate the problem, especially for long-term projects that extend over several months, adding
pressure on project timelines and profitability.

Skilled Labor Shortage

The availability of skilled labor, particularly in specialized trades like electrical, carpentry, and custom-
made interiors, is a significant challenge in the Indian fit-out industry. While there is a large pool of labor
in the construction sector, the specific skills required for high-quality interior fit-out work are lacking.
Many companies face delays due to difficulty in finding professionals with adequate expertise, and this
shortage is worsened by migration of skilled workers to more lucrative international markets.
Additionally, the need for constant training to keep up with new materials and technologies puts a strain
on companies, increasing the cost of hiring and slowing down project execution, which affects client
satisfaction.

Tight Deadlines and Logistical Constraints

Fit-out projects often have strict deadlines that can be hard to meet, especially in commercial spaces
where delays may disrupt business operations. Factors such as material availability or labor shortages
can cause significant delays, resulting in penalties. Proper time management and efficient coordination
of multiple teams are crucial for staying on schedule.

Additionally, Fit-out projects, especially in urban environments, often face logistical challenges like
restricted site access or space limitations. Delivering materials or moving equipment in congested areas
requires careful planning to avoid delays. Utilizing efficient site layouts and scheduling deliveries during
off-peak hours can help reduce logistical issues.
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OUR BUSINESS

Unless otherwise stated, references in this section to “we”, “our” or “us” (including in the context of any
financial information) are to the Company along with its Subsidiaries and Associates on a consolidated basis. To
obtain a complete understanding of our Company and business, prospective investors should read this section in
conjunction with “Risk Factors”, “Industry Overview”, “Financial Information” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 29, 122, 210 and 257,
respectively, as well as financial and other information contained in this Red Herring Prospectus as a whole.
Additionally, please refer to “Definitions and Abbreviations” on page 1 for certain terms used in this section.
Some of the information set out in this section, especially information with respect to our plans and strategies,
contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in Equity
Shares, investors should read this entire Red Herring Prospectus. An investment in Equity Shares involves a high
degree of risk. For a discussion of certain risks in connection with investment in the Equity Shares, you should
read “Risk Factors” on page 29, for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements, as
well as “Financial Statements” and “Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” on pages 210 and 257, respectively, for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or
implied by these forward-looking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this
section is derived from our Restated Consolidated Financial Statements.

OVERVIEW

We are engaged in the business of providing interior fit-out solutions, dedicated towards crafting corporate &
commercial spaces which includes corporate offices, research & development facilities, laboratories, airport
lounge, flexible workspace and commercial retail spaces, amongst others. Our services are focussed towards
creating captivating and functional spaces on a pan India level. We elevate the aesthetic and functional aspects of
workspaces by delivering interior fit-out solutions. Our solutions range from bare shell to fully furnished
commercial spaces. Our range of services include Design & Build services (“D&B”) and General Contracting
(“GC”) services. Under D&B, we provide end-to-end services which includes designing, shop drawings of the
projects, resource planning & procurement of materials, project execution, final walkthrough & handing over the
projects and providing post project support. Under GC services, our scope includes (a) civil and interior works
i.e. plumbing, POP works, painting, carpentry work and polishing; (b) mechanical work includes ducting,
insulations, copper piping, cassette, chiller & air handling units, dampers & diffusers and grills; (c) electrical work
includes panels & distribution boards, cables & cable trays, conduiting & wiring, lights fixtures, UPS & batteries,
switch sockets & isolators, fire alarm system, sprinklers, and earthing works and (d) final refinements for whole
or part of the project which includes windows installation, wall finishes, flooring installation, furniture
installation, fixture and appliance installation, signage & branding, quality inspection and touch-ups.

Our Company bids for domestic tenders’ issued by large domestic and multi-national corporations, project
management consultants and international property consultants tenders issued by large domestic and multi-
national corporations, project management consultants and international property consultants for D&B and GC
services. We are awarded projects on work order basis. The work orders usually contain all codes and standards
applicable to the project, as may be set out in the specifications, drawings and Bill of Quantities (“BOQ”).

We consistently endeavour to provide high-quality execution, coupled with optimized budget solutions, to meet
our clients' unique needs and expectations. Our ongoing commitment to staying informed about the latest trends
and innovations in the industry allows us to present forward-thinking solutions. By incorporating a personalized
approach tailored to each client’s objectives, we not only enhance the effectiveness of our services but also foster
strong, mutually beneficial relationships.

In the last 3 financial years and six months period ending on September 30, 2024, we have successfully completed
over 200 projects aggregating to more than 45 lakhs Sq Ft area of development. As of December, 31, 2024, our
Order Book includes 47 ongoing projects with an aggregate contract value of ¥ 43,486.33 lakhs and about 40
lakhs Sq Ft area of development. Our ongoing projects are currently spread across 12 cities in India. For further
details on our Order Book, see “Our Business - Order Book” on page 156 and “Risk Factors — Our Order Book
may not be representative of our future results and our actual income may be significantly less than the estimates
reflected in our Order Book, which could adversely affect our results of operations.” on page 29 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.
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We have a team of, in-house as well as on retainership basis, experienced and qualified engineers, architects,
designers and project management professionals, which enable us to undertake our projects in timely and efficient
manner. Our team is also supported by third-party consultants and industry experts to ensure compliance and
quality standards laid down by the industry and government agencies and departments. The scope of our services
typically includes end-to-end management of the projects viz., designing, shop drawings of the projects, resource
planning & procurement of materials, project execution, final walkthrough & handing over the projects and
providing post project support. We focus on our ability to successfully bid and win new projects and secure repeat
orders from our existing clients. For fiscal 2022, 2023, 2024 and for six-month period ended September 30, 2024,
revenue from repeat clients accounted for 80.18%, 70.76%, 89.62%, and 61.31%, of our total revenue from
operations.

We have a diverse client base representing a broad range of industries such as information technology,
manufacturing, banking and financial services, insurance companies, pharmaceutical and healthcare, FMCG, oil
and gas, educational institutes, real estate & infrastructure development and renewable energy.

We are a founding member of the IGBC (Indian Green Building Council), which is actively involved in promoting
the green building concept in India and have obtained platinum and gold “LEED” certifications for some of the
projects executed by us for our clients. These affiliations have strengthened our commitment to sustainable and
innovative design practices while enabling us to tap into valuable networks and resources within the industry.

Our promoter, Sameer Akshay Pakvasa, represents the second generation of leadership, continuing the legacy of
his father, Akshay Pakvasa, who has over 5 decades of experience in the industry. Sameer Akshay Pakvasa has
two decades of experience and is associated with our Company since 2001.

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Over the past three fiscal years, our financial performance has shown consistent growth. From Fiscal 2022 to
Fiscal 2024 (i) our total income has grown from X 15,534.26 lakhs in Fiscal 2022 to X 22,308.65 lakhs in Fiscal
2024 at a CAGR of 19.84%; (ii) our EBITDA has grown from X 679.33 lakhs in Fiscal 2022 to % 1,981.10 lakhs
in Fiscal 2024 at a CAGR of 70.77%; and (iii) our net profit has grown from X 509.38 lakhs in Fiscal 2022 to X
1,220.58 lakhs Fiscal 2024 at a CAGR of 54.80%.

Certain key operational and financial metrics on a restated basis for the period ended September 30, 2024 and
Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022 is set forth below:
(R in lakhs, except ratios)

Sr  Particular Six month period Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
No s® ended September 30,
2024
Amount % of total Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
income total total total
income income income
A. Revenue 19,209.63 99.84%  22,129.19 99.20% 19,025.86 99.52% 15,383.03 99.03%
from
operations
Design and 5,705.95 29.66% 1,709.10 7.66% 3,675.58 19.23% 2,112.55 13.60%
Build
Services
General 13,503.68 70.18%  20,420.09 91.53% 15,350.28 80.30% 13,270.48 85.43%
Contractin
g Service
B.  Other 30.57 0.16% 179.46 0.80% 91.28 0.48% 151.22 0.97%
Income
C. Total 19240.20 100%  22,308.65 100.00% 19,117.14  100.00% 15,534.26 100.00%
Income
[A+B]
D. EBITDA® 1,569.54 8.17% 1,981.10 8.95% 1,334.38 7.01% 679.33 4.42%
E. PAT 953.47 4.96% 1,220.58 5.47% 1,031.13 5.39% 509.38 3.28%
F. Adjusted 7090.44 - 5,136.93 - 3,916.35 - 2,885.21
Networth®
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Sr  Particular Six month period Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022

No s® ended September 30,
2024
Amount % of total Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
income total total total
income income income
G. Total 3,169.76 - 4,279.54 - 2,822.77 - 2,262.05
Debt®
H. Debt to 0.45 - 0.84 - 0.72 - 0.78
Equity
Ratio®
L Current 1.36 - 1.37 - 1.45 - 1.27
Ratio©®
J. ROCE 15.09%* - 24.23% - 21.46% - 15.34%
(%)M
K. ROE (%)® 15.60%* - 26.96% - 30.32% - 19.64%
* Not Annualised
Notes:

1. As per the restated consolidated financial statements

2. EBITDA has been calculated as a sum of profit before tax, finance costs and depreciation and amortization less other income. EBITDA
Margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by revenue from operations.

3. Adjusted Networth is calculated as a sum of Equity Share Capital and Reserves and Surplus (excluding deferred tax assets / liabilities)
as per the restated consolidated financial statements.

4. Total debt is calculated as long-term borrowings plus short-term borrowings (including current maturities of long-term borrowings).

5. Debt to Equity Ratio is calculated as Total Debt (short term borrowings plus long-term borrowings) divided by Adjusted Networth as per
restated consolidated financial statements.

6. Current Ratio is calculated as total current assets as divided by total current liabilities as per restated consolidated financial statements.

7. ROCE is calculated as Earnings Before Interest and Tax divided by Average Capital Employed. Average Capital Employed is calculated
by dividing the sum of closing capital employed of the current fiscal year and closing capital employed of the previous fiscal year by 2.
Capital employed is calculated as a sum of adjusted net worth and Long- Term & Short-term Borrowings. Capital Employed of FY 2021
is taken from audited consolidated financial statements.

8. ROE is calculated as restated profit for the year/period divided by average adjusted net worth, where average adjusted net worth is
calculated by dividing sum of closing adjusted net worth of the current fiscal year and closing adjusted net worth of the previous fiscal
year by 2. Adjusted net worth of FY 2021 is taken from audited consolidated financial statements.

OUR STRENGTHS
Experienced and qualified designing, engineering and execution team

We have a team of, in-house as well as on retainership basis, experienced and qualified engineers, architects,
designers and project management professionals, to undertake critical aspects of our projects such as designing,
shop drawings of the projects, resource planning & procurement of materials, project execution, final walkthrough
& handing over the projects and providing post project support. This capability enables us to correctly bid with
project specifications and provide quality services in a cost-effective manner. Our expertise has enabled us to
deliver the projects as per the designs and specification provided by our clients. As on September 30, 2024, we
have a team of over 155 designers, architects and engineers for project and design execution.

We have diverse capabilities to offer customised solutions to meet the specific requirements and address client
specific challenges varying from one industry to another. In the last 3 financial years and six months period ending
September 30, 2024, we have successfully over 200 projects aggregating to more than 45 lakhs Sq Ft area of
development.

Our team has the necessary skills and expertise in preparing detailed drawings through softwares such as ZW
CAD, 3DS Max, Corona, Sketchup and Vray based on the design requirements of our clients. This proprietary
softwares are widely used in designing and engineering industry for various purposes. The Company has purchased
licenses from the original distributors of this software and the said licenses are renewed on periodic basis. Our project-
in-charge is responsible for conducting regular inspection and tests at every project site to ensure that the projects
is undertaken as per client specification. They prepare a summary of critical activities that are likely to impact the
completion date. The designing, engineering, and execution team help us to ensure proper efficiency and
coordination, streamlined communication, customization and flexibility, consistent quality control and
adaptability to changes.
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In fiscal 2022, 2023, 2024 and six month period ended September 30, 2024, our Company has handed over 55,
55, 58 and 34 projects, respectively, with total developable area of 17,71,010 Sq Ft, 11,13,852 Sq Ft, 9,10,189 Sq
Ft and 8,06,279 Sq Ft, respectively, as further indicated in the table below:

Financial Year / period No of Projects Total area completed Average Area of
completed (Sq Ft)* completed projects

(Sq Fty*

2022 55 17,71,010 32,200.18

2023 55 11,13,852 20,251.85

2024 58 9,10,189 15,692.91

For period ended 34 8,06,279 23,714.09

September 30, 2024

Total 202 46.01,330 -

*Total area completed and average area completed mentioned are excluding of refurbishment work done by the company.
Proven track record of diversified service offerings encompassing a wide range of industries

Our historical performance showcase a track record of successfully delivering interior solutions to a wide range
of industries, such as information technology, manufacturing, banking, financial services, insurance services,
pharmaceutical and healthcare, FMCG, oil and gas, educational institutes, real estate & infrastructure development
and renewable energy. Over the years, we have gained experience of offering diversified solutions, which includes
turnkey projects requiring designing and complete contracting and building assignment. Over the years, we have
developed projects of various sizes as per the needs and requirements of our clients. In the last 3 financial years
and six month period ending on September 30, 2024, we have developed projects ranging from 1,247 Sq Ft to
6,91,231 Sq Ft for 253 projects including ongoing projects with total developed area of more than 80 lakhs Sq Ft,
demonstrating versatility and market adaptability.

Working with clients operating across diverse industries expands our Company’s market reach, allowing it to tap
into a broader range of clients. This diverse client base helps mitigate the risk associated with economic
fluctuations in specific sectors. Relying on a single industry for business can be risky, as economic downturns or
industry-specific challenges may impact a Company's revenue. This diversified portfolio showcases the
competence across different styles and project types, which attracts new clients who are looking for a proven track
record in various industries.

Following is the industry wise revenue break-up of the Company for the last three financial years and for the
period ended September 30, 2024

Industry For six month Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
Period ended ended March 31, ended March 31, ended March 31,
September 30, 2024 2024 2023 2022
Amount Percent Amount Percenta Amount Percent Amount Percent
age ge age age
Asset Leasing 663.19 3.45% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
and Financing
Architectural 4,093.71 21.31% 1,658.24 7.49% 2,612.26  13.73% 4,252.11  27.64%
and interior
design
Banking & 2,162.27 11.26% 811.97 3.67% 219.23 1.15% 9.40 0.06%
Financial
Services
Chemicals 1,416.97 7.38% 58.45 0.26% 1,174.77 6.17% 349.17 2.27%
Communicatio 651.21 3.39% 21.20 0.10% 152.08 0.80% 128.69 0.84%
ns &
Networking
Educational - 0.00% - 0.00% 7.63 0.04% 14.63 0.10%
Institute
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Industry For six month Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
Period ended ended March 31, ended March 31, ended March 31,
September 30, 2024 2024 2023 2022
Amount Percent Amount Percenta Amount Percent Amount Percent
age ge age age
Healthcare 105.67 0.55% 453.99 2.05% 113.98 0.60% 60.00 0.39%
industry
Information 3,774.96 19.65%  5,944.02 26.86% 870.30 4.57% 1,408.67 9.16%
Technology
Insurance 279.56 1.46%  3,146.91 14.22% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Investment 232.20 1.21% 28.14 0.13% 340.74 1.79% 359.69 2.34%
Banking &
Investment
Services
Machinery, 555.30 2.89% 375.58 1.70% 255.43 1.34% 247.95 1.61%
Equipment &
Components
Manufacturing 263.96 1.37% 35.33 0.16% 423.00 2.22% 243.15 1.58%
Industry
Pharmaceutical 170.41 0.89% 496.11 2.24% 923.30 4.85% 959.61 6.24%
& Healthcare
Professional & 95.45 0.50% 301.44 1.36% 897.89 4.72% 1,924.03  12.51%
Commercial
Services
Real estate and 3,613.04 18.81%  4,867.80 22.00% 8,386.95  44.08% 5,167.17  33.59%
infrastructure
development
Renewable - 0.00%  2,094.42 9.46% 2,002.38  10.52% - 0.00%
Energy
Others* 1,131.72 5.89%  1,835.58 8.29% 645.92 3.39% 258.76 1.68%

Grand Total 19,209.63 100.00% 22,129.19 100.00%  19,025.86 100.00% 15,383.03 100.00%

(Other industries includes projects executed for Individuals, foundations, consulting firms, quick service restaurant, apparels stores, furniture
and Miscellaneous work)

Adhering quality standards and sustainable development practices

We are an ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018 certified organization for quality management
system. We believe that quality is a pre-requisite for a positive consumer experience and long-term brand loyalty.
We follow a comprehensive approach to quality and sustainable development from an early design phase through
the construction or project execution period. We work closely with designers for sustainable design and operation
of our projects.

We are also a founding member of the IGBC (Indian Green Building Council), which is actively involved in
promoting the green building concept in India and have obtained platinum and gold “LEED” certifications for
some of the projects developed for our clients. Such projects include passive features, such as ventilation to ensure
low energy consumption, use of recycled and environmentally friendly materials and indoor plantation, amongst
others. These affiliations have strengthened our commitment to sustainable and innovative design practices while
enabling us to tap into valuable networks and resources within the industry. Thus, our focus on quality and
sustainable development ensures repeat orders and helps to spread our recognition by word of mouth.

Strong footprint at key economic hubs in India

We have presence across major economic and financial centres across India i.e. Mumbai, Bengaluru, Hyderabad,
Pune, NCR, Chennai, Ahmedabad and Bhopal. We have branch offices and sales team across these major
economic hubs. Our woodwork is conducted at our manufacturing facility located in Mumbai supported by our
warehouses located at Mumbai, Pune and Bangalore. We have also executed projects in tier-2 cities such as Indore,
Bhopal, Vadodara, Tirupati, Udaipur and Goa. All these combined resource pool and outsourcing arrangements
have helped us stretch our operations across India. We have recently expanded our operations internationally
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through one of our subsidiaries, Eleganz Infra & Projects Limited, located in Republic of Rwanda and associate
company, Eleganz Interiors Pte Ltd., located in Singapore.

Our experienced workforce is capable of delivering and managing large interior fit-out projects. Our sales
personnel, located across various regions, possess industry knowledge that, when integrated with our design and
project management capabilities, enables us to offer our clients robust and effective solutions. This structure
enables us to make our business scalable across geographies.

During last 3 financial years and till September 30, 2024, we have successfully completed projects across 10
different states in India. As on December 31, 2024, we have 47 ongoing projects spread across 9 states in India.

Following is the city wise revenue break-up of the Company for last three financial years and for the period ended

September 30, 2024

Name of For Six month
city period ended
September 30 2024

Amount  Percenta

ge
Ahmedaba 76.47 0.40%
d
Bangalore 5,616.85 29.24%
Bhopal - 0.00%
Chennai 315.89 1.64%
Goa 66.50 0.35%
Hyderabad 687.67 3.58%
Indore 1,011.60 5.27%
Mumbai 6,085.07 31.68%
(Includes
Navi
Mumbai)
Noida 1.01 0.01%
Pune 2,893.59 15.06%
Tirupati 1,102.89 5.74%
Udaipur - 0.00%
Vadodara 246.93 1.29%
Others* 1,105.17 5.75%
Grand 19,209.63 100%
Total

(*Other cities include Faridabad, Gurgaon, Nashik, Raigad and Satara)

Financial Year ended

March 31 2024

Amount Per centag
e

2,094.42 9.46%
3,379.23 15.27%
70.18 0.32%
17254 0.78%
- 0.00%
675.75 3.05%
938.25 4.24%
8,539.69 38.59%
20.38 0.09%
4,062.64 18.36%
1,080.97 4.88%
- 0.00%
405.93 1.83%
689.20 3.11%
22,129.19  100.00%

Financial Year ended

March 31 2023
Amount  Percentag
e

2,579.21 13.56%
3,894.83 20.47%
140.23 0.74%
941.26 4.95%

- 0.00%

708.85 3.73%

- 0.00%
8,276.21 43.50%
436.71 2.30%
1,323.97 6.96%
- 0.00%
123.34 0.65%
- 0.00%
601.23 3.16%
19,025.86  100.00%

(< in lakhs)

Financial Year ended
March 31 2022

Amount
401.93

5,540.86

840.17

993.60

3,573.27

2,829.93
905.70

143.00

154.56

15,383.03

Per centag
e
2.61%

36.02%
0.00%
5.46%
0.00%
6.46%
0.00%

23.23%

18.40%
5.89%
0.00%
0.93%
0.00%
1.00%

100.00%

Following is the state wise revenue break-up of the Company for the last three financial years and for the period

ended September 30, 2024

Name of For the period ended

State September 30, 2024
Amount % of
revenue
Maharashtra 8,978.66  46.74%
Karnataka 5,616.85  29.24%
Gujarat 323.40 1.68%
Haryana 1,105.17 5.75%
Telangana 687.67 3.58%

Fiscal 2024

Amount % of
revenue
12,602.34 56.95%
3,379.23 15.27%
2,500.35 11.30%
689.20 3.11%
675.75 3.05%
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Fiscal 2023

Amount % of
revenue
9,909.81 52.09%
3,891.83 20.46%
2,579.21 13.56%
294.61 1.55%
708.85 3.73%

(< in lakhs)
Fiscal 2022

Amount % of
revenue
4,614.50 30.00%
5,540.86 36.02%
401.93 2.61%
19.04 0.12%
993.60 6.46%



Name of For the period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022

State September 30, 2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue revenue revenue

Tamil Nadu 315.89 1.64% 172.54 0.78% 941.26 4.95% 840.17 5.46%
Uttar Pradesh 1.01 0.01% 20.38 0.09% 436.71 2.30% 2,829.93 18.40%
Madhya 1,011.60 5.27% 1,008.43 4.56% 140.23 0.74% - 0.00%
Pradesh
Andhra 1,102.89 5.74% 1,080.97 4.88% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Pradesh
Rajasthan - 0.00% - 0.00% 123.34 0.65% 143.00 0.93%
Goa 66.50 0.35%
Total 19,209.63 100.00%  22,129.19 100.00% 19,025.86 100.00% 15,383.03 100.00%

Strong and diversified Order Book

As on December 31, 2024, we are executing 47 ongoing projects, which include 8 projects under D&B and 39
projects under GC services, having total project value of X 70,589.66 lakhs and unexecuted order value of X
43,486.33 lakhs, which also includes a large project under our Design and Build services worth X 15972.15 lakhs
and under Our general contracting services worth X 18808.45 lakhs. Diversification within the Order Book,
including a mix of clients, projects and industries, helps mitigate risks associated with dependence on a single
client or sector. This also helps us to reduce vulnerability to market-specific challenges.

We believe that consistent receipt of orders has materialized due to our continued focus on our ability to
successfully bid and win new projects and secure repeat orders from our clients. For fiscal 2022, 2023, 2024 and
for period ended September 30, 2024, revenue from repeat clients accounted for 80.18%, 70.76%, 89.62%, and
61.31% of our revenue from operations. We believe timely execution capacities, optimum resource utilisation,
strong relationships with large business houses as well as the price competitiveness of our project provide us a
competitive edge and enable us to secure repeat contracts. Our experience in designing, engineering and execution
of the projects, technical capabilities, reputation for quality as well as the price competitiveness have enabled us
to successfully bid and win new and repeat projects. The strong Order Book provides clear visibility into our
future revenue streams. This predictability allows for better financial planning, budgeting and resource allocation.
With a strong Order Book, our Company has the option of stronger negotiating power with suppliers and sub-
contractors. This leads to favourable terms, better pricing and improved overall project economics.

In-house woodwork facility

We have a dedicated woodwork factory for our internal consumption in Mumbai that allows a controlled and
optimized supply of required fit outs for our projects as per our requirements. It leads to increased efficiency and
precision in the project execution process by ensuring woodwork is of high quality and meets exact specifications
of the clients. For the woodwork done at our in-house facility, we can keep a strict check on quality control
measures such that the piece of woodwork can be thoroughly inspected before it is sent out to client location,
ensuring that the final product meets the Company’s standards. With advanced imported machinery, including
hot/cold press machines, moulding and designing machines, automatic and CNC cutting machines, sanding
machines, paint booth coupled with skilled craftsmen, we are able to deliver consistent & aesthetic design and
customized projects catering to precision and unique client requirements.

Our manufacturing capabilities extend to a diverse range of high-quality products, including modular furniture,
customized furniture, pre-painted wall panels, doors, metal fabrications, and CNC grills.

Experienced Promoter and senior management team
One of our key strengths is our highly experienced and capable leadership team, spearheaded by our Promoter
and Managing Director, Sameer Akshay Pakvasa, a second-generation entrepreneur with over two decades of

experience in the interior fit-out solutions industry. His deep understanding of the business and market dynamics,
combined with his strong leadership abilities, has been pivotal in driving the Company’s sustained growth and
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development.

Complementing his leadership is our Whole Time Director, Mayank Kumar Sharma, a dynamic and accomplished
professional with a rich experience of 13 years in corporate interior and design fit-out solutions, project
management and leadership. Mayank Kumar Sharma holds a MBA and is certified in corporate real estate and
facilities management from Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors, a professional body located in London, United
Kingdom. His proven track record of effectively leading teams and fostering continuous growth has been
instrumental in steering the Company through expansion phases and increasing its operational efficiency.

In addition to these key figures, our senior management team consists of well-qualified and highly experienced
professionals across various domains, including project execution, finance, sales and business development. This
collective expertise has been integral to our consistent growth, enabling us to maintain a strong market position,
expand our client base and execute large-scale, complex projects with precision and quality.

OUR STRATEGIES
Increasing the size of projects and our pre-qualification to bid for larger projects

Our primary focus is to strengthen our prospects in executing larger sized projects under our design and build
capabilities. We have recently been awarded a large project under our Design and Build services worth X 15,972.15
lakhs for software division of a large engineering conglomerate and under Our general contracting services worth
% 18,808.45 lakhs airport renovation project. We will continue to focus on the Design and Built services while
seeking opportunities to further increase the size of our projects under General Contracting services. In the last 3
financial years and six months period ended September 30, 2024, we have completed projects in the range of
1,247 Sq Ft to 6,91,231 Sq Ft. We intend to capitalize on our experience and project execution expertise and
continue to selectively pursue larger projects. Execution of larger-sized projects provides an edge over our
competitors, favourable margins and economies of scale.

Increase in the size of projects will also lead to our Company bid for larger projects having higher value and higher
development area. For example, our ongoing projects include work orders for some esteemed projects involving
development of 9.68 lakhs Sq Ft under GC Services, 6.91 lakhs Sq Ft under Design & Build works in Bengaluru,
3.55 lakhs Sq Ft under GC services in Bengaluru, 3.50 lakhs Sq Ft under GC services in Indore. Large sized
projects require requisite level of competencies in designing and execution of such projects.

Focusing on Client centric approach

We provide fit-out solutions to our clients operating in wide range of industries such as information technology,
manufacturing, banking and financial services, insurance companies, pharmaceutical and healthcare, FMCG, oil
and gas, educational institutes, real estate & infrastructure development and renewable energy. Large companies
generally follow certain specifications for designing their workspaces and offices which is influenced by various
factors such as nature of industry, company values, culture, environmental factors, employee convenience, safety
& recreation. We are required to deliver our interior and fit-out solutions after considering such client specific
requirements in stipulated timeline along with ensuring superior quality standards. To deliver client specific
requirements, we are required to keep up with latest trends and fashion in the market along with having a deep
understanding of client’s design requirements. Regular communication and collaboration with clients ensure that
the final designs align with the client's expectations. Further, we constantly study the latest trends, design and
fashion in the industry in which our clients belong in order to differentiate ourselves from our competitors and
enjoy competitive edge. Staying abreast of the latest design trends, materials, and technologies as well as
incorporating innovative and sustainable design solutions will help us differentiate our Company from competitors
and attract clients looking for innovative and unique inner space arrangements. As on September 30, 2024, we
have a team of over 155 designers, architects and engineers for project and design execution.

Expansion of our geographical footprint
In the last 3 financial years and during the six months period ended on September 30, 2024, we have successfully
completed over 200 projects aggregating to more than 45 lakhs Sq Ft area of developed area across 17 cities in 10

states of India. As of December 31, 2024, our Order Book includes 47 ongoing projects with an outstanding order
book value of X 43,486.33 lakhs and about 40 lakhs Sq Ft area of development. Our ongoing projects are currently
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spread across 12 cities in India. In the last 3 financial years and six months period ended September 30, 2024,
most of our projects were concentrated in western and southern states of India. We intend to gradually expand our
business operations to other regions of the country following footprints of economic activities in the country. Our
expansion approach involves opening branch offices in high-potential cities to better serve local clients and
establish deeper connections with regional stakeholders. We continuously evaluate new locations for potential
branch offices and project sites based on economic indicators, client requirements, and industry trends.

We have our headquarter in Mumbai and branch offices at Bangalore, Pune, Hyderabad, and Chennai. We have
undertaken projects in 8, 9, 9 and 10 states during fiscal 2022, 2023, 2024 and for period ended September 30,
2024, respectively. We plan to continue our strategy of diversifying and expanding our presence in these regions
for the growth of our business. We are selective in expanding to new locations and look at new geographies where
we can deliver quality services as well as where our existing clients expands their presence. For example, we
recently undertook a project in Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh to set-up a new corporate office for one of our existing
clients for whom we had undertaken projects in Pune, Bengaluru and Tirumala in the past. Through further
expansion of our geographical presence, we expect to enhance our visibility in smaller & upcoming economic
centres of the country, explore untapped & growing market in smaller cities, expand our existing client base, hedge
against risks of disruption of operations in specific geographical areas and protection from fluctuations resulting
from business concentration in limited geographical areas.

Continue to enhance our core strengths by attracting, retaining and training qualified personnels

We believe our ability to effectively execute and manage projects is crucial to our continued success. We
understand that maintaining quality, minimising costs and ensuring timely completion of our projects depends
largely on the skill and workmanship of our employees. Skills and qualifications of our designers, architects and
engineers plays a critical role in success of our business operations. As competition for onboarding these qualified
personnel increases among engineering and construction companies in India, we seek to improve competitiveness
by increasing our focus on training our staff. We offer our designing, engineering and technical personnel a wide
range of work experience and learning opportunities by providing them with continuous training in latest systems,
techniques and knowledge upgradation.

Efficient working capital management and increase financial efficiency

Effective management of our working capital cycle is crucial for maintaining seamless operations. We have
banking arrangements with HDFC Bank Limited and Bank of Baroda for managing working capital limits in the
form of cash credit, bank guarantees and letter of credit. In past, we have met our funding requirements by way
of unsecured loans from promoter, working capital loans from financial institutions and private placement of
equity shares. Our current working capital arrangement with banks provide us with the financial flexibility to
efficiently manage transactions with both our clients and suppliers. We intend to maintain operational efficiency
and profitability by optimizing our working capital management. This involves timely collection of receivables
and negotiating favourable payment terms with suppliers. By efficiently managing cash flow, we aim to sustain a
strong financial position and support ongoing growth in the competitive environment.

We intend to utilize part of the net proceeds from the Issue towards financing our working capital requirements.
Due to this, we believe we can further expand our business operations, take on larger projects and grow our Order
Book position. For further details, please refer to the section titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 102 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.
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OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Eleganz Interiors
Ltd

. . Genera
Design & Build .
3 Contracting (GC)
(D&B) services T
A. Design & Build services:

Under Design & Build (D&B) services, we provide complete, end-to-end services for interiors and fit-
outs which includes designing, shop drawings of the projects, resource planning & procurement of
materials, project execution, final walkthrough & handing over the projects and providing post project
support. Our design and build projects typically range from 2 months to 6 months based on the size and
complexity of the projects. We begin each project with a conceptual design, where we work closely with
clients to create design concepts that align with current trends and their unique expectations. For
commercial spaces, we place a strong emphasis on enhancing brand identity through thoughtful design.
Our space planning services prioritize efficiency and aesthetics, strategically positioning elements to
create cohesive, visually appealing environments. The project management process integrates budgeting,
scheduling, risk management and communication to ensure that projects are delivered withing agreed
time and budget. Finally, our construction, execution, and quality assurance services involve skilled
craftsmen and quality materials, with a focus on supervision, safety, and adherence to protocols and
ensuring successful project delivery.

B. General Contracting services:

Under General Contracting (“GC”) services, we provide (a) civil and interior works i.e. plumbing, POP
works, painting, carpentry work and polishing; (b) mechanical work; (¢) electrical work (including
HVAC work); and (d) final refinements for whole or part of the project.

Our interior space planning services optimize form and function, starting with a detailed client analysis
to understand traffic patterns and design goals. We create layouts that balance practical needs with
aesthetic appeal, resulting in functional and beautifully designed spaces. Additionally, we specialize in
customized furniture solutions, where craftsmanship and innovation come together to create bespoke
pieces that meet the functional needs of the space while enhancing its visual appeal. From
conceptualization to construction, our goal is to push design boundaries, delivering unique and
personalized furniture as part of an overall cohesive design. To complete our offerings, we provide
finishing & décor services, focusing on attention to detail.

We also provide HVAC systems, electrical system design, and installation, which ensures safety,
scalability, and sustainability. Our plumbing and sanitary solutions combine functionality with aesthetic
design, using quality fixtures that enhance the overall visual appeal. Additionally, we prioritize safety in
our fire protection systems, ensuring early detection and effective suppression to protect occupants and
assets. Lastly, we provide audio visual and IT Services, integrating advanced technology solutions to
meet the growing demands of modern spaces as per requirement of clients.
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BUSINESS OPERATIONS:
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The typical project lifecycle for our interior fit outs of commercial spaces is described below:
Bidding & tendering process:

Normally, our tender department receives Request for quotation, inquiry from clients where we are listed and from
International Property Consultants (IPC) followed by a detailed management discussion to assess the project’s
feasibility. We also actively participate in e-tendering on digital platform that streamlines the bidding process,
allowing for greater transparency and efficiency. In these e-tendering, bids are submitted online within a specified
timeframe, and we can monitor competitors' pricing to remain competitive while adhering to our profitability
goals. Factors such as type of project, geographical location, project complexity, workload, growth potential, cost,
and profitability are all evaluated to determine the suitability of the project. Additionally, an Earnest Money
Deposit (EMD) is submitted as part of the bidding process. Once a project is deemed viable, the team carefully
examines eligibility requirements, reviews tender documents, conducts site visits, and clarifies any questions
through pre-bid meetings. With preliminary designs in hand, cost estimates are prepared, and vendor engagements
are made to create a customized proposal that meets the client’s criteria.

Project initiation:

The project is transitioned to our implementation team and departments who are responsible for engineering,
design, and execution collaborate to draft a detailed blueprint that covers the scope of materials, equipment, and
manpower needs. Resources are mobilized, site infrastructure is established, and the construction team aligns their
schedules and milestones to ensure a smooth start to the project. During this phase, we also finalize designs with
the client, incorporating their brand elements, layout preferences, and functional specifications, which allows us
to prepare an in-depth project schedule, resource allocation, and budget estimate. This comprehensive planning
includes risk assessments to anticipate and mitigate any potential issues.

Additionally, as part of the project initiation, a performance bank guarantee (PBG) or security deposit are arranged
in accordance with contractual requirements. The PBG ensures the client is financially protected against non-
performance or delays, while the security deposit demonstrates the contractor's commitment to fulfil the project
obligations

Planning:
We work closely with the client to solidify design concepts, including aesthetic elements that align with the client’s
brand identity. We finalize layouts, assess resource needs, and develop an extensive timeline that outlines each

phase of construction. Budget estimates are refined based on detailed material and labor costs, and we establish
procurement schedules to align with the project’s timeline. We also conduct risk assessments, preparing
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contingency plans to address any potential challenges. Vendor negotiations take place during this phase to secure
favorable terms, ensuring timely delivery of high-quality materials.

Designing phase:

For our projects under D&B services, we also undertake designing and shop drawings of the projects. Our team
translates the client’s vision into detailed designs, incorporating elements of functionality, aesthetics, and brand
consistency. This phase begins with site evaluations to adapt designs to actual space specifications, enabling us to
draft initial layouts and renderings that reflect the client’s vision. We collaborate closely with the client, presenting
these initial designs and incorporating their feedback to refine and enhance the concept. Once the design direction
is confirmed, we move to the technical design stage, where we create detailed plans that include floor layouts,
electrical and lighting plans, plumbing, HVAC, and other infrastructure specifications. Materials, finishes, and
colour schemes are carefully selected to ensure a cohesive look. Our team also coordinates with vendors to source
specialized furnishings and materials, ensuring the project meets quality standards and aesthetic preferences

Construction phase:

We initiate construction based on the finalized design plans, starting with fundamental elements such as flooring,
walls, and structural components. Once the foundational aspects are in place, we progress to install specialized
systems like electrical wiring, plumbing, HVAC, and other technical components. Throughout the construction
phase, our team rigorously adheres to the established schedule to maintain consistent progress. Regular site
inspections and quality checks are conducted by our project managers to ensure that work meets our standards as
well as those of the client. We maintain clear communication with the client through periodic joint surveys,
allowing them to assess progress and provide feedback. This enables us to promptly address any design
adjustments or additional client requests, ensuring the project evolves in alignment with their vision.

During the later stages of construction, our team focuses on the finer details, such as custom finishes, furnishings,
and aesthetic elements. We place a strong emphasis on craftsmanship, ensuring each element is installed with
precision. Our senior project management team actively oversees the work, guiding the team to meet both quality
standards and project timelines. Our projects typically range from 2 months to 6 months based on the size and
complexity of the projects. By the end of the construction phase, we carry out a series of internal inspections to
verify that all systems are functional, aesthetically pleasing, and compliant with the project specifications.

Inspection, Quality check and handing over of projects:

We conduct comprehensive inspections and quality checks to confirm that the project aligns with the approved
designs and quality benchmarks. Our quality check process is planned, involving detailed scrutiny of materials,
workmanship, and adherence to design specifications at every stage of the project. This ensures early identification
and resolution of potential issues, maintaining high standards throughout. Equipment trials and commissioning
activities are performed to verify efficiency and reliability, followed by performance guarantee tests that ensure
the project meets all specified standards. Once the project passes these tests, we prepare for handover, providing
client briefings on operational aspects and initiating the defect liability period. During this period, we conduct
routine inspections to address any remaining issues, ensuring client satisfaction. Post-defect liability, billing is
finalized, and retention money is released, marking the successful conclusion of the project. This structured
process, from bidding through completion, exemplifies our commitment to delivering high-quality interior
solutions tailored to meet the specific needs of clients.

Billing and payment collection:

Upon receiving approval from the client, we request a work completion certificate, formally acknowledging the
project's satisfactory completion. This document enables us to initiate the outstanding invoicing process, where
detailed invoices are generated and submitted to the client for the final settlement of payment. Our team follows
up on payment collection, providing any necessary documentation or clarifications to expedite the process and
achieve timely payment. This final stage emphasizes our commitment to transparency, professionalism, and client
satisfaction, rounding off our comprehensive project delivery approach.
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Our approach to value engineering and cost optimization

We are dedicated to delivering high-quality projects while maximizing cost efficiency for our clients. Our value
engineering and cost-saving initiatives ensure that our clients receive desired results without compromising on
aesthetics, performance, or compliance which, inter alia include the following:

1.

In-house manufacturing facility

We operate a fully equipped in-house factory with imported machineries that allows us to produce
custom-made furniture, panelling, and woodwork with desired precision. This approach significantly
reduces costs compared to on-site construction, which typically requires more labour. Our factory's
efficiency also ensures consistency and high-quality production while minimizing material waste.

Paint and polish spray booth

Our factory includes a dedicated paint spray booth that handles all painting and polishing of panels and
furniture. By completing these finishes in a controlled environment, we avoid the higher costs and
extended timelines associated with on-site work. This also results in superior finishes and greater control
over quality, all while reducing labour costs.

Volume purchasing and strong vendor relations

Our strong relationships with Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) and distributors enable us to
secure significant volume discounts on materials, fixtures, and equipment such as air conditioner units,
Uninterruptible Power Supply devices, distribution boards, HVAC ducts, decorative lights. Bulk
purchasing and direct sourcing of required raw materials such as laminates, adhesive materials, plywood,
hardware items help us lower overhead costs, which translates to cost savings for our clients.

BOQ optimization and waste elimination

We conduct a detailed review of the Bill of Quantities (“BOQ”) to remove unnecessary specifications
and identify cost-saving opportunities. By eliminating redundant or over-specified items, we reduce
material waste and streamline project costs without compromising quality or design.

Material substitution with cost-effective alternatives

We suggest alternative materials that maintain durability and aesthetics at a lower cost. Whether
substituting engineered wood for hardwood or using energy-efficient lighting systems, our goal is to
optimize the budget while maintaining the project's integrity.

Efficient design layouts

Our expert design and engineering teams collaborate to create layouts that maximize functionality with
minimal material usage. By optimizing space planning, partitioning, and lighting arrangements, we
reduce material and labour costs, leading to further savings.

Sustainable solutions with long-term savings

We incorporate sustainable design principles that provide long-term operational savings. Our focus on
energy-efficient HVAC systems, optimized natural lighting, and eco-friendly materials helps reduce
energy consumption and ongoing maintenance costs for the project.

Pre-fabrication and modular construction

Where applicable, we employ off-site pre-fabrication and modular construction techniques. This method

reduces on-site labour requirements, shortens project timelines, and lowers material waste, all
contributing to overall project cost savings.

154



10.

11.

Cost-effective project management

Our project management team ensures that timelines and budgets are strictly adhered to. Through expert
coordination with subcontractors and suppliers, we prevent costly delays and optimize resource
allocation to deliver maximum value for your investment.

Technical expertise in negotiation and specification review

Our expertise extends to negotiating with vendors and reviewing design specifications to ensure cost-
effective solutions are selected. We collaborate closely with architects and designers to ensure that every
detail, from finishes to MEP systems, aligns with the agreed budget without compromising on the vision
of the project.

Local sourcing and logistics optimization

Where possible, we prioritize local sourcing of materials to avoid import duties and reduce transportation
costs. This not only supports local industries but also reduces lead times and improves cost control.
Through our comprehensive approach, which includes advanced manufacturing capabilities, optimized
on-site processes, and strategic sourcing, we consistently deliver cost-effective, high-quality projects.
Our focus on innovation, efficiency, and sustainability ensures that our clients receive the best value for
their investment.

PROCUREMENT PROCESS

Our procurement process follows a series of steps to acquire goods, services, or works from external suppliers.
We plan to procure materials as per the requirements of each projects. This list is sent to the procurement team,
who sources materials from pre-identified manufacturers and vendors. The team gathers quotes, evaluates options
and places purchase orders with the best suppliers. This process ensures that purchases are made in a controlled
and efficient manner, while meeting the organization's needs and complying with its budget and policies. After
delivery, the materials undergo quality inspection before being accepted for production, ensuring timely, cost-
effective procurement and high-quality standards.

Details of state-wise raw material procurement during the last 3 financial years and for the period ended

September 30, 2024.
(In lakhs)
Name of For the six-month period  Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
states ended September 30, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2024
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Andhra 236.40 4.71% 797.14 8.87% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Pradesh
Gujarat 53.44 1.06% 263.25 2.93% 2,800.65 40.96% 190.76 3.82%
Haryana 225.80 4.50% 237.82 2.65% 80.97 1.18% 0.20 0.00%
Karnataka 1,195.73 23.82% 1,456.01 16.21% 879.41 12.86% 1,875.95 37.56%
Maharashtra 2,680.51 53.40% 5,198.49 57.87% 2,950.68 43.16% 1,643.05 32.89%
Tamil Nadu 88.26 1.76% 10.25 0.11% 47.99 0.70% 47.81 0.96%
Telangana 419.14 8.35% 329.27 3.67% 61.24 0.90% 218.55 4.38%
Uttar 2.04 0.04% 11.49 0.13% 11.52 0.17% 1,018.83 20.40%
Pradesh
Madhya 118.64 2.36% 679.38 7.56% 4.53 0.07% - 0.00%
Pradesh
Total 5,019.97 100.00% 8,983.11 100.00% 6,836.99 100.00% 4,995.15 100.00%

Contribution of our top 5 and top 10 suppliers for the last 3 financial years and for the period ended September

30,2024
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(In lakhs)

Particulars For period ended FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022
September 30, 2024
Amount % of our Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of our
R in Purchase R in our R in our R in Purchase
lakhs)*  of stock in  lakhs)* Purchase lakhs)* Purchas lakhs)*  of stock in
trade of stock in eof trade
trade stock in
trade
Purchasefromtop  3051.56 18.34% 3,560.37 15.92% 2,927.54 15.80%  1,796.84 13.63%
five (5) suppliers
Purchasefromtop  4578.85 27.51% 5,207.46 23.29% 4,745.68 25.61% 2,804.02 21.26%

ten (10) suppliers

*All value mentioned above are Gross Values (inclusive of GST)

ORDER BOOK

As on a December 31, 2024, our Order Book consists of contract value of unexecuted portion of our ongoing
projects, i.e., the total contract value of ongoing projects as reduced by the value of work already billed up to
December 31, 2024. The following table sets forth the break-up of our Order Book for all the ongoing projects:

(% in lakhs)
Sr Category of Work order Number of Contract Value* Order Per centage of
No. Projects Book* Order Book
B General Contracting 39 51,923.80 38,561.10 88.67%
' services
Total 47 70,589.66 43,486.33 100.00%

*All value mentioned above are Gross Values (inclusive of GST)

Our Order Book, as on December 30, 2024, as segregated on the basis of repeat customer and new customer is as

under:

(% in lakhs)

Particular Number of projects Contract Value* Order Book* Percentage of
Order Book

Repeat Customer 32 25,642.77 13,390.99 30.79%

New Customer 15 44,946.89 30,095.33 69.21%

Total 47 70,589.66 43,486.33 100.00%

* All value mentioned above are Gross Values (inclusive of GST)
Our Order Book, as on December 31, 2024, segregated by geographical locations is as under:
(% in lakhs)
Name of State Number of Contract Value* Order Book* Percentage of
Projects Order Book

Karnataka 9 21,044.02 6,898.12 15.86%
Mabharashtra 23 36,981.68 28,575.82 65.71%
Tamil Nadu 5 6,509.52 6,254.95 14.38%
Telangana 4 1,819.86 874.41 2.01%
Madhya Pradesh 1 1,487.88 284.17 0.65%
Gujarat 2 367.58 198.39 0.46%
Haryana 1 791.74 117.50 0.27%
Andhra Pradesh 1 1,569.38 267.97 0.62%
Uttar Pradesh 1 18.01 14.99 0.03%
Total 47 70,589.66 43,486.33 100.00%

*All value mentioned above are Gross Values (Inclusive of GST)
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KEY OPERATIONAL METRICS

For the Financial year ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2024, and six month period ended

September 30, 2024, our revenue from top five (5) and top ten (10) clients are as follows:

Particulars  Six-month period
ended September
30, 2024
Amount % of
revenue
Revenue 10,001.36  52.06%
from top five
(5) clients
Revenue 14,744.16  76.75%
from top ten
(10) clients

Financial Year ended

March 31, 2024
Amount % of
revenue

14,020.03  63.36%

17,269.86  78.04%

Financial Year
ended March 31,
2023

Amount % of

revenue
51.15%

9,731.61

13,439.2.

70.64%

Financial Year

ended March 31,

2022

Amount % of
revenue

10,397.35 67.02%

12,768.77 82.31%

Following is the break-up of revenue undertaken by the Company based on type of customers i.e. repeat customers

or first-time customers:

(< in lakhs)
Particulars Six month period Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year
ended September March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 ended March 31,
30, 2024 2022
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue revenue revenue
Revenue from 11,776.83 61.31%  19,831.58 89.62% 13,463.25 70.76% 12,334.21 80.18%
repeat customers
Revenue from first 7,432.80  38.69% 2,297.61 10.38% 5,562.60 29.24% 3,048.82 19.82%
time customers
Total revenuefrom  19,209.63 100.00% 22,129.19  100.00% 19,025.86 100.00%  15,383.03 100.00%

operations

Following is the break-up of projects undertaken by the Company on fixed rate contract basis as well as on other

than fixed rate contract basis:

Particular For period ended
September 30, 2024
Amount % of
revenue
Fixed rate 18,992.19 98.87%
contract
Other than 217.44 1.13%
fixed rate
contract
Total revenue 19,209.63  100.00%
from
operations

For period ended
March 31, 2024

Amount % of
revenue
21,609.06 97.65%
520.13 2.35%
22,129.19 100.00%

For period ended
March 31, 2023

(% in lakhs)
For period ended
March 31, 2022

Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue
18,423.78 96.84%  14,838.58 96.46%
602.08 3.16% 544 .45 3.54%
19,025.86  100.00%  15,383.03 100.00%

Following is the break-up of projects undertaken by the Company on contracting as well as on sub-contracting

basis:
Particulars For Six months
period ended
September 30, 2024
Amount % of
revenue
Revenue earned 15,437.59 80.36%
as Contractor

Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024

Amount % of
revenue
16,708.87 75.51%

157

Financial Year ended

March 31, 2023

Amount % of
revenue
13,869.57 72.90%

(R in lakhs)
Financial Year ended
March 31, 2022

Amount % of
revenue
5,954.08 38.71%



Particulars For Six months Financial Year ended Financial Year ended Financial Year ended

period ended March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
September 30, 2024
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
revenue revenue revenue revenue

Revenue earned 3,772.04  19.64% 5,420.32 24.49% 5,156.29 27.10% 9,428.94 61.29%
as sub-contractor

Total Revenue 19,209.63 100.00% 22,129.1¢ 100.00% 19,025.86 100.00% 15,383.0  100.00%
from

Operations

COMPLETED PROJECTS

Following are some of the key projects completed by our Company during the last three financial years and six
months period ended on September 30, 2024 as set out below:
(in % lakhs)

Sr Nature of Client Project Total Contract Developable Area  Financial year
No Location Value (Sq Ft) of completion
A. Design & Build services
1 Real Estate Investment Trust Bangalore 1,011.10 1,66,000 FY 2021-22
2 Financial services company Mumbai 572.15 87,000 FY 2023-24
3 Big 4 professional services firm Mumbai 297.97 45,000 FY 2023-24
4 Laboratory and pathology company Bangalore 612.35 45,000 FY 2023-24
5 Manufacturing company Pune 6.96 28,000 FY 2021-22
6 Engineering company Mumbai 54.16 20,000 FY 2024-25
7 Engineering company Gurgaon 343.15 20,000 FY 2023-24
8 Manufacturing company Mumbai 455.65 12,500 FY 2023-24
9 Other building Bangalore 69.80 12,000 FY 2022-23
10  FMCG company Mumbai 730.36 7,000 FY 2024-25
B. General Contracting services
1 Renewable energy company Ahmedabad 4,834.22 1,20,000 FY 2023-24
2 Engineering company Mumbai 4,244.09 1,00,000 FY 2024-25
3 Electronic manufacturing company Noida 3,854.64 3,77,000 FY 2022-23
4 Insurance company Mumbai 3,818.80 1,10,000 FY 2023-24
5 E-Commerce company Bangalore 2,710.60 1,50,000 FY 2023-24
6 Engineering Company Bangalore 2,167.68 1,85,000 FY 2021-22
7 Chemical manufacturing company Mumbai 1,682.59 49,000 FY 2024-25
8 Engineering company Mumbai 1,394.01 50,000 FY 2023-24
9 Industrial “machine manufacturing e 4abad 1,154.95 60,000 FY 202223
company
10  IT/ITeS company Chennai 991.41 2,00,000 FY 2021-22

OUR PORTFOLIO OF OFFERINGS:

Design and Build services

Nature of Client: Engineering; Sq.' Ft.: 22,000, | Nature of Client: IT/ITeS company; Sq. Ft.:
Location: Gurugram 2,00,000; Location: Mumbai
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Design and Build services

Location: Mumbai

Nature of Client: Oil & Gas; Sq. Ft.: 5,000

General Contracting services

Location: Hyderabad

Location: Pune

ature 0 Cli : E-ommerce;Sq. Ft.: 3,00,000;

RS
Nature of Client: Financial Services; Sq. Ft.: 80,000

Location: Mumbai

The above images were taken at the time of inspection and handing over the completed projects to the clients.

OUR MANUFACTURING FACILITY

Our manufacturing facility located at Vasai, Maharashtra, spread across 27,190 Sq Ft of area, provides a controlled
and optimized production environment. This setup allows us to ensure efficiency, precision and high-quality
output that meets exact client specifications. We maintain strict quality control by thoroughly inspecting each
piece before dispatch. Our manufacturing facility is well equipped with machineries such hot/cold press machine,
moulding and designing machine, automatic cutting machine, CNC cutting machines, sanding machines and paint

booth.
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Plant and Machinery

We have over the years acquired certain equipment required to support our operations. As on September 30, 2024,
the major machineries and equipment owned includes paint booth machine, sanding machine, C-Express 920
classic CNC processing centers, CNC beam saw, automatic PVC edge binding machine, CNC processing machine,
panel saw/cutter machine, multi boring machine, manual edge banding machine and hot press machine, amongst

others.

MANUFACTURING PROCESS

The manufacturing process for our woodwork facility is described below:

Wood Procurement

I

Wood Quality Check

i

Wood treatment &
Seasoning

4

Cutting & sizing

Y

Engraving, freetting

Planning

Y

Joineries

{

Inlay work

Assembly

Y

Metal artwork

Fixing

Wood Procurement

2

Cushion & Upholstery work

Finishing-sanding, painting,
polishing, lacquering, etc

Functional Check

Y

Dismantling, packing and
dispatching

Wood procurement is the process of sourcing and acquiring wood products especially plywood for
manufacturing of loose furniture. It involves identifying reputed suppliers who can meet our quality

standards and able to transport the material to our factory at the best prices.

Wood Quality Check

Wood quality checks involve inspecting the material for defects and moisture content that could affect
its strength or appearance. Wood with higher moisture content is allowed to dry before putting it to use.
Finally, the wood is graded to ensure it meets the required specifications for the intended application

Wood treatment & seasoning:

Wood is treated and seasoned to 